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Attached for your review are the recommendations for 
authorization of a loan to the Government of Honduras in an 
amount not to exceed four million one hundred thousand United 
States dollars ($4,100,000) to assist in financing the United 
States dollar and local currency costs of its Municipal 
Development Program to be administered by the Banco Municipal 
Autonomo (IiAdministrator ll

). No less than $3,500,000 shall be 
utilized to finance the construction and expansion of municipal 
infrastructure and services; up to $550,000 m~ be utilized to 
finance technical assistance, training, and evaluation services; up 
up to $50,000 may be utilized for equipment. 

No meeting,wi)l be scheduled for this proposal. However, 
please. advise us of your concurrence or objection as early as 
possible, but in no event later than close of business on 
May 29, 1974. If you are a voting member a poll sheet has been 
enclosed for your response. 
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HONDURAS - MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT BANK (BANMA) 

PART ONE - SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. BORROWER: The Borrower will be the Government of 
Honduras, which will donate the Loan proce.ds to the 
Municipal Bank of Honduras (Banco Municipal Aut6nomo -
BANMA) to increase its ca~ital. The executing agency 
will be BANMA, an autonomous government bank established 
in 1961 to provide local governments with credit, 
technical assistance and financial services. 

2. LOAN: 

a) Amount: Not to exceed Fou~ Million, Ona Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($4,100,000). 

b) Terms: Repayable in dollars within 40 years includ­
ing a 10 year grace period, at an interest rate of 
2% per annum during the grace period and 3' per 
annum thereafter. 

3. GOAL AND PURPOSE: The overall goal of the Project is 
tClimprove the quality of life for the rural man. The 
specific purposes of the project are (a) complete the 
BANMA reform program and enable BANMA to provide financ­
ing and technical assistance on a system~tic, cOhtinuin~ 
basis for municipal projects of ben~fit to the rural 
man; and (b) improve the capacity of the governments of 
the 27 rural polar and sub-polar counties to function 
effectively as agricultural service centers. 

In addition, the project should enhance local decision­
making capability and the mobilization of resources for 
local development, thereby releasing central government 
management for national requirements. The infrastructure 
developed under the Loan will create jobs in construction 
as well as in maintenance and operation of municipal 
services'. 

Finally, the Loal. will assist in msating the rising .edium 
and long term credit needs of the municipalities outside 
of Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula in a period of increaa­
ing need for public services. 

Rate of Exchange: Lps. 2=US$ 1 
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4. PROJECT DESCRIPl'ION: The Project consists of strengthening 
~,ts insticutional capacity and providing it with sufficient 
resources to carry out an expanded lending and technical assistancE 
program for county governments. It includes: (a) lending to 
finance the construction and expansion of municipal infra8tl~cture 
and services such as markets, slaughterhouses, water and sewerage 
systems, electricity; (b) technical assistance and training, 
complementing the sublending program, to strengthen mnnicipal 
financial capacity and subproject administration; and (c) techni­
cal assistance and training for the BANMA staff, as well as 
necessary office equipment, to complete the Bank's reform effort. 

Approximately 90% of BANMA's sublending will be concentrated in 
the 27 polar and subpolar municipios. The cities of Tegucigalpa 
and San Pedro Sula will be excluded although the rural areas 
surrounding them will be eligible. It is expected that as BANMA 
develops its financial and management capacity, it will expand 
its coverage to a larger number of rural municipalities. BANMA 
intends to give priority to those sub-projects which improve 
(a) the production and distribution of agricultural products, 
(b) . the general financial and administrative capaCity of the 
muni(!ipality, and (c) the welfare and income of the low income 
Honduran. Specifically excluded for Project financing are 
street pRving, garbage collect jon, City halls, parks, and 
cemeteries. Technical assistance aimed at improving local 
government administration will be provided with subloans. These 
priorities and criteria are reflected in BANMA's draft financial 
and credit poliCies which will be mutually agreed upon in final 
form by A.I.D. and BANMA as a precondition to subloan disbursement. 
The Project will also provide BANMA with a sufficient capital base 
to continue expanding its operations, including technical assis­
tance, after A.I.D. Loan disbursements end. 



5. FINANCIAL PLAN: 

Sub loans 

Technical 

Training 

Equipment 

Subtotal 

TOTALS 

Assistance 
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A.I.D. LOAN HOST ~OUNTRY 
Dollar 
Cost 

Local 
Cost 

Hunici­
_____ G_O_H_. BANHA p-alit,ies Total 

1,200 2,300 1,500 

400 

40 110 

50 

1,690 2,410 1,500 

4,100 

500 

500 

2,611 

611 

611 

6,111 

l~OO 

150 

50 

6,711 

6,711 

Of the $6.7 million projdct total, the host country 
contribu~ion is $2.6 million or 39%. The Government will 
contribute $1.5 million over the Project te~m on a pari 
passu basis with Loan disbu~se~ents. In addition the 
Government has agreed to continue to subsidize BANHA after 
disbursement 0t the loan. BANHl will contribute $500,000 
from its own lending capital. jhe municipalities will 
contribut~ 10% of subproject costs in cash or in kind. 

G. O~HE~~~RCE~_~f~NDS: The Export-Import Bank, IBRD 
and its affiliates, and the IDB have all informed A.I.D. 
that they are not prepared to consider this ~roject. 
Commercial lines of credit are not appropriate for 
capitalizing a development institution; however as BANHA 
achieves financial stability, some commercial lines of 
credit may well be utilized for working cLpital. 

7. PROJECT SETTING AND BACKGROUND: The secondary municipal­
ities in Honduras have long been important in the 
~conomic and political life of the country. Over the 
years, however, central governments have attempted to 
dominate and weaken the municipalities and have succes­
sively redu6ed their taxing power. Municipalities 
inevitably have become increasingly dependent on the 
central government to provide local services to their 
inhabita~ts--demands that the government has proven 
unable to meet. The present government, preoccupied 
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with programs of national scope and fac~d with limite 
financial and administrative capacity, is looking to 
the municipalities to develop their own capacity to tl 
fullest so that they can develop the local infrastruc' 
and services demanded by their citizens. After long 
deliberation the GOH decided that BAHMA would be the 
best mechanism for developing local government and reo 
inforcing overall GOH development objectives with coml 
mentary local action. The Bank has undergone an intel 
reform over the last ~8 months assisted by A.I.D. whic 
has transformed it from a near bankrupt commercial 
bank to a functioning municipal development bank. Thj 
loan will now provide BANMA with the resources it neec 
to carry out a significant municipal program. The Ba~ 
has decided t~ concentrate its initial efforts under 
the loan on 27 polar and subpolar towns distributed 
throughout the country and designated as agricultural 
service centers by the National Planning C~uncil. It· 
is expected that major public and private investments 
in Honduras' agricultural development will be located 
near those towns and their success will depend in part 
on supporting s~rvices and local infrastructure being 
available. 

8. LOAN ADMINISTRATION: Of the $~.1 million loan, $3.5 
million will be utilized for sublending and $600,000 
for tachnical assistance, training, and evaluation ove: 
a three and one half year disbursement period. The LOi 
will finance engineering and construction services, 
equipment purchases, training and technical assistance 
and scholarships from CACM and Code 9~1 countries. 
Procurement under subloans will be carried out by sub­
borrowers utilizing AID-approved BANMA procedures. 
Procurement for BANMA's account will be curried ~ut by 
the Dank in accordance with the A~I.D. Capital Project 
Guidelines. Payments in U.S. Dollars will be made 
using Letter of Commitme~t procedures. Local currency 
will be disbursed under procedures established by the 
USAID Controller. 

9. STATUTORY CRITERIA: All Statutory Criteria have been 
ffi-e-t--(S e c-A nne'x--i,'-)-:- -

10. VIEWS OF THE COUNTRY TEAM: The country team recommends 
ihat this project be authorized. It supports USAID's 
main priority in Honduras and offers the possibility 
o~accelerated political development through the re-
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inforcement of local democratic institutions. 

11. RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that a Loan be 
authorized to the Government of Honduras for an amount 
not to exceed $4.1 million, subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 

a) Interest and Terms of Repayment. Repayment in 
dollars within 40 years, including a grace period 
of 10 years, at an interest rate of 2% per annum 
durin~ the grace period anJ 3% per annum thereafter. 

b) Prior to Initial Disbursement: 

(i) BANMA shall submit evidence of a contribution 
to the project of not less than $500,000. 

(ii) BANMA shall have hired qualified professional 
personnel for the positions of Chief of 
Technical Services Department and Chief of the 
Financial Department. 

(iii) BANMA shall (a) submit a mutually acceptable 
plan showing the intended utilization of technical 
assistance funds including evalu~tion and 
auditing and (b) have contracted a capital 
projects advisor. 

(iv) Borrower shall provide a financial plan accept­
able to A.I.D. for providing $1,500,000 to the 
capi tal of BANMA on a pari passu baEis with 
A.I.D. loan disbursements. 

c) Prior to initial disbursement for other than technical 
assistanc~ and training, BANMA shall submit for 
A.I.D. approval: 

(i) All regulations and procedures governing sub­
loans to be financed under the Project. These 
shall include, but not be limited to, Financial 
Policy, Credit Policy, Loan Approval Regulations, 
and Procurement Regulations. 
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(ii) A standard subloan contract and~nnex ••• 
including reporting requirements and account­
ing procedures. 

(iii) Evidence that the correspondent Bank plan is 
in operation at least on 8 pil~t basis. 

d) Unless A.I.D. otherwise agrees in w~iting BANHA 
will ensure that: 

(i) All subloans financed under the Project shall 
be approved and executed in accordance with 
the procedures approved above. 

(ii) All subloans under the project over $50,000 be 
approved by A.I.D. This limitation will be 
examined ill the course of the joint project 
reviews. 

(iii) Subloana for: paving, city hall. c_~.nstruction,_ 
garbage collect ion, cemeteries, or pa.rks shall not b, 
eligible for financ.fng under the Pl'oject. 

(iv) Subloans fol' projects located in the urban 
areas of Tegucigalpa and San Pedl'o Sula shall 
not be eligible for financing under the 
Project. 

(v) Principal repayments from sub loans financed 
under the Project shall be subject to the 
criteria in (iii) and (iv) for a period of 
3 years after final disbursement of the Loan. 

e) The Borrower shall use its best efforte to bl'ing 
about an increase in th~ municipal tax base and 
ensure that municipal revenues are not reduced 
through legislative action over the life of the 
Project. 

f) The Borrowel', BANMA and A.I.D. shall undertake a 
joint project review before $1.0 million of Loan 
funds are committed and a second review berore $3.0 
million are committed under tha ~oan. The second 
review shall be based on an evaluation prepared by 
an independent consultant acceptable to Borrower, 
BANHA, and A.I.D. 
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/-;onduras in divider} into 283 county-like units called ·'municipios·'. 
These rnunlcip lOS consist of townshi!>s 01'" county seats with ad­
r~dn.i~trativ~ responsibilities for the town olas 'iurrounding rural 
norulations and lands within their jurisdiction. Ten of the 203 
countv seats have over 10,000 inhabitants, representin~ a popula­
tion of 516. oon 01'" about 20~ of all Hondurans" Tt-.·o, of these, 
Tp.?;udp;alDiJ and S"ln Pcnro Sula, contain 350,000 of the 516,000. 
!n a;hlHion, there are 20 county seats ~rith popUlations in the 
~ ,50n - 1 (1, oon ran",;e and 44 more in the ?, noo to 3,500 ranp;e. 
These 61~ county c;eats comprj,se 29% of Honduras' rOTlulation. The 
l'''''''c1,tnino 2011 towm:h lPs are in fact no more than rural hamlets. 
although a number of them will move into the :?,OOO to 3,500 group 
·,·ilthtn the next five vears. The county f'l:overnment (municiprtlid<ld) 
is located in tho county seat and iD rnnresented in eVArv ~Attle­
Tn'~nt in t;!w ~:ountv w.lth more than if)!) :inhahitants (called "aleleas") 
:i.n thE> oerson of Cl (ieputy mayor; in all, ther!? are close to 7, SOO 
a]rl~;.j3. 

Onl" 29~.:. o-F the Honduran population (estiMated jon 1'370 at 2.9 
million) ll.'1CS in towns of 2,000 or more inhal.dtants, making 
1I0nduras h'l far the .sast urbanized cl)untr" in Ce>ntral I\merica. 
At tl"JP. samf~ time, howe'ver, it is experiencinl; a hip,her urban 
f(T'oHth r.1tc (5 .l~~~ per annum compared to 11.I~n;) than the othel" CACM 
countries comhined. Internal migration and a hip,h population 
7,rowth rate are resultinp. in rapid urban ~rowth, particularlv in 
thosp. town~ \oI~ic'1 nlaV the role of ref!.ional center9 for their 
rUNtl AT'pa" I)f influence. Variolls lTI,ip;r'ltlon ~t\l!lies ind.icate 
that rnral to urhan Ml!7.rat ion in Honduras i!'l n step-~·rise nhEmome­
rl()n, .i .'!., ;Tlll1hitantn of the small~T' t()wns ,mel ';i11a,l?,F!s t()/lll to 
:10VC to neal"1lV interm~diate size tmms (these t~llrl to he regional 
poles and suh-poles). while the migrants to the larp;Ar cities tend 
to come eH1H'T' from that citv's .immp.(liate ,"ircn of .influence or 
-Fro~ int~T'rned{ate ~ize towns outside of it. Tn a~dition to hein~ 
it step-HisA rhenom~non, thi~ migration has prioarilv economic 
r'1otivations Jnduced by the existing rural-urhan and inter-regional 
income di!>oarities. Other factors such as hav!n'! zoelatives in 
the Dlace ~f destination are also relevant. This urban gt,owth 
has severely taxed the financial and administrative c'apabiiIties-
of the l"ep,ional centers which have not been ah1e 1;0 absorb it in 
an orderly manner ancf at the' same time provide basic servic'es to 
their rural hinterlands'. -,--,-, ", 
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Honduras' ru~p,ed tonographv and resultin~ j,ntarnal p,eographic 
isolation have been important factor~ in its social, economic, 
and political development in general and in the development of 
local government particularly. Honduras is criss-crossed bv a 
~eries of mountain ran~es hetween which are interspersed numer­
IJU::: small vallevs, relative1v isolated one from another. The 
maiorit'l of lionduras' population lives dispersed in small towns 
in these valleys. The ruggeonesr. of the countrv ha~ constituted 
an lr:1T'o!'tant obstacle to communication!'; and ha~ contributed to 
t'le pO~lIlat ion' c; trClditional, paroe-hiRl vi el-;s. ancl d i~tY.'ust and 
,1voiJrlncc of th~ outside world--",h lch mav include even nci~h­
horin::! vallevs. Iloncluran topol1.l'ap~w rtnd ,inteT"nal ~l!o~ral)hic iso­
lation hc'lve been obstacles to the FOT"mation of a national market, 
'11 th conse111€'nt ~i~h transport costs and poor communications 
,imperHnp; the movement of goods and services and the introduction 
or nE:!H technologies. The majcr political effect ~las heen chron­
ic 4ns tability, with the Central Government unable to control 
the .1<lminbtration of the national territory. Pprhaps in re­
~ctinn to tl-Jis many Honduran officials toc!av have an almost in­
r:t inct jve fear of administrative decentr'aljzat :ion. and precisely 
h~callse of the political importance of the municii>ios paternal­
btic national 30vernments have attempted to dominate, neglect, 
Clnd Heaken them. 

lJevertheles:3, Honduran topography and internal isolation coupled 
\oIith the ineFfectiveness of national aoministration have tended 
to nerpetuate the iMportance of local governments. Rising rural 
~xnectations re~ultin~ from imnrovp.m~nts in transport and com­
'1unicat.lons ovel' the last few years are intensj fvjnr: demands for 
puhlic r.ervices. The national government is aware that it has 
neither the ~inancial nor the administrative ~apahil~ty to meet 
the:3e nemands, ",hile at the local level inhabitants as well as 
offidals aI'e comiTl~~ to 'L'l-Je conc11.sion that if they h~,,-e,tQ_.-Hai:t 
for the national ~Qvernmen,t to_~ttend _ t~ their. nee~s t~at ,they Itay 
have to 'vTr.dt forever. At both levels there increasingly exists 
tlle conviction that local governments have a vital role to play 
in the develoDITJ<:!nt Pt"ocess and that thev should be more than mere 
arDel~aRas to a sterile national pol:itical nrocess. 

2. Municipal ~overnment 

The ~onstitution of 1965 divides Hondl1ra~ into 18 nepartments fo)" 
the purposes of ,Public Administration. Tho;> nepartments are further 
divided into autonomous counties (llmunicipios") which ure repre­
sented bv theil, elected officials. The county ,o;overnmcnts are 
inop-pendent in the exercise of their internai functions, suhject 
to the general laws of the country. 
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';he most important national law affectinp; the mun.icipios .is the 
r.,'l\oI of Hunicinnlit ies (TJev de t-funicipaliclt\des v del Regimen 
Politico) . 1'h i.~ law dates from 1 ~27 ann .'llt~ou~; C'ert,l in of= 
i.ts l''''l)vi<;ionn i!rc <trchaic and not ohRc't"vl:!fl, H delimits the 
ba~ic plenant~ of municipal or~anizations and structure. (Annex 1, 
~iC;l.lre 1) "rt icla 117 of the Law imnoc;es on Hon(l~lr~s count v p'overn­
I"lcnts. 01' t~Ol'l\nrat lons ~r; they ar(> callen, cons.iop.rable nOl"'''l' Clml 
wid~ responsibilities: 

"'!'h," GOVCl'nClent, direction and a,lm.inic;tr>at;on of th~ 
i-:1te!'e~t.c; or the settlements corresponds to the mu­
nieinal corrorations, especially \-Ihen tl-Jese ;!'I"(l re­
l<'lterl to the fl)llOldn.~: 

1. 'It;nicinal ,~overnMent, whicl, comnr>ehends intel"'n;)l 
rp..~ulat}()ns; the naming of employees; the organiza­
tion of s~rvices; ordances concerning nolice, h.i.giene, 
ouhlic instr>llction, and other areas under Hs control; 
aT!(: ,1!1::;()C iation with other corporation::;. 

2. vunicipal direction, which compre;ends all branches 
()f .indu.;;tr'l, lahar, \-Ielfare, cl,arity, health and educa­
tion, huilding and deeor and evp.rvthin~ relatp.d to the 
:.,ronot50n of tl1e moral ann mat~~:r.lal i.nterest~; of i.ts 
.i.JlhClhitants. 

3. 1·lunicipal Administration, which comnrehp.nd the 
conser'v;). t ion of community lands, goods, and T'i~l,tR, 
taxation. collection, investment and accountln~ of 
~evpnues as well CIS the proposin~ of new taxes and 
sPt'vices char~es. 

;:'.o,~e of the Mhove TTlE>ntioned attribution!> h,we nClsc;ecl i.nto the 
hando:; of" Central r,ov~!'nment or to autonomou::; ap.:p.nci~s hv default, 
l!F:'CnllSt:> lucflJ. c~overl~nlents have not han th~ rini'lnc i.iil and nc1r.linis­
trat -LVI" cCHlahilitie::; to Ci'lrl'V out their resnonsihilities. The 
count\' COl"'l)orat .i.on i3 cor.tnoflecl of the mavor (alcalde) and 3 to 7 
counc iluJ."l!1 (!'~~.i clores) • Other officers include a· fleCl"'etarv (who 
i" an f~:{-0t:1'.i,~in rr:~rl'1()r of" the council) ann a treasurer. The mayor 
')""r~ d res ()VPT' t;P. county c(')uncil and is the corporation's ch ie f 

~x~cutivp, but certain executive functions such as police, 
sanitat ion, etc., rotate among the council members. 
tinder' the !!onrluran I;onstittltion elections for local officiiils 
sltolj)'-! t.-.b· nlcle~ ever', throe veal"'S, with no off"icir'll allowefi 
1:0·~dCCeeu. himi.,!F'. In add"i.t:ion, the cornoration council if; mane 
1If! nf '!l~!"\1p.rc:; of hoth nolitical parties :in o1"dF':r. to em;ul"'Et !'\inol'­
it\' r'~!Orc:.';('nt<:1tj.on. the Ilavol'" Clnd !ila~joritv of t'le council heinq; 
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of the winnin~ party. The next local elections should take 
place in June of 1974. These elections are not expected 
to take olace, ho,.;!,vcel:', because the machinery for conductinr, 
Qlection~ has ~een ~bolished by the new military government. 
It is exrected that the ma10ritv of local corporations will 
continue in office with some selective ~~pointcd changes 
frQI!l t be to t irne. 

a. Tnfrastructure and Services 

To document what B obvious even to the casual observer, 
BANMA in eal'l V 1973 carried out -'.:1" mliii.fCipal survev "which , 
among othel' things, quantified the availability and coverage 
of m'uniclpal-'i"mrastr;tictu-ite' and-services:tr It Is--ciearfrom­
the survey that there i~ a lack of public '3ervices. and those 
that do exist are not'generallv adequate or 'operating proper-
1 

. - ... 
y. 

Hater. 2~IO !.funicipios have water systems in the 
county ~eats, of which 150 are in th~ hands of the 
local governments. Only 389 of Honduras' approximate­
lv 7,500 aldeas have some type of water sv~te~. The 
oV(~rHhelm:ing majority of these svstp.m1;: are inlldeCluate. 
S5~ of the water systems need to he enlarged, 36~ 

'require repair or major imt?rovements and onl" a~ arc 
consinered adequate. The su~ev found that only 61% 
of the svstem~ Pl'ovide watel' all day rlul"inp, the dry 
~eason and that in only 21% of the 5vstems had the 
bactel"ial level of the watel' heen tested ann found 
S;lt bf'actorv. 

Sewage. '13 Hunicipios in Honduras have some type 
of sewa~e svstem, none have any type of treatment 
SVflt(!m. 3G system::: are municipally owned, 'If which 
84 rAC)uire enlargement and improvement. 160 of the 
rnavol'S ~urveved helieved it necessary that a system 
l)l~ constructen in their towns <Inn a lar~p.r numher 
thou~ht that more latrines and septic tanks should. 
be built. 

1/ ."s used in this document, infrastruoture means :i,nvC!stment in plant 
- ann facili ties such as road constructIon, markets, slauv,hterhouses, 

ap,ricultural storage facilities, w.~er and sewa~e facilities, elec­
trical energy svstems, etc. Munici~l services ~efers to opera­
tion a·nd ma5,ntenance of these and 0 er facIlities, e.p, •• road 
maintenance and improvement, market and slaughterhouse operations, 
\'later and electric systems management and operat .p.on • 
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I:lectrical Energy,: _.AI?p'~'5.iJ!l~~J.-"f..190 municipios have 
some type uf electri~al service. About 76% of the 
elect~ical systems are a local government or com­
munity service. Th~se sys(ems are generally used in 
the evening for lighting; they average about 5 hours 
of operat.ion a day. These short operating hours 
impose a serious constraint on the development of 
small scale productive activities. Commercial. 
industrial and agricultural processing facilities must 
generate their own electricity - an expensive operation. 
The lack of all day service may be a serious barrier to 
entry for smi'lll businesse:;; as it precludes the efficient 
use of electrically driven hand tools and pumps. 

l1arkets. There are around 75 pUblic markets in 64 
towns. All except one in Tegucigalpa are municipally 
owned and operated. More than 75% of the municipios 
in Honduras have no public market of any type. The exis­
ting public market facilities are generally inadequate. 
39~ of the municipal markets in Honduras do not have 
electricity, while 35% do not have running water. 82% 
of the markets do not have public rcstrooms. Only 3% 
of th~ markets have any type of refrigeration and Done 
of this available for rent. Only 66% of the market 
have sufficient space, and nearly 60% of them are 
considered to be unsatisfactory from a hvgienic point 
of view. Where no public market exists residents use 
markets in nearby municipios; the average distance to 
these neighboring markets is 31 Kms. 

Slaughterhouses. Nearly 60% of Honduras' :283 mun~clp~oS 
have some kind of an:l,tnal slaughtering facilities. 
Lxcept for a few export packing houses all are munici­
pally owned. On the average about 200 animals per 
month are slaughtered in each of the 166. facilities. 
Only 33% of the existing slaughtering facilities are 
considered unsatisfactory. However, investigations 
made by members' of t-he--Agricultural Sector Analysis 
team indicate that in the majority of these installations 
there exists an inordinate amount of waste because of 
insufficient utilization of animal subp~oducts (blood, 
bones, skins, etc.). Much of this waste seems to be due 
to inadequate facilities and lack of trained adminis­
trators. Some is undoubtedly due to limited markets 
for thesubproducts o~ their derivatives. Refrigeration 
does not exist in any of the slaughterhouses and 
elemental sanitation is grossly inadequate. 



Other Public ~el'Vices: Only eight municipios in Honduras 
have organized fire departme'lts. San Pedro ~1Jla' s mayor 
stated that fire protection was satisfactor." while 71 
mayors stated that it was not satisfactory. Fires losses 
are a serious prohlem. 29 nlllnicipios, all ~dth pop" a­
tions over 2, 000 operate a garbi:\ge collection service. 
None of the mayors believed tha': the service was satis­
factorv. lihere service is nrovided, on the average onlv 
!.ICl% of the urhan ar.ea i:1 serviced because of inaccessibi­
lity, lack of equipment, or both. Other services 'Pro­
videJ at least in part by the local ~overnments include: 

18 have at least some paved streets; . 

161 hava at least snme street lightin~. In 12q of them 
this to;; provided by the local govel"nment; 

Q2 have public parks; 

35 have some kind of puhlic libl"arv; 71% of these Rr~ pro­
v.idecl hy the local povernments; 

272 have a public cernentarv; 

278 health centers exist; ~unicinalities contrihute to 
659; of them; 

270 have at least one public school; 879; of these munici­
ralities contribute to their construction, and maintenance; 

33 ~ave COMmunity cnnters; in 64% of these the municipality 
1\.lS helnecl to con3truct or maintains thesp. centers; 

52 ~ave children' s feedint~ centers; in 52% of these there 
is a municipal contribution; . 

11)0 have recreation fieldr.; in 82'% or the cases thenp. are 
rnuniciral prooerties. 

b. Account in'~ and Tax Administrat ion 
--~----- .. --
The accountj.ng and tax administration systems of Honduran 
local ~overnments are p,enerally ineffectiv~ and poorlv 
organized. Those accounting systems that do exist are in 
most cases limited to a cash control function. In most 
municinalitiefi there is almost no control over inventories, 
e~uip~~nt, munici~al lands or other properties. There 
exists practjcally no fund accounting or use of rlepreciation. 
It is almost ir<1T':ossihle to determine the cost of provIding 
thp. v~rious munidnal services, to distinp,"uish current 
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from capital expenditures, or interest payments from loan 
payments. Internal controls are almost non~.xistent. For 
example, in most cases the treasurers who receive cash 
payments also perform the accounting functions. There are 
very few effective controls to insure that the amount paid 
by th~ taxpayer finds its way into the municipal coffers. 

Perhaps even more defective th~n the accounting system 
is the tax control system. In most'municipalities there 
exists no adequate system to insure' that the taxpayer is 
charged with the full amount due for property tax, 
municipal services, and other charges. The municipio! 
generally do not know whether property owners have paid 
the property tax and services charges correponding to 
their properties. In most cases it is not possible to 
identify-the prOperty owner from municipal records, charge 
his account and send him a tax bill. Very faw property 
mapping systems (cadasters) exist. Similarly, except in 
Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula, no property assessment 
capability exists to verify owner-declared property values. 

c. Administration 

Honduran municipalities have neither tho technical tools nor 
trained personnel to manage modern local government. For 
example, such tools as subdivision regulations; building 
codes; or plans for streets and drainage, water and sewage, 
electrical power and other basic services do not exist. 90% 
of the mayors, councilmembers, secretaries, treasur6rs, and 
department chiefs have attended secondary school. However 
few have adequately trained market adrdnistI'ators or 
personnel in 'i:heareas or animall.iispecdo'n:, 'animal ut-niz8-
tion and general administI'ation, and this lack is repeated 
with municipal water systems, electrical systems, etc. 

d. Project Development 

rew Honduran municipalities have the capacity to develop 
projects. Perhaps half a dozen municipal engineering 
offices exist, poorly staffed and equipped. Only in San 
Pedro Sula and Tegucigalpa does any kind of formal municipal 
planning capability exist. The result is a reliance on 
local engineering f~rms, often . operating without supervi­
sin or contract moq'itoring-:- tn the past six years, Puce 
Corps Volunteers - engineers and architects assigned to . 
some of the larger municipalities - have provided competent, 
but transient, project development capab~lity. 
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tiunici,al finances 
In 19 2 Honduran local Government expenditUl"I!S to'talled $6.3 
million (as shown in Table I-i), approximately 1.2\ of G.N.P. 
and 7.2% of combined central Government/municip~l revenues. 
Hunicipal expenditures during 1960-1972 rose at an annual rate 
of 6.7% while the rate of increase in G.N.P. was about 6.4\. 
Durin~ the sGme period, Central Government expenditures rose 
at an annual rate of 8.3%. (Annex I, Table 1). A meaningful 
breakdown of municipal expenditures by categories is not avail­
able. How,=:ver, about 311% municipal revenues are spent on 
salaries. (Annex I, Table 2). . 

The current revenues of Honduran municipalities in 1972 
were approximately $ 7.3 million. During the 1965-1972 period 
the rate of growth in current revenues was about 6.7% per 
annum. (Annex I, Table 3). In 1972, 48.4% of current 
revenues came from taxation, 33.2% from service charges and 
18.4% from rents, licenses, and other sources. Smaller 
municipalities derive a larr,e proportion of their revenues from 

TABLE 1-1 CURRENT INCOME ANn EXPENDITURES or HONDURAN 

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, 1960-1972 
(Millions of Lempiras) 

Current Current Current Current Savings as 
Income Expenditures Savings Current lncome 

7.3 5.7 1.6 21.Y 
7.3 5.9 1.4 19.2 
7.6 5.7 1.9 t'5.0 
7.6 6.7 0.9 11.8 
7.1 6.9 0.2 ~.R 

9.4 8.1 1.3 13.8 
9.B 10.3 0.5 ( 5.1 ) 

13.0 11.9 1.1 8.4 
11.6 11.1 0.5 4.3 
12.5 11.0 0.5 12.0 
12.B 11.6 1.2 9.4 
13.6 12.0 1.6 11.8 
14.6 12.6 2.0 13.7 -

134.2 119.5 14.7 11.0 

% 

~lOU/{CL: GOB Plannine Council, 
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taxes and a similar proportion from service charges than do the 
larger municipalities. (Annex I, Table 4). 

In the 1960-1963 period, local government invc'stment 
averaged about ~.1% of the total public sector inveatmenti in 
the 1%8-1U70 period the local government portion had dropped 
to 4.2 rJ. (Annex I, Table 5). Current savinr,s as ., percellt C'f 
current income shm'led a marked tendency to decrease from 1 %l) 

to 1966 and increase from 1966 to 1972. The ctVF!l'ilr,C fir-uri! 
for the 1960-1972 period was 11%, is sir,nHic.lntly lower th<.l.ll 
for the puLlic sector as a whole. Current savings of the public 
sector as a percent of current income was 17.1% in the 1960-
19'/0 period. 

During the 1960-1972 period, real investment made by Hondu­
ran local governments exceeded new indebtedness by a ratio of 
2 to 1, and real investment averaged about 27% of curr&nt 
revenues. Doth the level of real investment and 'the percentage 
of curre,rt revenues invested have been increa~in~ rapidly during 
the past s('veral yedrs. (Table 1-2). 

TABLl: 1-2 Rl:AL INVl:STHENT AND NEW INDEBTl:DNESS Uf' HONLJURAN 
LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, 1960-1972 

Willion of Lemoiras) 

Real Real Investment as New Secured 
I nvc::;tlllent 90 of Current Income Indebtedness 

2.0 2'7.4 0.1 
lot. 21.9 0.3 
3.0 39.5 2.3 
l.J 25.0 0.2 
3 oF) 50.7 2.8 
1.2 12.8 0.3 
1.3 13.3 0.1 
2.G 20.0 0.7 
1.5 12.9 0.1 
4 .l~ 35.2 1.0 
3.7 28.9 3.0 
4.0 ' 29.4 5.5 
5.5 2/ 37.7 1.1 

U. 

1%0-1972 36.3 27.0 17.5 

1/ DOll:; not Include floatinc debt estimated at TJ.4.1 million .in 1 "I7/:. , 
')/ Preliminary 
:';OUI{CI; : GOH Planniug Council, Central Bank 
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Even though local government current revenues exceed 
current expenditures significantly, a correlation analysis 
indicates that investment by Hondur~n local governments 
historically has been more closely related to new indebt~ 
edness than to levels of current savings. t'loreover. other 
correlation tests show that there exists no marked tendency 
to substitute credit for current savings, a tendency which 
if it existed would be counterpronuctive. 

Some of the major problems existinlj in the m"ea of Ikmdu­
ran ~unicipal finance are the following: 

There are an excessive number of bases of taxation in 
relation to the amount collected, making t"lX administra­
tion and control more complicated than it should be. 

Except for the property tax which has a very low rate 
(1.5 miles), the tax structure is quite regressive. 

The complexity of the tax structure make equitable 
administration difficult. 

User charges for services do not have sufficient relation­
ship to the cost of sypplying services. 

Finally, the revenue base of local eovernmtmls is insuf­
ficient given the immense local needs for infrastructure 
dnd public services. 
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B. THE MUNICIPAL BANK (BANMA) 

1. Legal Status and Attributions 

The Autonomous Municipal Bank (BANNA) wa. created by 
Decree No. 12 on Nove.ber 4, 1961 to provide local go.ern­
ments with financial and technical a.si.tance and to 
contribute to the economic and social develop.ent of the 
municipios. In addition the bank is recognized in Art. 338 
of the Honduran Constitution of 1965 which provides for an 
Autonomous Municipal Bank having as its principal function 
the attainment of economic autonomy by local govern •• nts. 
In order to perform its functions the Bank is authorized 
to: 

Serve as the depository of all municipal subsides, 
funds, guarantees, and bonds. 

Serve as the financial agent for municipal works and 
services. 

Serve as fiduciary agent, guarantor, and Marketer for 
bonds or other municipal obligations. 

Serve as economic and financial advisor to the 
municipalities and as a promoter of savings. 

Serve as coordinator of economic and financial 
activities of the municipalities with the general policies. 
of state. 

Serve as promotor and developer of designated private 
and municipal enterprises including inter-municipal projects. 

Serve as municipal purchasing agent. 

Serve as administrator of a retirement fund for 
municipal employees. 

The Bank is also authorized to acquire, po ••••• , 
administer and sell goods and securities of all type., re­
ceive deposits of cash or securities which are not .uni~ipal. 
open current amounts for the public, and employ ita available 
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funds in loans or discounts. In general, it C4n pe~for. all 
such auxiliary functions which are complimentary to its 
basic purposes or which are generally practiced by banks. 
In order to obtain addi~ional resources, BANMA may issue 
obligations in accordance with the law, contract loans 
with national or international entities, and ~equest advances 
and rediscounts in the Central Bank. 

2. Organization 

a) Board of Directors 

BANMA's governing body is a Board of Direct~rs co.posed 
of 2 representatives of the Municipalities and ij representatives 
of the Central Government. The 2 municipal representatives 
are appointed by the Association of Municipalities and munici­
pal shareholders and the government representatives are the Bank President 
and the Ministers of Finance, Economy, and Government. In addition the 
General Manager sits with the Roard as an ex-oficio member. 

Biodata on each of the current members can be found in 
Annex I!,Exh{bit 1. 

The functions of the Board are to formulate and d6termine 
policy, review and approve loans, and in gener~l ensure the 
growth and progress of the Bank. The Board is presided over 
by the Bank's president and meets in regular session once a 
week and occasionally for extraordinary sessions. The re­
presentatives of three key Ministries on its Board provides 
BANMA regular access throughout the central Government. 
Recently the importance of that representation was seen as 
the GOH deliberated on the BANMA's future. The active 
promotion of the Government representatives on its Board was 
a key factor in the GOH's decision to go ahead with the Bank's 
first real capitalization effort. 

The President, a full time employee, js in charge of 
carrying out the Board's policy directives, providing 
guidance and supervision to the operating departm~nts, 
securing coo~~r~tion from other GOH and international agencies, 
and representine;the bank. 



-13-

b) Operations 

The operations of the bank are directed by the Hanager 
who is in charge of directing and organizing tho Bank'. 
administrative apparatus and keeping the Board of Directors 
informed of the Bank's operations and activitie •• 

In order to meet its obligations as a municipal develop­
ment bank, BANHA has recently reorganized its operating 
structure establishing three departments - Technical Services, 
Finance and Operations in addition to the Internal Auditing 
and Legal Advisers Offices. As illustrated i~ the BANHA 
Organization Chart (Annex II, Exhibit 2), the principal 
functions of these departments are: 

(i) Technical Services Department - helps the 
municipalities to identify iinanciable projects, 
solicit sub-loans, conduct grant funds search, 
and satisfy preconditions to loan disbursements. 
The De?artment also conducts municipal analyses, 
maintains a project shelf, and maintains contact 
with completed projects. 

(ii) Finance Department - analyses sub-loan proposals, 
prepares sub-loan contracts, and programs and 
supervises the execution of projects. 

(iii) Operations Department - monitors loan repayment, 
and provides banking services to municipalities 
and the public, and administrative services to 
the rest of the bank. 

c) ~ranch Operations 

BANHA has one branch office in San Pedro Sula. At the 
present time its principal function is to preside over tbe 
recovery of the commercial portfolio that was formerly 
developed throu~h that office. BANMA will retain the branch 
cffice and intendS to cover its operating expense by 
collecting the payments made by the taxpayers of the munici­
pality of San Pedro Sula and serving as a custodian for 
all municipal funds. If BANHA expan1s sufficiently, some 
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municipal lending may be handled at the Branch. 

d) Staff 

At present there are 37 employees at the •• in office. 
There are three full time executives - the pre£!dent, the 
manager and one department chief; two high level advisors -
the internal auditor and the legal advisor; seve~ profe.sion­
als - 3 engineers, 2 economists, one public ad~inistr.tor 
and a lawyer; and 25 clerical, secretarial, and 8e~vice 
personnel - 7 secretaries,S accounting banking cle~ics, 
3 collections agents for the commercial portfolio and 10 
service and maintenance employees. BAN~A is actively saek­
ing two more department chiefs (one economist/public 
administrator and one engineer) and a municipal analyst 
(economist). In 1975, BANHA plans to add a loan follow-up 
specialist (engineer or public administration) and two loan 
supervisors (one oX' two e"ng:ineers, possibly one economist) ~""" 

Thus the present and projected st~ffing pat~ern is as follows: 

3/31/74 6/30/74 1/1/75 1/1/77 
Classification Actual Projected Projected Projected 

Executive 3 5 5 5 

Advisory 2 2 2 2 

Professional 7 8 11 11 

Clerical, 
Secretarial and 
sel".,.1ce 25 25 25 24* 

TOTAL 37 40 43 42 

* Reduction of 3 employees expected when commercial poX't­
&,olio largely recovered. Two men will be transfetted . 
to other positions in the operations department. 
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A staff of nine is currently employed at the San Pedro 
Sula Branch - an office chief, an accountant, a teller, 
a secretary, two collections age~ts and three .aintenance 
personnel. BANMA has no plans for increasing the staif 
during the execution of the Loan. 

3. Operation to Date 

a) General Overview 

The history of BANKA operations since its creation in 
1961 is checkered. From its inception BAHKA was under­
capitalized; the Government of Honduras contri~uted its 
initial capital of L. 2.0 million and had the intention 
of seeking further capital from an international lending 
institution. Because of a change in government this never 
materialized. As the source of BANKA's continuing capitaliza­
tion, the municipalities were obligated by law to set aside 
5% of their current revenugs for the purchase of BANKA shares 
and were obligated to deposit thsir funds in BANMA. After 
the first three or four years of operation the m~nicipalities 
lost confidence in BANMA because of a lack of lending re­
sources, inefficient management, and political interference 
in its operations. As a result the municipalities stopped 
purchasing BANMA shares and did not use the institution as 
their exclusive depository and fiscal agent. Fjnding 
itself sho~t of capital and unable to meet operating expenses, 
BANHA turned to the supposedly more profitable commercial 
o~erations which grew to dominate its direct lending. How­
ever BANMA was never able to generate sufficient earnings 
to be able to properl~r staff its technical assiatan'Ce 
activities, engage in supervised credit, or adequately 
'IIonitor loans. 

Past BANMA lending activities can be separat~d into three 
p'cneral categories: 

BANKA direct lending to local governments h~. tad two 
principal components: munIcipal b~nds held In BAHMA'. own 
portfolio, and discounted taxpaye~ promissory note~. The 
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municipal bonds may be held either aa an invest.ent or 
awaiting bond buyers. To date BANHA baa not made direct 
loans to municipalities outside of tbe bond mecbanism. 
At the end of 1972 BANKA was holding about L. 1~4 million 
in direct municipal lending, largely in unsol~ municipal 
bonds. 

BANKA gua~anteed lending to local governments includes 
municipal bonds held by commercial banks, autonomous 
institutions of the GOH, and the public. It also includes 
a small amount of taxpayer promissory notes held by commercial 
ba~ks and guaranteed by BANKA. At the end of 1972 there was 
around L. 4.6 million in this category, including ab~ut 
L. 0.8 million in BANMA-guaranteed taxpayer promissory notes. 

BANMA private sector or commercial lending which at 
the end of 1972 totalled L. 2.3 millIon outstanding. 

(i) BANMA Lending to Municipalities 

The most importan~ element in ~ast BANMA lending to 
municipalities is the BANMA guaranteed municipal bond. 
Regardless of who holds the bonds, the Bank makes all pay­
ments to the bondholders and receives all payments from the 
municipalities. BANMA-guaranteed municipal bond emissions 
(hereafteralsoreferped to as loans) totalled around L. 10.9 
million from 1962 to the present, and financed 87 projects. 
As can be seen in Table 1-3 of these 87 projects, 23 were 
rural electrification projects, 23 were markets, and 12 were 
water systems. The largest amount was in the construction 
of an airport at San Pedro Sula (accounting for L. 5.0 
million). The largest number of projects were located in 
the Comayagua Region~ with the regions of San Pedro Sula 
and Santa Rosa de Cop~n second and third respectively. 

The amount and distribution of these bond emissions 
between the differing types of poles and other municipios 
is shown in Table 1-4. As of 3/1/74 the outstanding balance 
of all guaranteed bonds was approximately L. 3.7 million. 
Of this amount 7.1% is located in Tegucigalpa and San Pedro 
Sula,"71.2% is in ~he agricultural service poles and aub­
poles, and 21.7% is in other municipalities. . 
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TABLE No. 1-3 

BANMA FINANCED MUNICIPAL PROJECTS - NUMBER OF PROJECTS 

AND AMOUNT OF LOANS, BY REGION AND PROJECT TYPE, 1962 TO PRESENT 

No. of Amount of Loans , of Tot,al 
By Region Proojects (OOO's of Lps) Amount 

Tegucigalpa 8 936 9 
San Pedroo Sula 15 6.187 fJ7 
La Ceiba 9 551 5 
Choluteca 11 339 3 
Santa Rosa de Copan 14- 630 6 
Comayagua 17 1,098 10 
JuticaJ.p3 4- 596 5 
Danl.l 9 528 5 
Gracias a Dios 
Congo16n 

Honduras, 'fotal 87 10.865 100 

Bl Proj ec t Tn~e 

Markets 20 1,883 17 
Slaughterhouses 2 70 1 
Water 12 890 8 
Sewage 2 275 2 
Electricity 23 656 6 
Equipment 3 72 1 
Paving 8 1.54-3 14-
Airports 1 5,074- 4-7 
Others 16 402 4 

Srurce: BANMA 



TABLE No. 1-4 BANMA GUARANTEED MUNICIPAL LOANS, 1962 TO PRESENT 
AMOUNT, AND BALANCE OUTSTANDING, ACCORDING TO TYPE OF MUNICIPIO AS OF 3/1/74 

(OOO·s OF LEMPIRAS) 

ALL URBAN-INDUSTRIAL 1/ AGRICULTURAL 
HUNICIPIOS GROWTH POLES SERVICE POLES 

AND SUB-POLES 

Amount of Loans, 1962-1973 10,865 6,195 2/ 3,589 
Amount of Loans, 1962-1966 5,420 4,183 854 
Aruount of Loans, 1967-1973 5,445 2,012 2,735 , of Total Loans 100.0 57.0 33.0 
, of 1962-1966 Loans 100.0 77.2 15.8 
, of 1967-1973 Loans 100.0 37.0 50.2 

Ba1ance Outstanding, Total 3,690 260 2,627 
, of Ba1ance Outstanding 100.0 7.1 71.2 . 

11 San Pedro Su1a and Central District 
21 Inc1udes L. 5,074,000 for financing of San Pedro Sula Airport 

SOURCE: BANMA 

OTHER 
MUNICIPIOS 

1,081 
383 
698 

I ... 
10.0 CD 

I 
7.0 

12.8 

802 
21.7 
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(ii) BANMA Lending in Relation to other Municipal

Creditors.
 

Before the creation of the Autonomous Municipal Bank
 
local government debt was mostly in the form of secured
 
short-term obligations held by commercial banks, public
 
autonomous institutions, and the Central Bank. 
 In addition
 
to the secured local debt, there existed a considerable
 
amount of floating debt. As can be seen in Table 1-5, by

1966, the four-year old BANMA directly held half of the
 
outstanding municipal obligations, Lps. 2,869,000, an amount
 
larger than the entire municipal debt had been before BANMA's
 
creation. In addition, the BANHA served as 
guarantor for
 
an additional Lps. 2,426,000 of municipal debt which was held
 
by commercial banks, autonomous institutions, and the public.
 

From 1966 to the present, BANMA's direct municipal

lending has diminished both in absolute terms and in relation
 
to other municipal creditors. By 1972 BANMA's direct holdings

of municipal debt had decreased to 10.7% of the total
 
(L. 1,353,000) while the Central Bank's share Increased from
 
8.5% in 1966 to 59.5% in 1972 (L. 7,511,000). Most of this
 
Central Bank credit is to San Pedro Sula and the Distrito
 
Central. In addition BANMA has served as the fiscal agent

for municipalities and as the guarantor and marketer of
 
their bonds. The guaranteed bonds are held by commercial
 
banks and the public, and constitute BANMA contingent

liabilities. The total outstanding municipal credit channel­
ed through BANMA increased from L. 682,000 in 1962 to
 
L. 5,511,000 in 1965, decreasing gradually to L. 4,044,000

in 1970, increasing again in 1971 and 1972, reaching a level
 
of L. 5,094,000 in the latter year (Annex II, Exhibit 4).
 

(iii) BANMA Lending in Relation to the Private Sector
 

With the change of government in late 1965 a major

turnover in BANMA's administration occurred and with it a
 
major change in the institution's policies. In 1965 only

3% of the total credit channeled through BANMA went to the
 
private sector; by the end of 1970 this percentage hhd
 
increased to 43%. The present BANMA administration took
 
office in the latter part of 1970 and began to reverse this
 
trend. The proportion of credit extended to the private
 
sector dropped to 37% by the end of 1971 and to 33% by the
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TABLE No. I-5 

HONDURAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT SECURED DEBT, BY TYPE OF HOLDERS 

1958 - 1972, THOUSAND OF LEMPIRAS 

BANMA 

Year Total Held I/ 


1958 3,707 2/ 

1959 3,128 2/ 

1960 2,654 T/ 

1961 2,631 T/ 

1962 3,796 670 

1963 3,452 925 

1964 6,027 2,124 

1965 6,341 2,703 

1966 5,784 2,869 

1967 5,912 2,245 

1968 5,535 2,025 

1969 5,486 1,690 

1970 7,625 1,563 

1971 12,328 1,538 

1972 12,605 1,353 


Central Bank 

Held 


869 

702 


611 

458 

432 

691 

830 

489 

603 

345 


1,284 

3,581 

7,242 

7,511 


Commercial Held by
 
Bank Held 3/ Others 3/
 

960 1,878
 
827 1,599
 
490 2,164
 
321 1,699
 

1,354 1,314
 
1,064 1,031
 
1,086 29126
 
1,232 1,576
 
1,087 1,339
 

892 2,172
 
1,032 2,133
 

683 1,829
 
683 1,798
 
892 2,656
 
887 2,854
 

NOTES: 1/: Refers to BANMA direct lending.
 

2/: BANMA created in 1962
 

3/: After 1962 the mayority of municipal debt held by
 
commercial banks and others was BANMA guaranteed
 

SOURCE: Central Bank of Honduras
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end of 1972. Corresponding increases in municipal lending

took place during the period. (Annex II, Exhibit 4).
 

In the latter part of 1972 the BANNA's management and
Board of Directors decided to phase out of commercial lending

altogether. New commercial lending was stopped in the bank's
main branch in September of 1972 and in the San Pedro Sula

branch in August of 1973. 
 Since closing out new commercial

lending BANMA's efforts have been limited to collection,

refinancing, and the writing off of bad loans.
 

(iv) BANMA Lending in Relation to Rural Sector
 

Although BANMA did not consciously attempt to relate its
lending program to agricultural sector development, a large
percentage of BANMA direct or guaranteed loans from 8/62

to 9/72 were closely related to agricultural sector

activities. Table No. 
1-6 illustrates this, and indicates

that generally speaking, the more closely related a loan
application was to agricultural sector, the greater its
 
probability of approval.
 

C. PREVIOUS A.I.D. ASSISTANCE
 

1. BANMA Reform Project
 

In October 1971, shortly after taking office, the
President of BANMA approached USAID on the possibility of

negotiating a capitalization loan. In response to his re­quest, USAID arranged for ::he 
visit of a team of financial
analysts --
Wayne McKeel (AID/W), Dan Turner (USAID/ECUADOR),
and William Roach (USAID/PANAMA) to 
look at the situation
 
of the Bank.
 

In February 1972, the analysts completed the first phase
of a diagnostic of the BANMA. 
Their conclusions in part read:
 

"In our opinion the Bank has been unable to perform

the basic.function as an instrument for municipal

development.., 
the basic reason appears to be

ambiguity as to its 
reasons for existance... BANHA
 



TABLE Uo.I-6RELATION OF 	 BANMA LENDING TO 	 THE AGRICULTURAL SECTOR, 8/62-9/72 

(in 000's Lempiras)
 

Relation to Agricultural Sector 1/ 
 As 	i Percentage of Total
Applications 

TOTAL 
 A B C 
 A
No. of Applications 	 D B C D
136 31 72
Amount of Aplications 	 17 16 22.8 52.9 12.5
14,665 2,686 	 11.8
3,143 8,420 
 416 18.3 21.5 57.4 2.8
 

Loans
 
No. of Loans 


81 23
Amount of Loans 	 40 11

8,636 2,373 1,585 	

7 28.4 49.4 13.6 8.6
4,365 313 
 27.4 18.4 
 50.6 3.6
 
Loans as %of Applications(No. ) 

59.6 74.2 
 55.6 64.7 43.8
Loans 	 - ­ _as 	% of Applications

-(Ant.) 


58.9 
 88.3 
 50.4 
 51.8 
 75.2
 

I/ 
 For the purposes of this analysis the following classifications were employed:
 
products. 


A. Projects that directly improve the efficiency of the production and distribution of agricultural
These include: public markets, storage facilities for agricultural products, slaughterhouses,
access roads to areas of high agricultural production, road construction and maintenance equipment,
irrigation systems.B. 	 Projects that indirectly improve
products. These include: 

the efficiency of the production and distribution of agriculturalpotable water systems, sanitaryof 	industrial sewerage, electrical energy,sites, transport 	 preparationterminals, health centers, rural schools.C. Projects having marginal effect agricultural productivity.on 	
These include: street paving, stow.Sewers, shopping centers.D. 	Other projects. These include: garbage collection equipment, fiscal cadasters, cemetries, city hals,recreational facilities, tourism projects, technical and professional services. 

SOURCE: BANMA 
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is an organization in desperate need of major reform.
 
Forgetting development goals, Bank officials must
 
immediately address the liquidity crises and begin
 
to manage cash and liquid assets in an efficient man­
ner... Internal reform should be the goai for the
 
immediate future...BANMA officials must decide to
 
concentrate exclusively on either municipal or commer­
cial banking, but not both."
 

The report stated BANNA's internal banking systems were
 
disorderly and accounting was not only behind operations,

but much of it was incorrect. This report also noted that
 
with its low initial capitalization and inadequate provision

for continuing revenues, the Bank under the best of circum­
stances would have had a difficult time achieving a self-sus­
taining level of operations.
 

The report concluded that BANMA, as it was functioning,

could not be considered a fit candidate for an external ...ca­
pitalization loan. Immediate reform was recommended along
 
the following lines:
 

- Stop commercial lending and liquidate the commercial 
portfolio; 

- Separate from the management and financial obligations 
of the San Pedro Sula airport; 

- Straighten out internal operations, install a modern 
accounting system; put accounts in order; initiate an 
agressive collection effort; install a general program
of modern management; reduce overhead and bring ope­
rating costs within manageable limits; 

- Develop a forward looking program of municipal lend­
ing that could provide the basis for an external ca­
pitalization loan;
 

- Develop a technical assistance capability to assure
 
the soundness of project analysis, execution, and ma­
nagement (and assure BANMA of loan repayments through
 
increased revenues).
 

BANMA's management accepted these findings and reques­
ted technical assistance to assist it in accomplishing t',
 
recommended reforms. The BANMA Reform Program
 
(No. 522-15-810-03410) was approved November 15, 1972 for one
 
year and a Pro/Ag was signed 2/28/73 providing the following
 
assistance:
 



__ 

__ 
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FY 73 
 FY 74
"ersonnel 
 84.2 $ 95.
 
Banking Systems Adv. 
 25.5/12MM 27/12MM
 
Economist 
 22.5/12MM 

Municipal Cap. Projects Adv. 
 20.2/6MM 50/18MM
 
Training Advisors 
 16.0/3MM 18/12MM
 
Equipment Advisor I/ 
 (33.3/15MM) (28/12MM)
 

Participant Training 
 1.2 
 20.0
 
Management Personnel 2/ 
 A1.2 
 12/10MM

Technical Operations Staff 
 _ 
 8/8MM
 

Other Costs 
 24.6 
 29.0
 
In-country Training

(inclu PAIGH Seminar) 

29.0
12.3 

Municipal Survey 
 6.0 _.
 
Short-term Advisors 
 6.3 


TOTAL $ 110.0 
 $ 144.0
 
In September of 1973 
a PAR was conducted. 
 On the basis
of progress documented by the PAR, funding for the project
was extended through FY 74. 
 Since the initiation of the TA
project BANMA with the assistance of USAID-financed advisors
has instituted the following reforms:
 

i. The municipal portfolio was 
analyzed and 
a large
portion of past due bonds and loans have been col­lected or refinanced. 
 (See Annex II, Exhibit 5).
 

ii. The BANMA's short-term debt to 
the National port
Authority has been consolidated into a long-term

debt of $1.85 
million payable between 1974-1981

(See Annex IV, Projected Cash Flow Statement),
freeing for municipal lending approximately $1.2
million previously earmarked for paying these short­
term obligations.
 

I/ Non-add: 
 funded from USAID Tech Support
 
2/ Participant training $13,800/i6MM from prior year funds.
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iii. 
 GOH Decree No. 110 of 3/1/74 transfers the owner­ship and management of the San Pedro Sula Airportt
outstanding debt of $1.7 million. 	 s
 
This outstanding
debt constituted 
a BANNA contingent liability and
the CAB-FAA studies indicated that the airport fa­cility probably could not generate sufficient sur­plus to 
service and retire this. outstanding debt.
In addition, Decree No. 110 provides that the BANMA
will be reimbursed over the next ten years for con"
struction advances totalling $900,000 
as part of
the GOH's counterpart contribution to the BANMA.
 

iv. After serious efforts to 
sell the commercial port­folio 	to commercial banks proved fruitless BANMA
embarked 
on an 
agressive collection policy and the
writing off of uncollectable loans 
as sumarized in
Annex II, Exhibit 6. The commercial portfolio has
decreased from $1,436,000 on January 1, 1972, to
$623,000 on 
March 1, 1974, a reduction of almost
57%. It is anticipated that while future collections
may be slower, by 
1977 the commercial portfolio will

have 
a zero balance.
 

v. 
BANMA has reduced its personnel by over 1/3,

70 to 46 employees. 	

from
 
In part this was accomplished
by the closing of its San Isidro Market Branch in
Tegucigalpa which handled only commercial loans.
Further reduction is 
not considered feasible.
 

vi. 
 A nucleus municipal development staif has been
trained. 
 A group of four young pro'dssionals have
received training in the U.S. and other Latin Ame­rican 	countries. 
 The Bank's top executives have
observed the workings of similar institutions in
Costa 	Rica 
and Guatemala. A training program for
municipal officials and employees has been initia­
ted.
 

vii. 	 DANMA has developed a lending program of high pri&.*
ority projects in 38 municipios, including all po­lar and sub-polar municipios but with special em­phasis on GOH ag-sector priority areas. 
 (see illus­
trative Project List).
 

viii. 
 A set of municipal lending criteria has been deve­loped, guided by the pole/sub-pole framework, includ­ing a variable interest rate structure and identi­
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fications of priorities., New financial and credit
 
policies have been developed and approved by, BANMA
 
management.
 

iv. 	BANMA has established a new organizational struc­
ture which reflects its role 
as a municipal deve­
lopment bank, and has improved its top-level ad­
ministration and technical assistance.
 

In short, BANMA has resolved its liquidity crisls, dis­
dosed of those functions not properly those of a municipal
bank, and reorganized as a municipal bank. It 
is now ready

to 
initiate a municipal financial and technical assistance
 
program of nationwide scope.
 

2. 	The BANMA Image
 

BANMA has come 
a long way towards regaining the confi­
dence of municipal officials. 
 This increase in confidence
 
is due principally to BANMA's reorientation. Frequent discus­
sions between BANMA officers and municipal officials have
helped municipal officials understand BANMA's institutional
 
problems and the measures 
being taken to overcome them.

BANMA's municipal training and the municipal survey have made
 
a favorable impression. The presence of the BANMA TA staff
and the high quality of their work have had a positive impact.

BANMA management feels certain that when the Bank has suffi­
cient lending 
resources it will regain the confidence of the
municipalities. Discussions with various mayors have confirm­
ed this. They are willing, for example, to 
honor past purchase

obligations for BANMA shares as 
a precondition to new loans.
 

BANMA's leadership in the promotion of interinstitutional
 
cooperation to reduce duplications of effort and to keep the
 cost of providing needed infrastructure low has significantly

improved the institution's image among other entities of the

Honduran national government. 
 Moreover, BANMA overcoming its
liquidity crisis, 
its basic institutional reorientation, the
 
support for the reform program at the highest levels of govern­
ment, the 
new seriousness in the institution, a.s well as h.I.D.
 support and the prospect of recapitalization have all contri­
buted to a new image among decision makers -n the GOH and in
 
the 	Honduran banking community.
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D. 
 PROGRAM JUSTIFICATION
 

1. National Development Priorities
 

The Honduran socio-economic situation is marked by the
following interrelated characteristics:
 
- Low productivity in general, but especially in thetraditional, small producer segment of the ruraleconomy which contains more than 50% of the nation's


labor force;
 

- High dependence on export crops with limited markets
and extreme vulnerability to climatic conditions;.
 
-
 Limited internal demand fo 
 agricultural products;
 

-
 Skewed income distribution;
 

- Poor utilization of limited productive land re­
sources 
and high concentration of ownership;
 

-
 Limited basic infrastructure, especially roads,
 
ports, and electrical energy;
 

- Rapid growth of the rural population coupled with
limited employment opportunities in the non-agrarian
sectors of the economy has resulted in a sharp de­crease in the amount of agricultural land available
 
per farmer;
 

- The small producer has not shared in the benefits
of the limited economic growth that has occurred
and probably has suffered a reduction in real
 
income.
 

Over the last ten years Government programs have concen­trated on 
costly projects aimed at 
overcoming basic infra­structure deficiencies. 
 These programs have absorbed a
large proportion of Honduras' investment budget and two
thirds of all international agency lending. 
 While expansion
of basic infrastructure has been significant, it has become
obvious to government planners and high officials that
complementary investment in government services and
facilities related to agricultural production and the re­solution of the land productivity/ten~ncy problems are
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needed to realize the full potential of those Infrastructure
 
investments.
 

When the present government came to power in December
of 1972, the campesino's situation was particularly severe.
Drought, disputes over land ownership and use, and the
general neglect of the needs of the campesino were causing
widespread disruption of productive activities. To alleviate
the 	immediate problem an 
interim land redistribution program
was 	initiated under Decree No. 
8. 	Longer range programs
are 	under development and will be presented as 
part of the
new National Development Plan, 1974-1978, which is scheduled
 
to be released by June.
 

In his new year's address to the nation on January 1,
1974, the Chief uf State presented the explicit goals of the
Plan. They include, among others:
 

a) 	Ensuring each person a level of in..ome adequate

to basic needs;
 

b) 
Lowering permanently the level of unemployment and
 
underemployment;
 

c) 	Improving the quality of life for the rural popula­
t.on;
 

d) 
Achieving a more equitable distribution of income
 
and assets; and
 

e) 	Transforming the productive structure to diversify

it to achieve a sustained growth in national
 
production.
 

The 	Plan has been completed in draft and is presently
undergoing revision by the Council of State. 
 Although details
of the prograr are consequently not fixed, the broad out­
lines are clear:
 

1) The Plan will siow a marked shift in GOH priorities
towards the development of the agricultural and forestry
sectors, with these sectors to receive a higher percentage
of national investment. The agricultural sector program
will consolidate and extend the ongoing agrarian reform
effort, including the reorganization of many existing
settlements (asentamientos) under Decree No. 8 into
cooperatives, the continuation of the Agtin Valley coloniza­



-29­

tion programs, and credit and technical assistance programs
 

for campesino settlements. In addition to the Agrarian
 

Reform Program, the agricultural sector program contemplates
 

increased extension services and supervised credit, grain
 

storage and price stabilization, ii-rigation, livestock
 

promotion, several regional development projects, and
 

diversified crop production.
 

2) Planned investment in basic infrastructure such as
 

transport, energy, and port facilities will necessarily
 
n,.in i.h, but wiLL decrease in relative importance and will 

m,.'t :.:ec Ly s 7pertive of the productive sector (i.e. 
cvr roads, Fac-ities related to agricultural and
 

industrial projects, etc).
 

3) Industrial projects will be more resource-based
 
than in the past (i.e. emphasizing the transformation of
 
mineral resources and agricultural and forestry products).
 

4) The social sectors (health, education, etc.) will
 

place greater emphasis on nutrition and preventive medicine,
 

and on vocational and other productivity linked education.
 

5) The GOH regional development framework will be
 
incorporated into the majority of the Plan's sectoral
 
programs.
 

6) A new program is included for strengthening the
 
capacity of local governments to execute local infrastructure
 

projects by means of financial and technical assistance
 

channeled through BANMA.
 

2. BANMA's Role in the National Development Prog'am
 

In order to carry out its program for strengthening the
 

capacity of local governments to execute local infrastructure
 
govarnment considered three alternatives:
nrojects, the new 


- Capitalizing the Municipal Bank (BANMA);
 

- Expanding the activities of the Central Bank in the
 

municipal lending field;
 

- Directly improving local infrastructure through the
 

GOH ministries and autonomous institutions.
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The successes of the ongoing A.I.D.-supported SANHA
 
reform program, the desirability of properly supervised

credit programs, and the reports of improved performance

from BANKA's Board of Directors convinced the Government
 
to utilize BANMA. Since then (October, 1973) the pace
of the BANMA reform program increased markedly. The transfer
 
of the San Pedro Sula airport on terms favorable to BANMA

has been completed, the relatively high counterpart re­quirements for the Loan were accepted, and heads of key

Government agencies such as the Central Bank and the

Planning Council, who had formerly avoided involvement in

BANMA's reorganization, have offered their assistance to
 
the Bank.
 

The Government intends to utilize BANMA to help the
municipalities help themselves in providing high priority

local infrastructure and services, rather than attempting

to meet these needs directly. By using BANMA to develop

more capable local governments, the national government
 
can turn its limited administrative and financial capacity

to projects whose scope in fact requires its direct action.
 
This Project will channel in accordance with Plan priorities
municipal 
resources that might otherwise be dissipated in
lower pric ity projects and current expenditures. To the
 
extent 
thac the project is effective in improving local
 tax collections and administration, additional resources
 
will become available for local infrastructure projects

and needed public services.
 

3. BANMA Lending Strategy
 

In order to distribute rationally its limited resources
 
and yet support national development goals, BANMA has

employed the regional planning framework established by

the National Planning Council to develop its sublending

program. The GOH Planning Council has divided the country

into regions and subregions and within these has designated

certain cities and towns as 
growth poles and service poles.

The regions and poles are:
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Region Ho. Poles No. Nams of Regions/Poles
 

1. 	Central Urban/ Tegucigalpa, San Pedro
 
America (2) Industrial (2) Sula
 

2. 	Region (10) Agricultural La Ceiba, Choluteca,
 
Service 	 (6) Santa Rosa, Comayagua,
 

Juticalpa, Danll
 
3. 	Subregion (30) Subpoles (21) (See Map I-I)
 

Note: In the Planning Council scheme urban-industrial
 
poles also function as agricultural service poles
 
and these service poles in turn function as sub­
poles. Thus there are 8 service poles including
 
Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula.
 

The 	principal criteria used in defining these regions
 
are the flows of money, goods, and services and communica­
tions between the regional center (pole) and its hinterland.
 
The 	pole serves its area of influence as its, center of
 
internal communication, its marketing center, its supply
 
center, its social center, etc. Similarly, the pole depends
 
on the hinterland as 	its source of raw materials, its market,
 
etc.
 

Implicit in the regionalization scheme and thus BANMA's
 
lending strategy is Lloyd Rodwins "dispersed concentration"
 
strategy which suggests that efforts be focused on potential

growth centers as well as in active development poles.
 
Even though this implies some loss in overall growth, it
 
makes possible the extinsion of the benefits of growth to 
a
 
greater proportion of the population, while avoiding

excessive dispersion which would make it difficult to generate
 
and utilize external and scale economies which accompany
 
concentration and make sustained growth possible..
 

BANMA will coucentrate its lending on the six polar
 
and twenty-one subpolar municipios throughout the country

which serve their areas of influence as agricultural
 
service centers. This concentration of resources will permit
 
a project scope that is neith too broad nor so restrictive
 
as to totally eliminate areasr0f the country where political
 
realities, substantial effective demand for lending re­
sources, or localized development potential justify sub­
lending. The concentration will also maximize BANMA's
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contribution towards the achievement of national develop­
ment objectives. 
 The policy has the further advantage of

concentrating sublending in 
areas whose debt service
 
capacity can support a lending program.
 

Not surprisingly, the 27 agricultural service poles

and subpoles tend to be located in the most productive

agricultural areas of the country (See Map No. 1, Annex I).

Almoat all of them serve valley areas that have good

agricultural potential. In addition, they service the
 
areas of highest concentration of rural population (See
Map No. 2, Annex I). A breakdown of the population by

regions and by polar, sub-polar and other municipiosis

presented in Annex I, Table 6.
 

The regional distribution of planned BANMA sublending

follows closely the regional distribution of programmed

GOH agricultural sector investment under the Plan a-d the

spatial distributions of the rural population and of

Honduras' cultivable land. 
 These regional distributions
 
are shown in Table 1-7.
 

4. Beneficiary
 

This project will most directly benefit Hondurans who

depend on the country's agricultural base for earning 
a
living. The target 
's the rural Honduran citizen and his

family who receive basic public service from local govern­
ment. 
 This citizen is both the townsman who earns his

living by servicing the community's agricultural base and

the producer for whom local government develops infra­structure to enable him to more easily sell, transport,

and process his production. As indicated previously, with

the exception of Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula, Honduran

counties are overwhelmingly rural. 
 The urban areas of

San Pedro Sula and Tegucigalpa will not be eligible to 
re­ceive subloans under this project; however, the rural areas

under their jurisdiction will be eligible.
 

The infrastructure and services developed under this
Loan will help improve the standard of living for rural

inhabitants and townsmen living in or within the areas of
influence of 27 agricultural service poles and subpolea.

This project will strengthen the financial base and general

administrative capacity of these key county governments and
 



TABLE No. 
1-7 DISTRIBUTION BY HONDURAN GEO-
 ECONOMIC REGIONS OF:
1974-1978 PROGRAMMED LOCATABLE PULIC INVEST..T IN AGRICULTURAL SETOR
PLANNED BANMA INVESTMENT 
 1974-1977; RURAL POPULATION; 
AND CULTIVABLE
 

LAND
 

Region 


Tegucigalpa 


San Pedro Sula 


La Ceiba 

Choluteca 


Sta.Rosa de 
Copfn 


Comayagua 


Juticalpa 


Danll 


racias a Dios 


Congoldn 


Honduras, Total 


(1). 


Programmed Public 

Investment in 


Agricultural Sec-

tor 


5.6 


36.5 


24.7 

11.0 


7.9 


0.2 


11.2 


2.2 


0.7 


100.0 


(2) 


Planned 	BANMA 

Investment 


(%) 

3.3 


35.1 


22.8 

10.3 


7.4 


4.9 


3.9 


12.3 


-


-


100.0 


(3) 


Rural Popula-

tion, 1973 


(%) 

8.5 


21.5 


11.6 

17.6 


12.5 


10.7 


4.3 


5.7 


0.9 


6.7 


100.0 


(4) " 


Cultivable 
Land (%) 

4.1 


15.0 


18.7 

6.1 


7.0 


11.3 


13.5 


8.0 


14.5 


1.8 


100.0 

SOURCE: National Planning Council (Items 1, 3 and 4) and BANMA (Item 2).
 

(5)
 

Index Combining
 
Rural Population
 

and
 
and cultivable
 

3.4
 

31.6 


21.3
 
10.5
 

8.6
 

11.9
 

5.7
 

4.5
 

1.3
 

1.2
 

100.0
 

C 
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provide needed infrastructure 
so that they
their function as can better perform
agricultural sorvice centers. 
 In addition,
the Loan will create employment in construction
in the maintenance and operation of municipal services and
facilities in these centers, which may to some degree slow
migration to larger urban areas. 
 In order to maintain the
 

as well as
 

emphasis on improving the capacity of the regional and
subregional poles to function as 
agricultural service
centers for their hinterlands, BANMA is giving priority
under the Project to the financing of sub-projects which
clearly benefit the agricultural producer, e.g.
slaughterhouses, markets,
access roads. Specifically excluded from
project lending are those projects which clearly have
minimum benefits for the producer, i.e.,
garbage collection, town halls, 
street paving,


cemeteries, and parks.
 

5. 
Place in Country Program
 

The latest Development Assistance Program statement
prepared by the Mission states that A.I.D.'s principal area
of concentration in Honduras will be rural development,
focussed specifically 
on
standards of the rural man. 

improving the socio-economic
 

In order to 
carry out 
its rural
development program, the Mission is proposing an agricultural
sector loan (which will finance the following activities:
agricultural credit, sector coordination, planning and
evaluation, agricultural services, agricultural education
and access 
roads), 
a national cadaster loan, technical
assistance to key agricultural institutions, and the BANMA
project. 
 These new 
programs will complement the existing
A.I.D. projects, mainly a farm-to-market 
access
a grain marketing program, and 
road loan,
 

a credit program.
 
The proposed Loan complements these activities in that
it focuses on 
(a) improving the functioning of regional
agro-service and marketing centers, (b) improving municipio
provided services and facilities which affect the standard
of living of rural inhabitants, and (c) improving the
general functioning of the governmental units closest to the
Honduran rural dweller. 
 It is
the another approach to reaching
"rural man" although it cannot be limited to 
supporting
only small producers since it will assist both large rural
producers as well 
as 
town dwellers. 
 While there is
of institutional capacity in Honduras for servicing the
small producer, this Project is 
an attempt to strengthen
 

a lack
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another institution, the municipio, with responsibilities

for providing services to rural residents.
 

6. Consistency with CIAP Recommendations and IBRD Country
Stud
 

While the current CIAP report (May, 1973) did not deal
 
specifically with Honduran municipal development, the CIAP re­
presentative'attending the DAEC review of the BANMA IRR in
 
February, 1974 stated that the BANHA project was considered
 
of high priority and consistent with CIAP recommendations.
 

The latest draft World Bank macroeconomic report (dated

January 8, 1974) contains no specific reference to either
 
municipal development or the BANMA project. It approvingly

notes, however, the 
intent of the GOH to concentrate its
 
efforts on development of agriculture. It later recommends
 
that the Governpent improve the utilization of capital

investments, undertaking such measures as 
building more
 
feeder roads to complement the existing major road network.
 
This project is in line with both IBRD recommendations.
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SECTION II THE PROJECT
 

A. GOAL AND PURPOSE
 

The overall goal of the project is to improve the quali­
ty of life for the rural man by providing him the basic pu­
blic services essential to a minimally,acceptable standard
 
of living and the infrastructure which will assist him in
 
reaching his production potential. Within this context the
 
specific purposes of the project are to (4) complete the BANMk'
 
reform and enable it to provide financing and technical assis­
tance on a systematic, continuing basis for municipal projects

of benefit to the rural man; and (2) improve the
 
capacity of the governments of the 27 ruralpolar and subpolar

counties to function effectively as agricultural service cen­
ters.
 

Honduras is basically rural. Agricultural activities
 
directly contribute 36% of the Gross Domestic Product and
 
73% of the population lives in the countryside. Outside of
 
Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula, it is a country of a few large

towns (ten) and many small ones. Public services are non­
existent or inadequate. The economy operates at a low level
 
of productivity relative to its resource base. 
 One of the
 
reasons for this low productivity is the low level of infras­
tructure development. The lack of access roads, markets,

slaughterhouses, and storage and distribution facilities keeps

the producer isolated, increases his costs, decreases his in­
come and in general restricts his production potential.
 

The county governments, with their county seats serving
 
as agricultural service centers and marketing centers for
 
rural areas, play the key role in developing local infrastruc­
ture and providing municipal services. 
 Twenty-seven of these
 
county seats have been identified by the Central Government
 
as 
development poles serving the agricultural areas around
 
them. This Project calls for strengthening the capacitv of
 
these key counties to function as service centers.
 

In addition, the Project should enhance local decision­
making capabilities and spur the mobilization of resources
 
for local development, thereby releasing central government
 
management for national requirements. The infrastructure de­
veloped under the loan will create jobs in construction as
 
well as in maintenance and operation of municipal services.
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B. 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
 

1. General
 

The Project consists of strengthening the BANMA's insti­tutional capacity and providing it with sufficient resources
to carry out 
an 
expanded lend ing and technical assistance
program for county governments. 
 It includes: 
 (aY"lending
for the construction and expansion of municipal infrastructure;
(b) technical assistance and trakning to 
strengthen municipal
financial capacity and administration of loan-financed pro­jects; and 
 (c) technical assistance and training for the
BANMA staff, as well as 
necessary, equipment, to 
complete the
Bank's reform program. 
 The A.I.D. loan will provide credit
and training for the municipalities; and technical assi'stance,
training and equipment for the Bank.
 

BANMA will place about 90% 
of its lending under the Pro­ject in 
the 27 polar and subpolar municipios.
Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula will be 
The cities of
 

excluded from the Pro­ject, although rural 
areas surrounding them will be
The Bank may lend to eligible.
any local government with its
ces own resour­not committed to 
the Project. 
 It is expected that
BANMA develops its as
own 
capacity it will gradually expand its
coverage to 
a larger number of municipalities.
provide BANMA with an 
The Loan will
adequate capital base to 
maintain a
portfol]- which will generate sufficient income to
rating costs cover ope­and sustain 
a technical assistance program.
 

Technical assistance and training will be tied directly
to the Bank's lending. Loan applications are considered in
the light of a municipal analysis designed to
trative or reveal adminis­financial deficiencies requiring technical assis­tance or training.
 

2. Sublending Program
 

In 
preparation for the loan BANMA has tentatively identi­fied projects totaling $18.6 
million. 
 (See Summary Table II-i
and Annex III.) In May 1973 a potential project 
survey was
taken of all polar and subpolar municipalities and other po­tential borrowers. After an
the project list was 
initial Bank eligibility check,
reviewed with other GOH agencies (ie.
ENEE, the Central Bank etc.) SANAA,
to 
exclude projects included in
their investment programs, identify new projects, and deter­mine 
the existence of feasibility or other project studies.
 

The resulting project list currently serves as 
a basis
 



i (,jT'.-: L; i3ANMA LEDI.D TOTAL PROJECTS IDENLTIFIED 

PLA: ,ED TOTAL PLANIIED TOTAL 

A. BY PROJECT TYPE CP,OJECT"S B.A . 11! COST" P.;'JECT AU MAT!VS"Ei .PROJECTCOST FINANCINGPORIO 

Market 
Slaughterhouse 
Potable Water 
Sanitary Sewerage 
Roads 
Cadaster 
Paving 
Other 

2,351.S 
88.3 

1,u7.7 
-0-

1,'443.0 
534.3 
-0-
232.3 

1,998.1 
415.0 

1,256.0 
-0-

1,226.5 
451.4 
-0-
197.5 

-0-
-0-
626.4 

1,130.1 
-0-
-0-

1,770.2 
42.0 

-0-
-0-
523.2 
960,1 
-0-
-0-

1,504.8 
35.7 

2,381.8 
500.8 

2,604.1 
3,096.0 
2,015.0 

534.3 
6,224.4 
1,292.7 

2,023.6 
425.6 

2,204.2 
2,631.1 
1,712.7 

451.4 
5,290.9 
1,098.9 

TOTAL 6,527.4 5,544.5 3,568.7 3,023.8 18,649.1 15,838.4 

B. BY POLE, SUB-POLE 
AND OTHER 

Pole 
Sub-Pole 
Other 

Regional 1/ 

2,095.5 
2,739.6 

249.4 

1,442.9 

1,780.2 
2,325.8 

212.0 

1,226.5 

1,240.0 
1,835.2 
493.5 

-0-

1,054.0 
1,559.9 

409.9 

-0-

5,261.9 
9,568.9 
1,803.4 

2,014.9 

4,471.7 
8,130.7 
1,523.3 

1,712.7 

TOTAL 6,527.4 5,54u.5 3,568.7 3,023.8 18,649.1 15,838.4 

C. BY REGION 

Tegucigalpa 
San Pedro Sula 
La Ceiba 
Choluteca 
Santa Rosa de CopIn 
Comayagua 
Juticalpa 
Danll 

333.9 
2,450.9 
1,672.3 

486.7 
515.9 
346.4 
235.7 
485.6 

293.8 
2,080.6 
1,421.3 

413.7 
438.5 
293.5 
200.3 
412.8 

-0-
1,091.0 

624.6 
555.0 
238.0 
150.1 
152.5 
757.5 

-0-
927.0 
530.9 
471.8 
193.1 
127.6 
129.6 
643.9 

333.9 
7,766.2 
3,318.2 
1,607.0 

933.9 
1,721.3 
1,365.9 
1,602.7 

283.8 
6,598.3 
2,820.2 
1,366.0 

784.6 
1,462.2 
1,160.9 
1,362.4 

TOTAL 6,527.4 5,544.5 3,568.7 3,023.9 18,649.1 15,838.4 

1/ Intermunicipal Coops 

SOURCE: BANIIA 
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for programing the Bankts lending operations, taking into
 account project priority and readiness, and for planning the
Bank's technical assistance activities. The Technical Ser­vices staff has recently initiated a round of visits to con­duct municipal analyses and prepare loan applications. So
far the 1973 survey appears reliable. The 135 projects
($18,6 million) identified to date imply financing of $15.8
million. Of these, 67 requiring $5.5 million in 
Bank finan­cing ($3.5 million from the A.I.D. loan) have been tentatively

selected for the Project.
 

Any municipal project 
is considered eligible with the
specific exception 
 of street paving, garbage collection,
town halls, cemeteries, and parks. 
These have been eliminated because
they hold munimum benefits for the producer and the function­ing of the municipio as an agricultural service center. Pro­posals holding the highest priority include:
 

i) Municipal Tax Administration ($0.5 million 
- 24 sub­
loans)
 

BANMA intends to finance the development of local tax
billing, accounting and collection systems. 
 Based
 
on 
low precision property mapping and assessments,

tax billing systems may be installed under which

bills will be delivered to 

tax
 
each house or business
 on a bi-monthly or quarterly basis. 
 Muni'-ipal incomes
 

are expected to increase between 20% 
and 50% over
the following two years, thus ensuring sub-loan 
re­payment and creating the income base for 
further in­
vestment.
 

ii) Markets and Slaughterhouses ($2.4 million 
- 22 sub­
loans)
 

This includes financing for 13 markets and 9 slaugh­terhouses. 
 The markets will have refrigeration faci­lities, storage facilities for agricultural products,

and sufficient 
land for eventual expansion or incor­
poration of small wholesaling operations.
 

iii) Roads ($1.2 million - 9 sub-loans)
 

These will consist of access 
road and town street

maintenance and improvement, and perhaps some access

road construction. Road maintenance and improvement

will be carried out through intermunicipal coopera­
tives. 
 BANMA will finance intermunicipal cooperative
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equipment packages consisting of a tractor, motor­
grader, loader and dump trucks. In addition the
 
Bank will make equipment loans to individual muni­
cipalities.
 

iv) 
 Potable Water Systems ($1.2 million- 5 s'ub-loans)
 

Direct loans will be made to municipalities owning
 
their water systems. They will sign contracts with
 
SANAA for administration, operation and maintenance
 
of the systems. In cases where SANTAA owns the muni­
cipal water system, BANMA is considering financing
 
their improvement if an-agreement can be reached on
 
allowing the municipality some cash return on 
its
 
investment.
 

v) Other Projects ($0.2 million - 7 sub-loans)
 

This category includes bridges (2), transport termi­
nals (1), rura.l electrification (3), and facilities
 
for storage of agricultural products (1). The rural
 
electrification systems will probably be 
administe­
red by the National Electric Energy Authority (ENEE)

under contract to the municipality. The facility
 
for storage of agricultural projects will be viewed
 
as a pilot proj.ect.
 

In addition to the 67 
sub-loan projects described above,
 
BANMA plans to finance from its own resources approximately
 
34 other projects requiring $3.0 in financing during the life
 
of the Project. These are shown under "Other BANMA Lending"
 
in Table II-i.
 

3. Municipal Technical Assistance Program
 

BANMA intends to provide 
technical assistance and train­
ing to the municipalities in three ways: i) directly by

BANMA staff; ii) through the ongoing municipal training pro­
gram; and iii) through personnel from other agencies. The
 
A.I.D. loan would provide $110,000 for the municipal training program.
 

a) Staff Technical Assistance
 

Technical assistance at no charge to the municipalities
 
will be provided by BANMA's 
Technical Services Department in
 
the areas listed below. In order to minimize staff require­
ments initially, BANMA will restrict its 
staff technical assis­
tance to 
those areas related to the sublending program.
 
These include:
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* 	 Municipal administrative/economic analyses 

* 	 Municipal debt capacity- study preparation
 

* 	 Municipal capital improvements programming 

* 	 Preparation of loan applications to BANMA
 

* 	 Helping to meet conditions precedent to loan disbursement 

* 	 Preparing project administration and maintenance plans as
 

required by BANMA.
 

Setting up separate accounting systems for loan funded
 
projects
 

* 	 Carrying out public bidding on loa funded projects
 

* 	 Adjudication and preparation of sub-contracts
 

* 	 Familiarization of municipal officials with BANMA policies,
 

procedures and regulations.
 

* 	 Contracting with construction firms
 

* 	 Organization of tax administration system projects.
 

Preparing equipment specifications and parts orders;
 
operating and maintaining equipment.
 

Organizing inter-municipal associations for the initial
 
purpose of providing street and r'ad maintenance services
 
on a low-cost, wide coverage basic.
 

* 	 Assistance in locating grant funds for projects in munici­
palities vi.th insufficient or no debt capacity.
 

* 	 General assistance in local government organization, opera­

tion, and administration.
 

During March 1974 the Technical Services group spent three weeks
 

assisting various municipalities in preparing analyses, debt
 

capacity studies, and loan applications. It is expected that
 

this rhythm will be maintained, thus ensuring that in the
 

space of a year the team will have visited ea:h member of the
 

client group of municipalities at least once. After the muni­
cipal analysis, short follow-up visits by one or two team mem­

bers may be scheduled if needed to attend municipal council
 

meetings to discuss project funding applications and further
 

TA 	requirements.
 

b) Training Program for Municipal Officials and Employees
 

Last September, the Bank began a program with the Minis­

tries of Public Works and Government for training municipal
 
officials and employees. The program is designed to provide
 



a basic knowledge of municipal administration, including:
 
proper fund accounting and budgeting4 operation of local plan­
ning councils, administration and maintenance of public ser­
vices, tax accounting and collection, and civil regijtry re­
cording. Coordination, planning, and selection of partici­
pants is done by the Ministry of Government. BANMA and the
 
Ministry of Public Works contribute their personnel as ins­
tructors. Personnel from other agencies, e.g. SANAA, Fores­
try Corporation, and Ministries are invited to serve as ins­
tructors in their respective fields of competence.
 

Courses for more than 150 mayors and other municipal
 
officials have been held so far on subjects including muni-­
cipal tax administration, information systems and basic opera­
tions. The program has been received enthusiastically by
 
the municipalities and the Bank proposes to continue funding
 
it under the Loan when present funding runs out in July 1974.
 
Loan funds would be used for short ttm consulting instruc­
tors, participant per diem and operating costs.
 

In addition to participating in the training program,
 
the Technical Services Department has prepared various tech­
aical pamphlets for municipal officials and employees. Among
 
the pamphlets prepared and distributed are:
 

Nomenclacure (street naming and house numbering)
 
Systems: How to prepare a nomenclature system for
 
your municipality.
 

* Guide for planning municipal cadasters 

Personnel administration in the municipality 

* Calculating municipal debt capacity 
The formation of intermunicipal associations and
 
municipal road maintenance and improvement programs
 

* Model statutes for intermunicipal associations.
 

c) Technical Assistance Provided by Other Agencies
 

There are a number of central government agencies provi­
ding technical assistance to municipalities. BANMA has
 
entered into agreements with several to provide assistance for
 
Bank-financed projects. SANAA will provide design and super­
vision for water works: the Ministry of Public Works will do
 
likewise for other municipal infrastructure _projects. In addi­
tion, BANMA will attempt to locate appropriate tachnical ser­
vices for project types where no agreements exist. The Bank
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considers th.is 
function important, and 
is making a serious
 
effort to identify all such. services available.
 

4. BANMA Technical Assistance
 

Technical assistance to BANMA in the amount of $440,000
is contemplated for loan financing:
 

a. 
Training of BANMA Employees ($40,000)
 

New BANMA employees will receive training through observa­tion and on 
the job in other Latin American municipal develop­ment institutions. 
 This is a continuation, through use of
Loan funds, of the successful training begun under an 
A.I.D.
grant. 
 Also fellowships and/or partially paid opportunities
for advanced degree programs would be offered to 
a few indi­viduals for training in the following areas:
 

Urban Planning and Capital Improvements Programming
 
Municipal Administration
 

Public Works and Administration
 

Regional Economic Development
 

Recipients of these 
fellowships will commit themselves
to work for the Bank for twice the period of duration of the
fellowship, and in any 
case for at least two years after com­pleting their advanced degree. 
 The scholarships program will

be administered by EDUCREDITO.
 

b. Technical Assistance 
to BANMA ($400,000)
 

To further improve operations and develop technical assis­tance expertise in new areas BANMA plans to 
contract the follow­
ing advisors;
 

Capital Projects Advisor
 

He would advise Bank officials and staff on 
all aspects
of its lending and technical assistance program, and identify
such additional advisory services as 
the bank may need, in
large part carrying on 
the functions of the present grant-funded

Capital Projects Advisor.
 

Tax Administration Advisor
 

He would continue to 
train the Bank's tax administration
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project supervisors and assist in the design of individual projects.
 

Equipment 	Advisor
 

Should the expected number of road maintenance and improvement projects,
 
either on a cooperative or individual municipality basis, materialize an
 
equipment advisor would be hired to train the Bank's staff to organize and
 
supervise these projects.
 

Marketing 	Advisor
 

The marketing advisor would train the Bank's staff in analyzing
 
the marketing implications of the Bank's slaughterhouse and market sub­
projects particularly as they affect the low income producer. Such
 
analysis would also include the implications of the national and regional
 
marketing systems on the particular subproject being considered.
 

Other Short Term Advisors
 

Short term advisors would be contracted for specific tasks.
 
Among tasks that can be foreseen at this time are further development
 
of management information syste-ms, social welfare aspects of project
 
appraisal, and procurement procedures.
 

Evaluation
 

The services of an evaluation team will be contracted with Loan
 
funds to assist as des ribed in Section V.B. In addition, annual
 
independent audits will be contracted.
 

5. BANMA 	Sublending Priorities
 

In its Financial Policy (Annex III, Exhibit 4) BANMA.assigns a
 
general order of priority to subprojects it is willing to consider for
 
financing. These priorities are further reinforced by its interest rate
 
structure as outlined in its Credit Policy (Annex III, Exhibit 3). Sub­
projects are classified by project tye as follows:
 

Class A. 	Projects that directly improve the efficiency of the produc­
tion and distribution c¢ agricultural products; e.g. markets,
 
slaughterhouses, access roads to areas of high agricultural
 
production, road maintenance and improvement, bridges, and
 
storage facilities for agricultural products.
 

Class B. 	Projects that indirectly improve the efficiency of the pro­
duction and distribution of agricultural products, e.g.
 
potable water systems, sewage, electrical energy, preparation
 
of industriel sites, transport terminals, health centers,
 
rural schoo.Ls. 

Class C. 	Projects having marginal affects on agricultural productivuity:
 
street paving, storm drainage, shopping centers.
 

Class D. 	Other Projects. These include: garbage collection
 

http:schoo.Ls
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equipment, tax administration, cemeteries, city
 
halls, recreational facilities, tourism projects,
 
technical and professional services.
 

In general BANMA considers class A and B projects high
 
priority and class C and D pr6Jec-ts low priority. AID fuhds will 
finance class A&B projects and tax administration projects. The Bank's 
financial policy calls for the following priorities in terms of amount of 
portfolio invested in each class.
 

Class A 40-50%
 

Class B 30-40%
 

Class C 10-30%
 

Class D 0-15%
 

Based on the preliminary sub-project survey and most
 
recent indications of municipal interest, BANMA's portfolio
 
at the end of the Project is expected to lock as follows:
 

Sub-Projects in:
 
A.I.D. Loan Other Lendin Total 

Amount I_ Amount _ Amount % 

Class A 3.6 66 -0- -0- 3.6 42
 

Class B 1.5 26 1.4 49 2.9 34
 

Class C -0- 0 1.5 50 1.5 18
 

Class D 0.4 8 0.1 1 0.5 6
 

TOTAL 5.5 100 3.0 100 8.5 100
 

This distribution follows the Financial Policy an!! the prio­

rity given to agricultural production and distribution.
 

C. BANMA OPERATIONS
 

1. Lending Procedure
 

BANMA has developed a procedure (see Annex III, Exhibit 5) 
to be followed in making subloans which ensures that loans are 
tied to improvements in municipal administration. As BAM4A's
 
municipal lending experience and capacity increases, the Bank will develop
 
financial techniques and procedures (e.g. loan/grant mechanisms, interest 
free loans, effective grant search procedures, project analysis csapacityp 
ectc.) to permIt-t to reach low income gfoups both in teris of subb6rrower 
(i.e. the smaller, poorer municipality) and of subprojects which benefit 
this group in the county. Progress in developing such procedures will be 
examined during the two loan progress reviews. The first step is-a 
municipal analysis. 



(a) Municipal Analysis
 

Utilizing the project list as a guide, the Technical Services Depart­
ment is visiting 40 municipalities that have sufficient income to contract
 
for sub-loans, starting with the poles and proceeding to the sub-poles
 
and then other municipalities. They will analyze the economic and
 
administrative capacity of the municipality; develop a preliminary capita
 
improvements program; and assist local government officials to prepare
 
sub-loan applications for proposed projects. A copy of the standard
 
format used in the municipal analysis is available in LA/DR files.
 

From the visit, sub-projects are identified and programmed, the
 
municipal debt capacity is calculated, training and technical assistance
 
needs are defined, and the effects of the sub-loans on projected munici­
pal budgets and debt capacity are analyzed. Where serious administra­
tive deficiencies are found, sub-loans will be conditioned to ensure
 
improvements. At this point also a tax administration project may be
 
recommended.
 

(b) Sub-Project Applications
 

The municipalities with the assistance of the Technical Services
 
Department submit loan applications to BANMA. BANMA is providing this
 
technical assistance in preparing subloan applications to ensure ade­
quate preliminary project analysis, encourage the submission of high
 
priority projects, and to gain the municipalities' confidence. Copies
 
of the loan application forms are available in LA/DR files.
 

BANMA conducts an eligibility review witn 2 weeks of receipt of an
 
application. During the eligibility review, the Technical Services
 
Department presents its recommendations to a Technical Commission
 
composed of BANMA's Manager and the three Department Chiefs. These
 
recommendations will be based on project priority, the municipalities'
 
credit history and debt capacity, municipal administrative improvement
 
efforts, and economic feasibility. For eligible projects a priority
 
is assigned, possible preconditions to be met before loan disbursement
 
are defined, additional data needed is determined, field visits are
 
scheduled, and the details of project execution are planned.
 

Eligible applications are then sent to the Finance Department
 
for detailed analysis. Loan analysts prepare a detailed economic
 
analysis of the project and a recommended financial plan as required
 
by the Bank's Credit Policy (see Annex III, Exhibit 3). At the same
 
time the engineering aspects ire reviewed by Finance Department
 
engineers and arrangements are made to correct any deficiencies. If
 
the loan amount is $50,000 or over and is to be financed from AID
 
firids, the project is forwarded to A.I.D. for approval.
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The project is 
then returned to the Technical Commission
for final review and forwarded to the Board of Directors for
final approval. 
 In the case of a project having
ue a total val­of less than $25,000 or a loan 
amount of less
it than $12,500
may be approved by

justment to 

the BANMA Manager. Any subsequent ad­a 
 loan amount originally approved by 
the Mana­ger requires approval of the Board of Directors.
 

(c) Sub-Loan Contracts
 

The contracting officer (a lawyer) prepares 
a sub-loan
contract, consisting of a standard form, (a copy is 
available
in LA/DR files), annexes, 
and necessary public deeds and other
documents required by the municipal law and
nexes civil code. An­to the sub-loan 
contract may refer to preconditions to
disbursement. standard regulations governing public bidding,
supervision of construction, and required municipal sub-loan
project accounting systems. 
 Preconditions to 
disbursement
may 
include requirements for training of municipal officials
and/or employees, bonding of municipal officials and employees,
the presentation of operation and maintenance plans according
to Bank regulations, etc. 
 The contract is
nicipality for signing. 
then sent to the m u-
The time required from receipt of sub­loan application to 
signing of sub-loan agreement is 
estima­ted to be about 90 days.
 

2. C',..dit Terms, Repayment and Execution
 

(a) Credit Terms
 

The Bank has established the 
maximum and minimum sub-loan
interest rates, 
grace periods, and maximum repayment periods
in its Credit 
Policy (Annex III, Exhibit 3). Within these limiti
the terms governing any specific subloan will depend on
analysis of the degree an
 
and on the 

to which the project is self-financing
repayment capacity of the municipality. 
 ThL finan­cing plan developed for each project will be based 
on the max­imum interest 
rate and the minimum repayment period possible
to 
allow the municipality 
a 10% average annual return on 
its
 



-49­

investment. To meet that criterion interest rates, repayment
 

period, and counterpart requirements can be adjusted within
 
the following limits:
 

Sub-Project Class 	
Maximum Repayment Counterpart
Int. 	Range Period (years) Range
 

A 
 4-10% 
 15 
 10-30%
 
B 
 5-10% 
 12 
 10-40%
 
C 
 6-10% 
 1O 
 10-50%
 
D 
 7-10% 
 10 
 10-60%
 

These limits reflect BANMA's survey of likely demand,
They may be modified as 
the Bank develops more lending experience.
The granting of any interest 
rate lower than 
6% per annum will
require 
a special justification. 
Grace periods will 
cover
the expected execution period of subloans up 
to 18 months.
The Bank intends to finance 
a maximum of 90% 
of any project,
with 	the municipality contributing the remainder. 
 The counter­part 	range indicates the relative amount of municipal support
or grant funding that may have to be 
sought. This will be
especially important in 
cases where a project will not be 
fully
sLlf-financing. 
 The Bank will accept as counterpart both cash
and in-kind contributions including those from other GOH agen­cies, local donors and international agencies. 
 BANMA will
help 	the municipalities locate appropriate 
sources of grant
funding where BANMA's softest terms fail to allow 
a priority

project to 
be financed on a self-paying basis.
 

(b) 	Repayment
 

BANMA has several methods to 
guarantee repayment of sub­
loans:
 

i) The standard sub-loan 
contract requires municipalities

to authorize BANMA to 
deduct loan repayments from mu­nicipal deposits in BANMA or 
other banks 
and will allow
BANMA to attach municipal deposits 
to cover loan repay­ments. 
 Although the municipalities are required to
maintain their accounts with BANMA, 
a large number
have 	not done so. 
 Satisfying this requirement may be­
come a condition for lending.
 

ii) 	 BANMA is testing a correspondent bank plan which will
enable it to offer checking account and other bank
services (through the offices of other public and
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priyate banks) to 
all malor Municipalities. This
system will proyide municipalities -ith 
 a convenient
meth.od of depositing thair funds 
in BANMA. 
 Until
now. this deposit requirement has 
not been met 
in
part because of the limi'ted accessibility of BANMA.
 
iii) 
 The standard sub-loan 
contract 
also 	has provision
,equiring the municipalities


bank to open a separate
account in BANMA for each. sub-loan funded pro­ject. 
 BANMA authorization is 
then 	required before
net project income 
can be transferred to the munici­pal budget.
 

(c) 	Sub-Project Execution
 

Execution of all sub-loans will be-supervised.
tion projects will be 	 Construc­supervised by agreement with the appro­priate GOH agency or by 
contract with
Intermunicipal road maintenance 
a consulting engineer.


cooperatives and 
tax administra­tion 	projects will be supervised by the BANMA staff.
 
Procurementof materials, equipment, goods,
tion and consulting services of less 

and construc­
rried out 	 than $5,000 will be
employing good 	 ca­commercial practice
more quotations from reputable firms. 

i.e.: three or
 
Procurement of goods
over 	$5,000 will be 
carried out
bidding. by advertised, competitive
Procurement of consulting, engineering, and
struction services 	 con­of less than $25,000 will be
by assignment 	 carried out
of the project to pre-qualified firms based on
established unit 
costs. 
 Procurement of consulting and con­struction services of 
$25,000 or more 
will 	be carried out by
advertising for proposals from pre-qualified firms.
tion 	firms will be required to post 

Construc­
formance bond, and 	

a 5% bid bond, a 20% per­a 15% 
payment bond for projects 
over 	$50,000.
A retention of 10% 
will be required.
 

Disbursements will be 
made
tified by the 	
against paid vouchers,
superviser. 	 cer-
Separate


by municipalities 	 accounts will be maintained
to 
account for project funds.
 

3. Coordination
 

a) 	 Coordination With Other Agencies
 

In order to 
reduce duplication of effort and the
p;oju°c-s, 	 cost
BANMA 	 of
is promoting interinstitutional cooperation.
The irnterinst iLutional 
Coordinating Group 
- the Council for
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Planned Municipal Action (CONAPLAM) - has established a committee for
 
reviewing municipal projects. It is expected that the committee will
 
begin to function shortly. It will attempt to eliminate duplications
 
in the programming of the member agencies, and will serve as a centra­
lized source for locating grant funds for non-self financing projects.
 
Prior to financing any municipal services requiring participation
 
(planning, staffing, equipping, etc.) by other central government agen­
cies, e.g. health centers and schools, BANMA will enter into an agree­
ment with the appropriate agency to assure their participation in the
 
project. The members of the Coordinating Group are the Ministries of
 
Government, Public Works, and Public Health, INVA, BANMA, the Tourism
 
Institute, the Honduran Municipal Association, SANAA and ENEE.
 

The Ministry of Public Works, the Electrical Energy Authority (ENEE)
 
and the Water and Sewer Authority (SANAA), will provide project feasi­
bility studies and designs. BANMA has signed agreements with SANAA and
 
Public Works and is negotiating a third with ENEE. The project types
 
covered by the agreements are water systems, markets, slaughterhouses,
 
street paving, and storm sewerage. These agencies also provide construc­
tion supervision for the projects they have designed. BANMA will exercise
 
care not to substitute its funding for financing that is available from
 
any of the central government agencies.
 

The Ministry of Public Works is preparing with IDB assistance local
 
development plans for all polar and sub-polar municipalities over the
 
next 5-10 years. BANMA is participating in the elaboration of these plans
 
by providing the results of its municipal analyses and debt capacity stu­
dies to the Ministry for inclusion into the plans.
 

The personnel of the Ministry of Government's Office of Municipal
 
Technical Assistance are receiving training in the installation of proto­
type municipal budgeting and accounting systems that have been designed
 
by an IDB-funded advisor working at the Ministry of Public Works. The
 
Ministry of Government personnel will begin installation of the systems
 
in June, 1974.
 

(b) 	Coordination With Other Sources of Financing
 

There are 4 major loans currently being executed or negotiated that
 
relate to BANMA's sphere of operations:
 

i) 	SANAA is negotiating a loan with IDB for the financing of 150
 
rural aqueducts in villages of less than 2,000 inhabitants.
 
Since these systems are not self-financing, BANMA would not
 
(except in unusual circumstances) be involved in their financing.
 

ii) 	 The Urban Development Office of the Ministry of Public Works is
 
assisting the Municipality of Puerto Cortes to secure concession­
ary financing from IDB for carrying out their Master Development
 
Plan. Should the IDB financing materialize BANMA will take neces­
sary steps to ensure coordination with the Bank and avoid dupli­
cation of effort.
 

iii) 	 The General Direction of Roads is also seeking in conjunction
 
with the Planning Council the inclusion of $1.0 million for access
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road construction in the proposed A.I.D. rural sector program.
 
Consequently BANMA has no direct construction of access roads
 
planned at present.
 

iv) The Central Bank has $1.0 million available for construction of
 
slaughterhouses through the livestock fund created under a World
 
Bank loan. It is estimated that about 5 or 6 slaughterhouses
 
will be built with the funds. The probable sites for these in­
vestments have been excluded from BANMA's project list.
 

The SANAA and Public Works loan programs referred to above represent,
 
to a great degree, grant funds available to the municipalities. In addi­
tion, the Ministry of Public Works and other GOH agencies directly fi­
nance specific projects from the national budget each year. Also, various
 
privete and international agencies have materials and funds which they 
make available on a grant basis. BANMA is in the process of compiling


d.irectory of o.vlable sources of such grants which it wishes to tap
 
for ;,unilipalitief.
 

L.t ier iiA-INA Operations 

oi,;l;4A will continue to offer various banking services to the munici­
p.iit..es and the public: 

i) 	 Checking, savings and time deposit accounts. These accounts cu­
rrently provide BANHA with almost $1 million of capital. 

ii) Trust and fiduciary services for the municipalities. This in­
cludes guaranty and placement of municipal bond issues and dis­
co'.,ntin of letters signed by taxpayers for pavment: of tax bills 
and navin.e, charoes. The small commissions earned on these acti­
vities havi provided a substantial portion of' 13ANMA' s operatinp. 
i nconie. BANt.IA will continue to use the bond guarantv and pla:e­
ment service a:- Ci means of financing projects for which its lend­
ing capital Is insufficient. 

jii) 	 'Miscellaneous banking operations. These include travelers checks, 
line of credit arrangements with foreign banks, purchase and 
sale of foreign currencies, handling of ;O subsidies to munici­
palit:,s, rotating fund for USAID funded projects, and tax collec­
tion services for the municipalities.
 

5. 	Lvaluation
 

BANMA proposes to have an ongoing evaluative process that will ena­
ble it to see the degree to which it is accomplishing the various object­
ives it has been assigned. At first, the objectives may be somewhat narrow 
(i.e., emphasis on developing BANNA as a strong financial institution) 
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SECTION III - TECHNICAL SOUNDUSS 

A. MUNICIPAL DEBT SEKVICE 

The capacity of the municipios to service the increased level of in­
debtedness which will result from the contemplated BA3VA sublending pro­
gram will not constitute an important factor limiting the amount of
 
credit they can absorb or service.
 

It is estimated that by the end of 1980 outstanding municipal debt
 
channeled through the BMI will total nearly L. 20 million. Because
 
of the strategy of focusing programed investment in the 27 agricultural
 
service poles and sub-poles, around L. 17 million, or 887., is expected 
to have been invested in these regional centers. Since at present these
 
27 centers account for only 32% of Honduran municipal revenues, any debt
 
service bottlenecks that may exist would be in these 27 regional centers.
 
At the same time, and although the lack of reliable data for the smaller
 
municipalities precludes a more thorough analysis of their debt capacity,
 
it is thought that since amaller municipalities handle 25% of Honduran
 
municipal revenues their debt servicing of only 12% of the contemplated
 
sub-loans should riot constitute an excessive burden. In light of the
 
above, the Mission and BANMA undertook the following analysis of the
 
projected debt capacity of only the regional centers.
 

The debt service capacity of the 27 poles and sub-poles doubled from
 
L. 663,000 in 1970 to L. 1,332,000 in 1973 (see Table III-1). It is ex­
pected to double again by 1977, and by 1980 to reach almost L. 4 million,
 
triple the 1973 capacity. The basic reasons behind this are:
 

- Current revenues are growing at a faster rate (8%) than current 
expenditures (5.!7,), with the resu.lt that current savings are growing 
at the rate of nearly 12% per anntm. 

- Debt service is increasing at an annual rate of only 67, in spite 
of higher interest rates; this reflects the large percentage of munic­
ipal investment financed by current savings resulting from insufficient 
availabilities of credit at present. 

The projections of current revenues and expenditures in Table III-1
 
are based on historical tendencies and therefore do not reflect the
 
effects of the new BANMA sublending program (i.e., they do not take into
 
account the favorable effects of the tax administration projeccs, nor
 
the fact that-most projects will generate revenues). Table 111-2 proj­
ects total new BANMA sublending, the average balance of the subloan
 
portfolio and the subloan debt service from 1974 to 1980. Table 111-3
 
combines the elements of projected debt service capacity, debt service,
 
and municipal oubloan counterpart under two sets of assumptions. In
 
the first, all subloan debt servicing is assumed to be met by current
 



Table III-1, PROJECTION OF CURRENT REVENUES, CURRENT EXPENDITURES, CURRENT SAVINGS, AMORTIZATION OF PRESENT
 
DEBT, AND ADDITIONAL DEBT SERVICE CAPACITY FOR AGRICULTURAL ROLES AND SCHEDULES
 

(000's or LempirasF
 

1970 1971 1972 1973 1974 1975 1976 1977 1978 1979 1980
 

Current Revenues 3,801 4,114 4,609 4,988 5,388 5,819 6,284 6,787 7,330 7,916 8,549
 

Less: Current Expenditures 2,678 2,791 2,956 3,107 3,265 3,432 3,607 3,791 3,984 4,188 4,401
 

Current Savings 1,123 1,323 1,653 1,881 2,123 2,387 2,677 2,996 3,346 3,728 4,148
 
Less: Service of Existing Debt 460 494 479 548 959 797 660 462 240 230 171
 

Additional Debt Service Capacity 663 8z9 1,174 1,333 1,164 1,590 2,017 2,534 3,097 3,498 3,977
 

Note: 1970-1973 are historical figures; 1974-1980 are projected according to the following criteria:
 
(1) 	Current Revenues are projected to increase at the rate of 8.0/ per annum, the 1965-1973 growth rate, the
 

1970-1973 rate being 10.1%.
 
(2) 	Current expenditures are projected to increase at the rate of 5.1% per annum, the 1970-1973 growth rate -­

the only figures available. 

(3) 	Service of existing debt is based on projection of seven in-depth studies; it assumes amortization of
 
debts for the purchase of BANMA shares over a twenty year period starting in 1974 and the ratio of present

debt amortization to be the same in the 27 poles and sub-poles as in the seven municipios studied have an
 
estimated 51% of the total current revenues received by the 27 poles and sub-poles.
 



.CABLE 111-2 
 -IUNICIPAL SUBLENMING PROGPRAM, AGRICULTLAL SERVICE FOLES AND SUBPOLES 

TOTAL NEW LENDLNG, AVERAGE BALANCE OF SUBLOAN PORTFOLIO. AND SU133LOAN 

DEBT SERVICING -

Tetal New Sublendin, 
(A.I.D., 	General and Reinvestment) 


Sub-Loan Portfo1to:
 
Beginning Balance 


Add: New Subloans 
Less: Repayments 


Year-end Balance 

Average Balance 


Sub-Loan 	Debt Servicing:
 

Interest 

Repayments 

Coimissions 


Sub-Loan 	Debt Service 


1974 - 1980 (000's of Lempiras) 

1974 1975 1976 1977 1978 1979 1980 

906 4,1.37 4,726 5,219 2,376 2,816 3,212 

- 896 4,931 9,278 13,687 14,729 15,879 

906 4,137 4,726 5,219 2,376 2,816 3,212 
10 102 379 810 1,334 1 666 1,862 

396 4,931 9,278 13,687 14,729 15,879 11,229 
448 2,914 7,104 11,483 14,208 15,304 1l' 554 

34 
10 

228 
102 

592 
379 

989 
810 

1,224 
1,334 

1,305 
1,666 

1,408 
1,862 

9 41 50 49 18 19 24 

53 371 1,021 1,848 2,576 2,990 3,294 

SOURCE: 	 Figures in this Chart were derived by multiplying the relevant items in the cach flow by a 
factor of 0.88 (the proportion of BANMA sublending slated for the agricultural service poles 
and subpoles).
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revenues growing at 
the 1965-1972 growth rate. This assumption implies

that none of the projects to be financed by the BMA sublending program

will generate sufficient new revenues to contribute to now debt serv­
icing. Because approximately 80% of the programed projects are self
 
fir.ancing this is clearly the limiting case. 
The second assumes that
 
only 20Z of the subloan debt service will be met by current revenues
 
because 80% of the programed projects are expected to be self financing.

It 
is of course possible that these projects will generate surpluses in
 
excess of their operating and debt servicing costs and contribute to
 
defraying the costs of projects which are not self financing (principally

the access road construction and maintenance element) 
-- but this is not
 
considered probable or even neceasnrily desirable.
 

The range between the two projections in Table 111-3 is a large one.
 
In the case of the first projection, the amount of current savings avail­
able to finance non-subloan fiianced investment falls beyond 1975 
to a
 
clearly unacceptable level, being negative in 1977. 
 In the case of the
 
second projection, the amount of current savings available for non-subloan
 
financed investment is more than aufficinnt. It is probable that the
 
current savings available for non-subloan financed investment will fall
 
somewhere between these two projections *,ecause some of the self financing

projects may not reach their projected break-even pointo or do so as
 
rapidly as expected. When the nANIA technical staff performs the detailed
 
project analyses and feasibility studies required for each project, it will
 
be possible to determine where betwenn these two limiting cases the current

savings available for non-ublo:n financed investment will fall. It is ex­
pected that the average will be much closer 
co the second projection than
 
to the first and that in an overwholming majority of cases the break-even
 
point will not e tend beyond the aubloan grace period. Sufficient debt
 
service capacit, thus exists in the 27 agriculturnl poles and sub-poles

".o service the 7rogramned leveln of indebtedness.
 

The BANInA's technical staff has been conducting in-depth studies in
each of the municipios to detezwine debt capacity on a case by case basis.
 
It is clearly possible that while in combination the 27 centers have suf­
ficient debt capacity, individual municipalities might not. Of the seven
mnicipalities that have been studied in depth to date, five show more 
than sufficient debt capacity to finnce programmed proJects. In two,

insufficient imtndiate debt service capacity was encountered. In both
 
of these cases, improved user charge collections or better control over
 
current expenses during the first half of the disbursement period would
 
provide sufficient debt capacity to permit the execution of programmed

projects during the later half. 
It is expected that similar results will
 
be encountered in the other 20 polar and sub-polar centers. 
Moreover,

BANHA will provide direct TA and finance tax billing and collection system

installation in those iunicipalities presently having insufficient debt
 
capacity so as to develop more quickly their investment potential. Thus
 
it is not antic:.ated that insufficient debt capacity will require major
 
revisions of t l.st of programmed projects.
 



TABE 111-3, PROJECTIONS OF CURRENT SAVINGS AVAILABLE FOR 1ON-SUBIk. FIXAICEY INVESTNUT TN ARICULTURAL SUVICR pMIZ 

AND SUBPOLES. 1974 - 1980 (000's of Lomiras)
 

1974 1975 1976 1977 
 1978 1979 1980
 

Projection No. 1, 1O7. of subloan debt service to be met by current revenues 

Additional debt service capacity 1163 1590 2017 2534 3097 3495Less: 1007 of subloan debt service 3977
53 371 1021 1848 2576 2990 3294
Less: Mun. subloan counterpart 	 160 730 834 921 419 497 567
 

Current savings available for mon-subloan
 
financed investment 950 489 162 (235) 102 11 116 

Projection No. 2, 207 of subloan debt service to be met by current revenues 

Additional debt service capacity 
 1163 1590 2017 2534 3097 
 3498 3977
Less: 207 of subloan debt service 11 74 204 370 515 598 659

Less: Nun. subloan counterpart 160 730 834 921 419 
 497 567

Curre-t savings available for non-subloan 
financed investment 992 786 979 1243 2163 2403 2751 

SOURCES: 	 Additional debt service capacity, Table IIT-I. 

Subloan debt service, Table 111-2. 

Municipal subloau counterpart is equal to 15 of sub-project cost and is therefore equal to 17.65 of total naw lending

of Table 111-2.
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B. NEED FOR INCREASED EENUES 

Many local needs cannot be met by self financing capLal investmentprojects, but require increas6.d levels of current expenditures, financedby increased tax collections or other current revanues. 
Among these
needs are such activities as 
schools, health centers, children's feeding
stations, access road improvement and maintenance and other local govern­ment activities for which user i-hargem 
are not eae'1.y applicable. The
BANMA sublending program includes one such activi --access road mainte­nance and improvement. This activity amounts to about 20% of the cost
of BANNA subprojects. 
The entimated cost of these subprojects in the
27 agricultural service polea and amb-poles is around L. 1.2 million.
 

Although the preceding debt capacity saction indicated that ouf­ficient capacity existed for servicing the debt entered into for thesenon self-financing projectv, it did not take into account the increasedcurrent expenditures resulting thesefrom projects. In the 27 regionalcenters, such projects wil! 
increase current expenditures for operations
and maintenance by about L. 500,000 per annum. 
These expenditures are
not likely to be offset by increuoed user charges. If expenditure in­creases are 
not offset by corresponding revenueincreases, they will have

serious conaequencea for current savings and debt capacity. 

It is expected, however, VWt increases in current revenues resulting
from the est r's!Iment o; im-pro-fed tax administratLon measures (mappingand reiated trr' billing ayvn) will provide more tha. enough currentexpenditures ;- Yffet non nelf-financing projects. 
 Based on studies oflie San Pedro g: cadaster phrogrt3 to date,, it in expected that after
The first yea;r -r two of areration, the current revenue 
 base of these27 agricultural poles and oub-polas will increase by about 15% 
to 18%

(L. 1.0 million to L. 1-2 million). This projected increase is consid­erably more then the L. 500,000 !.T!cr.Caue in current expenditures pre­viously mentioned, and will probably prcvide some surplus. 
 This surplus

should both n!-e it easier Co attend thane local needs not met by this
 
project 
 as wo.'. an increase deb '.3ervice capacity. 

in coociurl'on, it is expected thAt future revenues in the 27 agri­cultural pole: tnd otib.-poles will be cufficient ts. cover debt servicing
requirenents 
 arU leave at rargin sufficiently large to allow the muni­cipiot to resp-id to locel investment needs not contemplated under thisproject. 
Although increaned municipal revenues are not necessary for
the succeas of this loan, a major docrezae in municipal revenues or
shrinkage in the legal tax base could veriously weaken the project's
feasibility. it is not anticipated that revenues would decrease ifthe municipal tax base is 
left intact. A Covenant assuring that no
governmental action will be taken to reduce this tax base will be

included in t:le Loan Agreement. 
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ii. Be operating in the u± cx. 

iii. Reduced its delinquency rate 
to no more than 2% of
 
the amount due and payable.


iv. Increased its 
capital from $1.4 million 
as of 12/31/73
 

to $8.0 million of 12/31/77.
 

v. Reduced its long term debt by 
$600.000.
 

vi. 
 Have assets of $10 million with a municipal loan
 
portfolio of $8.0 
million.
 

vii. Have increased its municipal deposits from 
$285,000 as
 
of 12/31/73 to $735,000 by 12/31/77.
 

viii. 	 Have the deposits of 120 municipalities among its
 
assets 
through the correspondent bank plans.
 

ix. Have provided or coordinated provision of 
direct
 
technical assistance to 60 municipalities.
 

x. Established formal channels of 
communication with
 
the various agencies of the 
GOH that influence muni­
cipal operations in order assist in
to the develop­
ment of programs and policies beneficial to the mu­
nicipalities.
 

xi. Creat'd an on-going T.A. program 
For municipal offi­
cials as evidenced by 
a plan of operations, a bud­
get, and past performance.
 

xii. The BANMA 
staff will have developed sufficient ex­
pertise in 
planning, administration 
and accounting

to permit the institution to 
operate without exter­
nal T.A.
 

xiii. 	 Developed operational procedural manuals based on

the policies, regulations, and directives developed

during 
its reform period, and established a proce­
dure for amending the manuals 
as required.
 

xiv. 
 Developed policies and procedures (including project analysis)

which accounts for and gives-priority to social equity consid;

erations in approving projects.
 

xV. Managing its operations in compliance with the instructions
found in the manuals and procedures mentioned in xiii and xiv above.
 

The polar and subpolar municipalities, by the end of the Loan

disbursement period will have:
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i. 	 Emphasized the development of services required by

the low income rural population living outside of the county seat.
 

ii. 	 Raised the percentage of their revenues 
spent on in­
vestment to 35% per year.
 

iii. 	 Raised the percentage of their revenues spent on in­
vestment in 
class A and B (high priority) projeots
 
to 25% per year.
 

iv. 	 Made accessible to 50% of rural residents a hygienic

market or slaughterhouse within 2 hours 
travel of
 
their farms.
 

Have created 600 temporary and 300 permanent jobs

through loan funded projects and 2,500 temporary

jobs through subcontracts with construction compa­
nies.
 

vi. 	 Have installed tax billing and accounting systems
 
and be collecting in 1977 80% 
more taxes than in
 
1973.
 

vii. 
 Have installed double entry accounting systems and
 
be maintaining them up to date.
 

viii. Formed 8 intermunicipal cooperatives which 
will be
 
providing efficient road maintenance and improvement

services on 800 Km.
over of roads in key agricultu­
ral areas.
 

ix. 	 Developed a planning and budgeting capacity.
 

E. 	 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS
 

The USATD Capital Assistance Committee has determined
 
that the activities of the proposed project will have 
no

long range adverse effects on the Honduran natural environ­
ment. To the contrary, most of 
the 	public works pro­
jects 	financed with 
A.I.D. loan funds will result in im­an 

proved and more healthy urban environment. This will be
 
particularly true cases
in the of water and sewer system

projects, 
and improved markets and slaughterhouses. It is
 
the intention, however, of the 
Mission to include a clause
 
in the 
Loan Agreement bringing environmental considerations
 
to the attention of BANMA. 
 It is 	anticipated that when the
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the nature and size of sub-projects merits it, BANMA will
include 
a discussion of the environmental impact in 
their
 
reviews of sub-project proposals.
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SECTION IV FIANCIAL AMLYSIS 

A. FINANCIAL PLAN 

1. Fund Use and Source
 

The use and source of Project funds over the three-and-one-half year 
disbursement period of the Loan is as follows ($000): 

A.I.D. HOST COUNITY 
$ L GOB MUIA Munic. 

Subloans 1,200 
2,300 1,500 500 611 6,111
 
Tech. 'A. 400 
 400
 
Training 40 110 
 150 
Equipment 50 
 50
 

Subtotal 1,60 2,410 1,500 500 611 
 6,711
 

TOTALS 4,100 
 2,611 6,711
 

The A.I.D. loan totals $4.1 million or 61. of the total project cost.
 
The host country contribution totals $2.611 million or 397. of the total
 
cost. 
The municipal portion of the host country contribution represents 
the municipality's contribution to each subproject (107.) as the Bank will 
finance a maximum of 90% of each project. In most cases a larger munic­
ipal counterpart is expected but a conservative figure of 10% has been 
used here. This contribution may be in cash or kind. The Bank contri­
bution of $500,000 will come from its own resources and will be made avail­
able immediately upon signature of the Loan. The Government contribution 
o7 $1,500,000 will come from budgetary sources and will be made available 
on a pari passu basis with Loan disbursements. In addition, in order to 
assure the continued capitalization of BA1M4 after the Loan disbursement 
period, the Government has agreed to provide budgetary support to BANMA 
of $3.5 million over the 7 years following disbursement of the AID Loan. 
Becaune of the relatively high GOH contribution it has been agreed that 
the Government may include reimbursement for BANMA's investment in the 
San Pedro Sula airport (represented by unrepayed advances to contractors) 
as Loan counterpart. Under the bond amortization schedule, this would 
amount to $122,185 per annum or a total of $427,048 over a 3 1/2 year 
period. Its effect on BANMA's financial situation is to replace an uncol­
lectable debt with a bona fide GOH receivable. The remaining $1,072,352
 
of the GOH contribution would be a straight budgetary transfer.
 

2. Loan Amount
 

Several considerations were taken into account in setting the amount
 
of the Loan. The first was the amount of funds that BAMA could be
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expected to commit for eligibLa projects over a three year period. Of 
the total number of municipal projects that the Bank has identified, 
priority was given to those projects which clearly met the agro-service
 
center concept, and to those which would increase municipal income and 
rnicipal repayment capacity. Allowances were made for the fact that 
some of these may not materialize, and the operating capacity of the
 
Bank was taken into account. 

Lending at the levels proposed represents an increase in its volume 

of new municipal lending from an annual average of $4421000 for the 
1970-72 period to $2,578,000 for the 1975-78 period. Although BANNA has 
clear lending and credit procedures on paper and has already begun de­

veloping subloan,;, the direct loan process (and the degree of subloan 
analysis) is new. Key staff members are new. The Bank's history in 
general is one of inadequate performance. Consequently, the Bank's ex­
perience can be considered some +at thin at this point meriting a con­
servative approach. 

A second major consideration was the need to establish a financial
 

base adequate to enable the Bank to raise funds and continue operations
 

including technical assistance after the Loan disbursement period. In
 

addition the Bank should have enough resources to make an impact on the
 

municipalities and so enable it to overcome its previous poor reputation.
 
A $3.5 million Loan added to the GOH contribution of $1.5 million is
 

expected to meet this requirement. Technical assistance, training and
 
equipment requirements added to this then yields a Loan level of $4.1
 
million. 

3. Borrower and Loan Repayment 

The Borrower will be the Government of Honduras, who will donate the
 

Loan proceeds to the BANMA to increase its capital and assume the re­

payment obligation. Given the low levels of Government incurred inter­

national debt, contracted on fairly soft terms, the amount of foreign 
exchange going to service outstanding debt as a percentage of exports is 

quite low. Table IV-1 shows Honduras has the lowest debt service ratio 
(debt service to foreign exchange) in Central America. 
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TANIK IV-l, CErML AVELCAI MOT SUVIMC lATIS: 1972 

(Percent) 

Guatmala 10.5
 

Nicaragua 10.1
 

Costa Rica 10.0
 

El Salvador 4.0
 

Honduras 3.4
 

Source: IBRD data
 

The trend of this ratio over the recent past indicates a slight
 
rise to 3.8 percent in 1973 as can be seen in Table IV-2. There remains
 
more than adequate capacity to service the Government's international 
debt. 

TABLE IV-2, HONDURAN DEBT SRVCE IIATIO: 1965-73 

Debt Service Exports Debt Service Ratio 
($ Millions) (0 Millions) (Percent) 

1965 3.3 138.6 2.4
 

1966 3.4 157.4 2.2
 

1967 3.5 170.6 2.1 

1968 3.4 196.7 1.7
 

1969 4.3 186.7 2.3
 

1970 5.6 196.5 2.8
 

1971 7.0 215.6 3.2
 

1972 7.9 230.6 3.4
 

1973 10.6 279.3 3.8
 

Sources: 1965-72: IBRD data
 

1973 : Mission estimates
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B. BANMA FIIHICIAL POSITION 

1. Situation at December 31, 1971 

The financial statements of DAM for the year ended December 31, 
1971 (Annex IV), as adjusted by AID financial analysts to reflect their 
opinion as to the true financial position of the bank, show that the 
organization wah facing a serious liquidity crisis due primarily to the
 
historical lack of earning capacity coupled with under-capitalization.
 
The debt/equity ratio was 4.7 to 1 which must be considered as excessive 
leverage, particularly when negative returns on capital had been demon­
strated. The Bank was virtually operating on funds provided by time
 
deposits from the National Port Authority,and had the time deposits been 
withdrawn BANIA would have been forced into a position of technical
 
bankruptcy. Outstanding long-term debt in the form of Bonds had been 
issued with a three year grace period on amortization of principal.
R,4MNMA was unable to service that debt, and was in very serious finan­
cial straits. 

2. Current Financial Position
 

BANMA management has taken actions during the past eighteen months 
that have resulted in major progress toward solving the liquidity prob­
lem and operational problems that have plagued the Bank. BANMA has 
accomplished the following:
 

(a) The municipal loan portfolio hep been analyzed and a major portion
 
of delinquent accounts collected or re-financed. BANIIA officials con­
tinue to monitor the portfolio closely to improve the delinquency rate
 
and improve coUll-ction procedures.
 

(b) Comercial operationa have been discontinued. The comercial loan
 
portfolio was purged of uncollectible accounts. An agrreasive collec­
tion policy has been established and the portfolio has beeu reduced
 
considerably. Estimatec are that the remaining balances will be col­
lected through 1977.
 

(c) BANMA has 'sued bonds totaling $1.85 million redeemable through
 
1981 to the National Port Authority, thereby converting into long-term

debL Lapital a :hort-term obligation that had been a major liquidity 
burden. 

(d) The BANMA has negotiated a settlement to the problem rel'ated to 
the construction advances made for the San Pedro Sula airport project.
 
By government decree, the GOH has agreed to pay to BANMA approximately 
$900,000. Thece payments will be considered a part of the ten year 
capital contrib'vtion by the GOi. 
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-e) Considerable cost savings have been effected by closing one branch
 
office and reducing the number of Bank mloyees by 24.
 

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1973 pre-.
 
sented in Annex IV, show the improved financial condition of the tank.
 
The liquidity crisis has been reolved to the point where the Bank has
 
invested in short-term securities to utilize excess lia'ility. The
 
balance sheet shows an investment of approximately 1." .ilion Lempiras
 
in marketable securities and soae 655 thousand Lempiras in cash and cash
 
items. Against these relatively liquid assets the balance sheet shows
 
current liabilities of 738,000 Lempiras including interest payable and
 
loans approved but not disbursed. The statement of operations for 1973
 
discloses that BANNA through reductl-on of personne consolidation of
 
physical plant, and investment of excess liquidity was able to produce
 
a small return on capital for the year.
 

3. Projected Future Operntions
 

Projections of future operations have been prepared for the tcn year 
period through 1983. Cash flow projections and balance sheet and state­
ments of income and expense are presented in Annex IV. Based on con­
servative estimates of growth from the infusion of capital from the AID 
loan and the GOH ten year contribution, BA14A will attain a position of 
self-sufficiency with a capital base and loan portfolio adequate to 
generate profits and accumulate reserves to cover legal requirements 
and contingencies. During the initial two years of the AID Loan Project, 
losses from operations have been projected due to estimated increases 
in administration costs being incurred before lending increases suf­
ficiently to generate offsetting revenues. In 1976, however, a break­
even point is reacher, and retvenues frat the expanding lending program 
-ontinue to gre". through 1983 at a rate greater than the administrative 
costs required to oT erate the iank. Conservative profit projections 
through 1983 indicate thic by then BANMA will reach a level of operation 
That may provide a return on capital nufficienc to attract new equity 
capital to expand its lending program. Additionally the Bank will have 
liqutdated its long-term debt and will be in an excellent financial
 
nosition to seek leverage (debt capital) thereby broadening its operating
 
Tbility and further expanding its municipal lending capacity. The pro­
lected balance ;heet and income statement for 1983 shows that the BANMA
 
!ihould generar" a return of Lps. 1,160,000 or 4.3% on capital. Total
 
capitalization of the Bank will have increased by almost nine times
 
from Lps. 3,038,000 in 1973 to $26,965,000 estimated for 1983.
 

3. Municipal Loan Delinquencies
 

During the past two years BANMA management has addressed the problem
 
of delinquent municipal obligations. Working on a case by case basis,
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some obligations have been refinanced and others have been brought into
 

current status. BAf officials continue to work on the rmaining de­
linquent or defaulted municipal obligations. The balance sheet as of 
February 28, 1974 (Annex IV) shoe the balances held by MW in manic­
ipal obligations as follows: 

Municipal Bonds Lps. 204,700 

Municipal loans and discounts 254,539 

Municipal loans assumed by 
as guarantor 

Los. 

7,575 

l.A.. .814 

In addition BANMA is contingently liable as guarantor !or Lps. 2,459,000
 
in outstanding loans and bonds. Of the total Lps. 3,689,814 in outstanding
 
municipal obligations either held or guranteed by BANMA, Lps. 700,000
 
are delinquent. Of the delinquent total approximately Lps. 260,000 is in
 
the process of being refinanced. The remainder of Lps. 440,000 represents
 

The reserve for doubtful
approximately 127 of the BANNA municipal loan portfolio. 

loans totals Lps. 150,000 or approximately 34% of the delinquencies. If
 
the entire balance of delinquent loans at February 28, 1974 should prove
 
to be uncollectible, which is highly unlikely since the municipal entities
 
continue to exist and produce revenues, the operations of BANMA would not
 
be materially affected.
 

Considering that BANMA officials are working to bring the delinquent
 
loans up to a current basio and that a number of safeguards have been
 
built into the f'ture municipal lending program to ensure againt a con­

tinuation of the problem, the current level of delinquent municipal loan
 
does not constitute a major problem.
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a) 	Development Role. 
 Is BANMA functioning as a develop­
ment bank? Has BANKA understood and fulfilled the

development role assigned to it? 
 Have BANMA's
 
coordinative activities helped it 
to carry out its

functions and improve municipal functioning? Have
GOH 	programs, policies and actions helped or hindered

BANMA in carrying out its functions?
 

b) 	 Institutional Progress. 
 Is BANMA a well run self

sustaining institution? Have the financial projec­
tions described in the loan paper been achieved?

Has BANMA provided or facilitated delivery of the

expected types and amounts of financial and technical
 
assistance to the municipalities? Have BANMA's
policies, regulations and directives been developed

and 	utilized as described in this Loan Paper? 
 And
improved? Has its professional staff been developed

as outlined in the Loan Paper? 
 Have internal evalua­
tion mechanisms functioned as expected? And improved!

Has 
BANMA played a leadership role in providing the
 
development viewpoint of municipal government with
 
the 	GOH? With the municipalities?
 

c) 	Municipal Improvement. What improvements in

municipal administration have occurred? 
 Have re­
venues 
increased to the degree expected. Have

administrative procedures, especially accounting

and 	tax administration systems been improved? 
 Has
 
municipal investment gone up? Did current savings

increase significantly? Has municipal ability to
provide public services and infrastructure improved?

Who have been the primary beneficiaries of the
 
investments?
 

d) 	Subproject Costs and Benefits. 
 Which subproject

types have been the best investments? What have been

the costs and benefits of different types of sub­
projects? Which sub-project types have been best

administered by the municipalities or contracting

agencies? Which sub-project types have been most

difficult administratively for the municipalities

and 	what steps could be taken to improve their

administration? 
Have the costs and benefits met
expectations? Have the sub-projects been financially

good investments for the municipalities from an
 
economic and cash flow point of view.
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C. 
 MONITORING RESPONSIBILITIES
 

The loan will be monitored for the 
USAID by the Chic.F
of the Institutional Development Division supported closely by the
Capital Development and 
 Engineering staff;. 
The latter
 
are expected to 
be heavily involved initially in
procurement, loan, compliance, and engineering aspects of the
project as 
it gets underway. 
 The Mission Controller willassist in reviewing the financial aspects of 
the project.
These offices will also be responsible for reviewing and
approving all subloans over 
$50,000. Subloans over 
this
amount will be 
reviewed for conformity to 
BANMA operatinv
criteria and Project criteria, appropriateness for A.I.D.
financing, and general engineering and economic soundness.
This subloan ceiling will be reviewed in the course of
 program reviews and may be modified at that time.
 

D. PROCUREMENT AND DISBURSEMENT
 

Procurement will be authorized from Code 941 
and CACZ
countries. 
 The subborrower (the municipality) will procue
directly under BANMA's supervision in compliance with BANYnA's
A.I.D. approved procurement regulations. (See Section Il-C­2, Subproject Execution). 
 The majority of such procurement
is expected to 
be local procurement of consultant and
construction services fo small civil works projects, aiLthcu-napproximately $1.0 million in road equipment under varioussubloans will also be purchased. Since the jobs will be so
small as to preclude the interest of U.S. 
firms and since
this is ICI
an loan, no advertisement will be 
conducted in
the U.S. except 
for road equipment procurement. All
procurement 
for the Bank's own account will be conducted In
accordance with A.I.D. Project Guidelines.
 

Disbursement for locij. costs will be 
in accordance w n
procedures to be determined by the USAID Controller. D4sburse­ment for dollar 
 cost will be made through normal Letter of

Commitment procedure.
 



:J,.,,
-J I, F LuCL 21-")V.'r 1 "* ~i 46SEC-IGI F;£'....,!­-, 1-. Ii~ 


STLIJCTUR 
In'lSElcETE
 

;IISSTER OF GOVERNIET 
 - MINISTER APPOIN' TY CHIEF OF STATE 

.U&-DEPARTAEN AL GOVEPO 
- GOVERNORS APPOInED BY MINISTER OF GOVERtMIT18 DEPARTN,ENTAL COUNCILS 1 COUNCILEN ELECTED Y REPRESENTATIVES OF LOCAL CORPORA-
I(GOVERNOR ,

AND 2 COUNCILIEN) 
TIONS
 

I
 

2:3 LOCAL CORPOPATIOIqS 
-MAYORS AID COUNCIL,Vc ELECTED BY VOTERS, EXCEPT IN CEt-.mAYOR AD 3 TO 7 .cOUNCILti, TRAL DISTRICT '.,"ERE THEY ARE APPOITED BY CHIEF OF STATE 

ECR 
 IEASURERI 
 EPT' CHIEFS - SECRETARY, TREASURER, DEPARTMENT CHIEFS AND OTHER EPPLO-

YEES APPOI'TED Y CCUCIL 

7,500 DEPUTY AYOR 
- APPOINTED EY MAYORS 

%-o 
It ,0r 

A cjF_ 



TABL TE .A-'o . LOCAL GOVERNMENTLO A AND CENTRALOVIM GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES 
IN RELATION GROSS NATIONAL PRODUCT, 1960-1972
 

GROSS NACIONAL PRODUCT 
 CENTRAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES 

MILLIONS OF 
 MILLIONS OF AS % OF 

LEMPIRAS 
 LEMPIRAS 
 G. N. P. 


1960 
 763.9 
 92.1 
 12.6 

1961 
 785.4 
 93.2 
 11.9

1962 
 843.6 
 98.9 
 11.7

1963 
 862.2 
 104.4 12.1 

1964 
 930.5 
 112.9 
 12.1

1965 1,025.2 12.2
125.5 

1966 1,082.3 
 143.5 
 13.3

1967 1,162.9 
 145.3 
 12.5
1968 
 1,247.4 
 169.3 
 13.6

1969 1,302.0 15.8
205.6 

1970 
 1,382.5 
 228.6 
 16.5
1971 
 1,466.6 
 227.7 
 15.5 

1972 1,566.4 15.3
239.0 


late of Growth,

L960-1972 
 6.4 8.3 

3OURCE: G.O.H. Planning Council and Central Bank.
 

LOCAL GOV. EXPENDITURES
 
MILLIONS OF AS % OF
 
LEMPIRAS G. N. P.
 

8.4 
 1.1
 
8.5 
 1.1
 

10.9 
 1.3
 
8.9 
 1.0
 

12.0 
 1.3
 
11.6 
 1.1
 
14.2 
 1.3
 
17,0 1.5
 
14.0 
 1.1
 
16.7 
 1.3
 
16.9 
 1.2
 
17.5 
 1.2
 
18.5 
 1.2
 

6.7
 

0 
r0 0
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TABLE NO. 2 MUNICIPAL PAYROLLS AND THEIR RELATION To REVEAS, 1972 

Nhaber of Ave. No. of 
 Annual 
 Average Monthly
-.......... ............. Payroll Costs as
-- Emp..S
-g-
E o _ - Payroll 000's Ls. Comensation
.. .. . .. .. L-s.-. .. . . . ------.. . . --.............................------ of Revees
. .. .. . .Z 

Tegucigalpa 1/ 
 253 
 12 
 202.3
San Pedro SuTa 67
790 18 42.9
1,869.3
La Ceiba 197
527 30.7
is 
 612.7
Choluteca 97
408 37.2
12 
 313.2
Santa Rosa de Copin 10 77
453 36.3
300.9
Conayagua 55
437 47.8
10
Juticalpa 372.6 72
182 14 46.5
167.7
Danl ' 77
213 38.2

Gracias a Dios 2/ 

16 179.9 70
13 7 40.1
Congol6n 35.4 227
223 8 266.4
 
Honduras Total 1/ 

75.4 29 62.7
,49 
 13 4 T 

Size of Pupulation

100,000 and over 1/ 827 827 919.6 93 
10,000 - 99,999 57 
 57
5,000 - 9,999 348.4 14216 16 33.1
374.4
3,500 - 4,999 8716 34.7
16 
 253.2
2,000 - 3,499 10011 47.5
11 471.0
Less Than 2,000 64
4 47.14 827.7 
 100 
 54.9
 

I/ "mxcludesthe Central District2/ Subsidized by Central Government 
a
 

o
 
0
0
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TABLE No.3 MUNICIPAL REVENUES, EXCLUDING SAN PEDRO SULA AND
 

LEMPIRAS)
TEGUCIGALPA 1965-1972 (THOUSANDS OF 


RATE OFO
 

DROWIH
1970 1971 1972 

REGION 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969 

1965-1972
 

8.4
516.5 507.6 471.7 483.8 

Tegucigalpa 253.2 374.5 540.4 618.4 


2,571.1 5.5
 
San Pedro Sula 1,667.2 2,187.9 1,987.3 2,272.9 2,252.2 2,415.6 2,238.8 


1,478.6 1,646.3 6.3
 
La Ceiba 1,007.6 1,198.5 1,083.4 1,032.6 1,189.2 1,367.8 


724.1 900.4 1,041.7 6.0

750.2 677.3 741.2 791.9
Choluteca 653.8 


Santa Rosa de Co­ 515.7 629.7 5.6
 
pan 408.7 513.2 554.7 508.8 497.2 500.1 


8.1
622.3 692.3 800.7 

Comayagua 429.6 546.5 759.4 531.2 596.1 


439.6 11.6
327.1 351.6 449.6

Juticalpa 182.7 293.7 286.9 353.3 


299.0 448.5 11.6
249.0 246.6 249.8
Danli 186.4 234.9 222.6 

4.4
16.1 15.6 13.3
10.5 12.7 13.5 13.6
Gracias a Dios 9.4 


84.8 120.4 6.6
83.0 74.1
Congolbn 74.4 93.0 89.2 77.6 


8,195.4 6.7
 
4,871.1 6.201.6 6.,203.8 6,398.5 6,513.6 6,823.8 7,146.4


Honduras, Total 


Size of Population 
----

100,000 and Over 
 3,561.2 4,073.9 6.4
3,015.7 3,033.0 3,296.1 3,347.8

10,000-99,999 2,475.8 3,057.8 

8.2
912.9 979.2 1,079.8
755.9 847.3 810.7 765.4
5,000- 9,999 573.8 
 533.3 5.4
574.1 584.0 565.0 522.1 

3,500- 4,999 349.3 459.8 588.4 


821.2 1,001.0 6.1
717.2 860.4 772.1 817.5

2,000- 3,499 621.6 854.1 


1,179.7 1,262.8 1,507.2 7.4
 
Less than 2,000 850.6 1,064.1 1,035.1 1,110.7 1,096.1 


0 0 



........... 

Source 

Total Revenue (000's Lps.) 

i Taxation 

% Property Tax 
% -Lead Tax 
% Business and Banking Tax 

% Service Charges 

% Water 
$ Garbage Collection 
% Sewage 
% Pavement 
%Electrical Energy
%Markets 
%Slaughterhouses 

% Rents, Licences, and other 

TABLE No. 

Honduras 
Total 

12,509 

48.4 

6.8 
9.9 
31.7 

33.2 

9.5 
3.6 
0.8 
2.2 
4.9 
9.4 
2.8 

18.4 

4 , STRUCTURE 

100,000 
and more 

4,314 

N.A. 

N.A. 
N.A. 
N.A. 

N.A. 

8.7 
4.6 
0.9 

N.A. 
2.5 
7.4 
0.4 

11.3 

OF MUNICIPAL REVENJES, 

SIZE OF POPULATION 

10,000 to 
99,999 

4,074 

44.9 

7.7 
6.2 

31.0 

33.3 

6.6 
2.3 
0.5 
5.4 
4.7 
12.2 
1.4 

21.8 

BY SOURCE AND 

5,000 to 
9,999 

1,080 

45.3 

6.1 
15.6 
23.6 

40.2 

9.7 
1.0 
0.6 
5.4 
3.6 
7.8 

12.1 

14.5 

SIZE, 1972 

3,500 to 
4,999 

533 

52.2 

8.6 
15.9 
27.7 

35.3 

6.8 
0.7--­
0.5 
--

7.1 
6.3 
14.4 

13.5 

2,000 to 
3,49) 

1,001 

58.4 

13.5 
21.5 
23.4 

26.7 

7.9 

+ 
0.2 

10.7 
1.7 
6.2 

14.9 

t---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------­

less Than 
2,000 

1,507 

67.7 

17.1 
33.5 
16.6 

12.8 

5.2 

+ 
+ 
5.4 
0.3 
1.9 

20.0 

Source: Municipal Survey, 1973 

a I-& Mx 

C­
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TABLE No. 5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT RELATED TO TOTAL
 

PUBLIC SECTOR INVESTMENT, 1960 - 1970
 

(Millions of Lempiras)
 

PUBLIC SECTOR LOCAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT AS
 
TOTAL GOVERNMENT % OF PUBLIC SECTOR
 

1960 20.0 
 2.0 10.0
 

1961 19.5 1.6 
 8.2
 

1962 33.3 
 3.0 9.0
 

1963 33.8 1.3 5.6
 

1964 24.9 3.6 14.5
 

1965 23.7 1.2 
 5.0
 

1966 26.0 1.3 5.0
 

1967 40.5 2.6 6.4
 

1968 48.0 1.5 3.1
 

1969 81.4 4.4 
 5.4
 

1970 91.4 3.7 4.0
 

Total, 1960­

1970 1442.5 26.8 6.1
 

SOURCE: G.O.H. Planning Council
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE POPULATION
 

BY REGIONS AND SUBREGIONS
 

D :". 

: - - 4..• ' .-. 

Centers% m0 

County seats, less-than 1000 
1 r "aPhb 

Regional-bounda ry 
. -...Su. boundar 

•nhabitants 
3tants 

M-

-=- - - - - - - - - - - - -­

? .:'...:"-

:---..-:-.:":., . :. " 
County-.seats. les tan100.nh.,-.nt 

100 rural1 inhabitants 

S_AGOSTO_ 1~971 
SrnI"I' . .-,AC,'I ON 

1'CT~ I!E i167 
%CTbiiV DF.[ERROLLO UIR[.A40 Y REGIO;AL 

CO !SFJO SUIPIMOR DE F1t Aflil ICA{CION ECON':'WCA
SIX(:PETAVIA MICAI, T1EGWT:I';ALPA. HONDURAS 

__ Ceneors,more;tase n 1961 CeabtntsusSub-regional boundary 

(Source: National Inventory of Physical 
Resources ,1966 ;based on 1961 Census) 



ESTIMATED POPULATION - 1973
 
BY REGION POLE AND SUB-POLE (FIGURES IN 000's)
 

POLAR MUNICIPIOS SUB-POLAR MUfNICIPIOS 
 OTHER MUNICIPIOS 
 TOAL 

Reeidn jNo. Urban Rural Total No. Urban Rural Total 
 No. Urban Rural Total No. Urban Rural Total
 

Tegucigalpa 1 274.8 27.6 
 302.4 1 6.2 5.9 12.1 
 21 27.0 116.1 143.1 23 308.0 149.6 457.6
San Pedro Sula (SPS) 1 133.7 19.6 153.3 5 
 86.5 66.5 152.6 37 
 98.9 285.9 384.8 43 318.7 372.0 690.7
La Ceiba 1 44.0 8.9 52.9 
 4 18.7 71.2 89.9 
 30 35.1 122.8 157.9 35 97.8 202.9 300.7
Choluteca 1 
 22.3 26.2 48.5 3 17.6 37.2 54.8 30 30.2 
 245.6 275.8 34 70.1 309.0 379.1
Santa Rosa de CopAn 1 11.8 7.8 19.6 2 8.6 17.4 26.0 44 54.7 
 195.0 249.7 47 75.1 220.2 295.3
Co-ayagua 1 16.0 12.7 28.7 3 16.8 28.9 
 45.7 41 42.1 146.4 188.5 45 74.9 188.0 262.9
Juticalpa 1 11.3 
 23.3 34.6 1 8.4 11.5 19.9 12 14.7 40.2 
 54.9 14 34.4 75.0 109.4
Dmlt 
 1 10.0 36.7 46.7 
 2 9.6 17.4 27.0 10 
 10.9 45.9 56.8 13 30.5 100.0 130.5
Gracias a Dios 0 * * . 0 * * 2 1.8 16.0 17.8 2 1.8 16.0 17.8
Congoldn 0 * * * 0 * * * 27 13.5 123.8 137.3 27 13.5 123.8 137.3 

TOTAL 8 523.9 162.8 686.7 21 172.0 256.0 428.0 254 328.9 1337.7 1666.6 283 1024.8 1756.5 27G1.3
 
TOTAL - Excluding urbanareas of Te . and SPS 
 115.4 162.8 278.2 
 172.0 256.0 428.0 
 328.9 1337.7 1666.6 
 616.3 1756.5 2372.8
 

% of total Urban, Rural,

Total 
 51.1 9.3 24.7 
 16.8 14.6 15.4 
 32.1 76.2 59.9 
 100.0 100.0 100.0
 

% of total in Polar,
 
Sub-polar, Other
 
Municipio __ 
 76.3 23.7 100.0 40.2 59.8 100.0 19.7 
 80.3 100.0 36.8 63.2 1001
 

% of total exacluding urban
 
areas of Teg. and SPS 1 18.7 9.3 11.7 27.9 14.6 18.0 53.4 76.2 70.3 100.0 100.0 100L
 

% of Polar, Sub-polar, Other
 
excluding Te. and SPS 41.5 58.5 
 100% 40.2 59.8 100.0 19.7 
 80.3 26 - X 74.0 100% 

* UtPolar or Sub-polar Municipio 

Source: Denographic Statistics - National Planning Council, March, '72, Tegucigalpa - Table 10. Figures may not add precisely due to rounding. 

to
 

0D 0 

to)o
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BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES
 

BANMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 

President
 

Armando Blanco Paniagua
 
Mr. Blanco's curriculum vitae 
are included in Annex II,

Exhibit 3 

Board Members
 

Marco Tulio Banegas Reyes
 
Mr. Banegas is an 
economist and has received specialized

training in Public Sector Planning and Programming
(ILPES -
Santiago, Chile) Public Administration and
Planning (Puerto Rico) 
and data processing (U.S.A.). He
is currently Sub-Secretary of the 
Ministry of Finance
and Public Credit. He has previously served as 
advisor
in administration and budgetting in four 
GOH Ministries
(Finance and Public Credit, Education, Natural Resources,
and Communications and 
Public Works) and two 
autonomous
agencies (National Child Care 
Agency and the 
Central
 
District).
 

Vicente Diaz
 

Mr. Diaz - an 
 is 

Ministry of Economics. Additional data are 


economist - Sub-Secretary of the
 
not avail­

able.
 

Rafael Oliva
 
Mr. Oliva - a lawyer - is 
legal adviser in the Ministry
of Government. Additional data 
are not available.
 

Victor F. Ard6n
 
Mr. Ard6n is a professor of the Spanish Language.
Among his many publications 
are basic Spanish texts
widely used in 
Honduras and 
other Central American
countries. During his 
long career 
he has served as
Director General of Secondary Schools, City Council
Member of the 
Central District and lecturer in the
National University. 
 He was a delegate to the Second
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Central American Municipal Assembly (El Salvador,
 
1960) and has served as President and Vice-President
 
of the Central American Intermunicipal Association
 
(1960-61).
 

Jos6 Mario Suazo Osorio
 

Mr. Suazo has held various positions with the General
 
Direction of Civil Aeronautics. He is presently in
 
charge of the Civil Aeronautics Registry. He has
 
studied air traffic control in the U.S. and Panama.
 



--- 

BANMA - ORGANIZATION PLAN
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 

PRESIDENT's 
OFF.
 

President
 
2 Secretaries
 

I L wy r
LEGAL ADISERS OFF. - INTERNAL AUDITING OFFICEI Auditor
 
Legal Representation 


Internal Auditing
 

MANAGER's 
OFFICE
 

Manager
 
SSecretary
 

-

TECH. SERVICES DEPT 

Special Studies and Investigations

FINANCIAL DEPARTMENT 


I Dept. Chief 
 1I Dept. Chief DPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
(Vac) 

OP R T NS D P
1 Urban Planning Spec. TM T
2 Loan Analysts
2 Municipal Analysts I Dept. Chief
(I vac) 1 Secretary
I Loan Administrator 


DACCOUNTING
1 Project Evaluator NE SeR
2 Asst. Loan 
Adm. (Vac)

I Secretary Secc. Chief Gec.
I Contractor Officer Chief
 

1 Accountant I (Vac) 
 I Chauffeur
1 Accountant II 
 2 Messengers

I Accounting 
 3 Guards
* 
Municipal Financial/Admin. Clerk/Typist
Analyses * Analisis of Loan 3 Maintenance
Applications Personnel
* Prepare Loan
Project Promotion Contracts 


* Loan CREDIT
execution Programming 
 COM. PORTFOLIORECOVER
1 Secc. Chief 
(Vac)
Employees 1 Secc. Chief
Training Of Munic. 
 Supervision ofof
** supervision 
 Licitations
Construction 

'. I Accountant IITechnical Assistance in 1 Typist I Assistant
* Very Limited 1 Collection Agent
Preparing Loan Direct Technical
Applica- CASH
Assistance in Project Design
tions and Satisfying 
 I-Cashier/Teller


Technical Assitance 
in SAN PEDRO SULA BRANCH OFFICE 

Coordination with other 


* Loan
* c o repayment monitoring
GOH Agencies n i g a d fi a c a e o d
* Maintain project shelf I Office Chief 
 I Secretary
ACCOUNTING 
 * Accounting
CASH and financial records
Grant Funds Search * Receipt and
* Follow up I Accountant II Disbursement of Cash and
on completed 1 Cashier I Securities
CREDIT 
 * Admiistratv
GENERAL SERVICES Si es
Administrative Services
I Collections
1eSection 
ChiefOfficer I Maint.Personnel
2 Guards ­ - Recovery 
 of Commercial Portfolio
 

Loan 
repayment Monitoring and collections tro
(Comm. Portfolio)o
Accounting and 
Financial records
 
Receipt and 
Disbursement of cash
Administrative Services 

and Securities
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MAt: Armnado Blance Paniagma 

DATE AND PLACE OF SITH: La Ceiba, Department of Atlintida, 10/3/30 

CIVIL STATUS: Married 

CHILDREN: Three 

PROFESSION: Lawyer aad Notary 

ADDRESS: Colonia Viera, Tegucigalpa, 
Tel 22-6416 (bam) 

22-9501 (office) 

DC. 

ACTUAL POSITION: President Autonomous Nunicipal Bank (&AtUM) 

EXPERIENCE: -

-

Standard Fruit Co. Fruit Deparment, Materials 
and Supplies Assistant, Timekeepur 

La Ceiba, Construction Department 

-

-

-

Ministry of Natural Resources, Land Section, 
Office of Agrarian Certificates, Assistant 

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Treaty and Inter­
national Organisations Section, Assistant 

Dept. of Francisco Morazdn, Legal Clerk, Labor 
Court 

- Central Institute, Honduras Institute, Professor, 
Interim Professor (respectively) in following 
subjects: Public Finance, Tax Law, Business Law, 
Principles of Economic Science and Sociology 

-

-

Controller General of Honduras, Chief of Legal 
Dept. 

Controller General, Chief of Secretarial and Admin. 
Services Dept. 

- Ministry of Labor, General Directorate of Labor, 
Acting Chief 

- Attorney General of Honduras, Assistant Public 
Prosecutor 

-

-

-

District of Yoro, Civil Court Judge and Projerty 
Registrar 

Comayagua Dept., Civil Court Judge and Departmental 
Registrar 

Tegucigalpa, Civil Appeals Court Judge 
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-

-

Justice of Comayaga Appeals Court 

Tegucigalpa, Director, Legal firm "Blanco Paniagua" 
(9 years) 

National Autonoms 
Member of Ezamining 
Euminatious 

University of Honduras (UE&), 
Board for Law School General 

STUDIES: - Course in Coparative Business Law (Central American 
Institute for Comarative Law); Tegucigalpa June, 
1972 

- Third Course for Post Graduates in Legal and 
Institutl.onal Problems of Central American Integration; 
fEAR and Central American Bank for Economic Integration 
(CA31I) 

- Course for Programs on Latin American Political and 
Economic Organizatians; sponsored by International 
Comparative Legal Teaching Faculty of Stasbourg 
France; Tegucigalpa, Honduras (1965) 

Course in Legal and Institutional Structures for 
Integration Processes UNAH; Tegucigalpa, November, 
1967 

Inter American Seminar on Municipal Banks; Caracas, 
Venezuela, March 1972 

National Seminar for High Level Managers of Public 
Enterprises; Tegucigalpa, 1973 

- Course in Civil Law (unions); UNAH, 1972 

- Observation visit to Planning Office, Municipal 
Development Institute; Bogota, Colombia, 1972 

- Observation visit, Brazilian Institute for Municipal 

Administration (IBAM); Rio de Janeiro, 1972 

- Visit to Institute for Municipal Development and 
Assistance; San Joae, Costa Rica 

- Visit to National Institute for Municipal Develop­
ment (IMM) and National Institute for Development 
Administration (INAD); Guatemala, 1972 

- Course in Municipal Administration at Technological 

Institute for Nigher Studies; Monterrey, Mexico 
September, 1972 

OTHER ACTIVITIES: - Member, Tegucigalpa Country Club 

- Member, Tegucigalpa Lions Club 
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CURRICULUM VITAE 

Nm:le: Miguel Angel Mejfa L.
 
Place and Date of Birth:    
 
Professional Qualifications: 
 Degree in Mlministration; Public
 

Accouitant. 
Civil Status: 
 Married.
 
N\o. of Children: Three
 
Address: 
 La Ronda, House No. 12, 'reguciyalpn
 
Prilay Studies: 
 6 years, Esteban Guardiola School 

La Liam, Corts.
 
Secondary Studies: 
 5 years, San Francisco Institute, 

Tegucigalpa.
University Studies: 5 years, National Autonomous 

University of Honduras.
 
Actual Occupation: 
 General Manager, Mmicipal Bank. 
Pr ior !xperience: Accounting Assistant, .Jational 

Development Bank (1956). 
Auditor in GOf Controller General
 
(1958).
 

Chief of Audit Department, GO1I 
Controller General (1956-1960).
 
Assistint Director General of 
Agriculture (1901).
 

Intenal Auditor for National 
(Autonomous) Water md Sewer Service 
(1962-67).
 

Assistant General Manager of Honduras 
Electric Materials Inc., \3HSA
 
(1968-71).


Foreign Studies: Budget Admiinistration; Central
 
American Institute of Public
 
Admiinistration (ICAP) San Jose, 
Costa Rica. 

Administration and Control of
Aqueducts; San Juan, Puerto Rico. 

Project livaluation; Inter Amrican 
Development Bank (IDB), Whashington, D.C. 

jmenustik
Rectangle
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Course for Executives; TIBM raining 
Center, Cuernavaca, Nexico. 
Foreign Cormercc Seminar; Inter 
American Center for lxort Pronintinn 
(CIPE), Bogoti, Colombia. 
Second Regional Seminar of fligh
Level Management for State Enter­
prises; (ICAP) San Jos6, Costa Rica. 
President, Junior Chamber of Conmerce; 
Tegucigalpa (1964).
 
President, National Association of
 
Junior Chambers of Commerce of
 
Honduras (1965).
 

Chief of Delegation, Conference of
 
Junior Chambers of Commerce;
 
Managua (1964).
 
Chief of Dlclation, World Conference
 
of Junior Chamtbers of Counercc;
 
Oklahoma (1964).
 
Chief of lDelegation, Junior Chamber
 
of Conuicrce; I'aiwma (1905).
 
Director of Junior Chamber of Cowiercc
 
Conference; Tegucigalpa (1966).
 
Vice President, Student Association
 
Economic Sciences Department;

Tegucigalpa.
 

Member, Sulperior University Council; 
National Autonomous University of 
Honduras. 

Delegation Member, University of 
Hfonduras visit ing University of 
Athens, Ohio. 
Member of Board, Chwiiber of Coiwiierce 
and Indus trics; Teguc igalp (1971 -73) 
Member of Tegucigalpa Coutry Club. 
Member of Rotary Club, Tegucigalpa. 
Guatc.mala, Li Salvador, Nicara gua, 
Costa Rica, Panani, Colombia, Puerto 
Rico, hexico, U.S.A. 
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Distinguished ?Icibcr; .tini or Chnibcr 
of Converce, legucigalpa. 

Candidate from National Association
of Honduran Junior Chambers of 
Connerce for World Vice President,
Junior Chamber of Conmerce World 
Congress; Sidney, Australia. 
Senator, Junior Chmnber of Conimerce. 
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BIO DATA
 

NAME : 	JosA Sadl Garcia
 

NATIONALITY 	 Honduran
 

DATE & PLACE OF BIRTH: 	    
 

CIVIL STATUS 	 Married
 

HIGH SCHOOL STUDIES : 	Public Accountant and Bookkeeping
 

UNIVERSITY STUDIES : 	Degree in Economics. Subject of
 
thesis: Analysis of Reforms in the
 
Taxation System in Honduras.
 

POST-GRADUATE STUDIES: 1. 	Intensive Basic Course in Project
 
Planning and Evaluation (ECLA,
 
United Nations, Tegucigalpa,
 
Honduras).
 

2. 	Human Relations (CCTI, Tegucigal­
pa, Honduras).
 

3. 	Marketing (CCTI, Tegucigalpa,
 
Honduras).
 

4. 	Course in Tax Administration
 
(ICAP, United Nations, San Jose,
 
C. R.).
 

5. 	Course in Financing for Economic
 
Development, (CEMLA, M~xico).
 

6. 	Course in Analysis of Financial
 
Policy, (International Monetary
 
Fund, Washington, D.C.).
 

jmenustik
Rectangle
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7. 	 Seminar on High Level Management,
 
(CCTI, SPS, Honduras).
 

8. 	Seminar on Capital Markets
 
(Secretariat of the C.A.
 
Monetary Council, SIECA, CABEI,
 
OAS, and Central Bank, Teguci­
galpa, Honduras).
 

9. 	Seminar on Loan Administration
 
(Interamerican Development Bank,
 
Tegucigalpa, Honduras).
 

EXPERIENCE 	 1. Accountant, Fgbrica de Ladrillos
 
y Tubos de Cemento "La Hondure­
fla" and Honduras Grava, S.A.
 
Tegucigalpa, D.C.
 

2. 	Chief, Income and Expenditures
 
Section, General Accounting
 
Office of the Republic, Ministry
 
of Economy and Fialuce 

3. 	Chief, Public Debt Section,
 
General Accounting Office of the
 
Republic, Ministry of Economy
 
and Finance.
 

4. 	High School Professor, Tegucigal­
pa, D.C.
 

5. 	Associate Professor, School of
 
'Economics National Autonomous
 
University of Honduras (UNAH),
 
Tegucigalpa, D.C.
 

6. 	Professor, School of Economics,
 
National Autonomous University
 
of Honduras (UNAH), Tegucigalpa,
 
D.C. 

7. 	Analyst, Technical Advisor Group,

Ministry of Economy and Finance.
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8. 	Assistant Chief, Technical
 
Advisory Group, Ministry of

Economy and Finance.
 

9. 	Chief, Technical Advisory Group,

Ministry of Economy and 
Finance.
 

10. General Coordinator, Commission
 
for the Restructuring of the
 
Central District Council, Tegu­
cigalpa, D.C.
 

11. Chief, Stock Market Program,

Central Bank of Honduras, Tegu­
cigalpa, D.C.
 

PRESENT POSITION 
 : 12. Economist in 
Project Planning,
 
Administration of 
IDB 	Loan
 
No. 291/SF-HO. Executive Unit
 
Ministry of Communication,
 
Public Works and Transportatior
 

PARTICIPATION IN
 
INTERNATIONAL MEETINGS: Assistant 
Chief, GOH Delegation to
 

the XIII Meeting of ECLA, Lima Pert
 

Note: Mr. Garcia has been hired by 
13ANMA as chief of the
Technical Services Department and will begin his
 
job 	on May 1, 1974.
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BIO DATA
 

Name 	 : 
 Efrain L6pez Padilla
 

Civil Status : 	 Married
 

Date of Birth : 	 
 

Residence : 	    
 
 

Secondary Studies 	 1957, Diploma as 
Public Accountant
 
from H~ctor Pineda Ugarte Institute.
 

University Studies 	 1963, Degree in Economic Sciences,
 
National Autonomous University of
 
Honduras (UNAH), Tegucigalpa.
 

Post Graduate Studies: 	 Human Relations, Dale Carnegie Inst.;
 
High Level Management, San Pedro
 
Sula Chamber of Commerce; Industrial
 
Projects, Technical Industrial
 
Cooperative Center; High Level
 
Management, School of Public Adminis­
tration, Costa Rica; rofessor and
 
Inspector for three semesters in
 
various subprojectj for Northern
 
Regional University Center (UNAH).
 

Languages 
 : English reading - fair.
 

Professional Experien­
ce 
 : 1. Municipal audit and administra­

tion; 1957-62
 

2. Chief, Department of Loans and
 
Securities, Mun.cipal Bank; 1963­
62.
 

3. Manager, San Pedro Sula Branch,
 
Municipal Bank; 1968-73.
 

4. Chief of Operations, Municipal
 
Bank; 1974
 

jmenustik
Rectangle



BANMA OUTSTANDING LOANS, 
DIRECT OR GUARANTEED, BY 
TYPE OF BORROWERS, AND RELATIONS
 

WITH THE PRIVATE SECTOR
 

1962 - 1972 (000's of Lempiras)
 

1962 1963 1964 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969 1970 1971 1972 
Total BANMA Loans, direct 
or guaranteed 1/ 688 1,279 5,373 5,682 5,990 6,892 7,217 7,081 7,070 8,064 7,562 
Total Municipal Loans 682 1,245 5,336 5,511 5,295 5,309 5,024 4,476 4,044 5,086 5,094 

BANMA Direct
Loans 

Municipal 
670 925 2,124 2,703 2,869 2,246 1,859 1,964 1,563 1,568 1,353 

Municipal Loans 
of Total Loans 

as a % 
99 97 99 97 88 77 70 63 57 63 67 

Loans to Private Sector- / 

Private Sector Loans as 
a % of Total Loans 

6 

1 

34 

3 

37 

1 

171 

3 

695 

12 

1,583 

23 

2,193 

30 

2,605 

37 

3,026 

43 

2,978 

37 

2,468 

33 

BANMA Private Sector
 
Liabilities 2/ (Deposits

and Loan Guarantees) 487 649 3,610 3,189 2,831 3,694 4,325 3,887 
 4,224 5,750 6,074
 
Net Transfer from Private
 
Sector 
 481 615 3,573 3,018 2,136 2,111 2,132 1,282 1,198 
 2,772 3,606
 

1/ Does not include investment in short-term Central 
Government bonds or deposits in banks; 
does

include all municipal and private sector lending.
 

2/ 
 Includes autonomous institutions.
 

SOURCE: Central Bank of Honduras. 

0 1 

o x 
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BAW..A '-UN'ICIPAL BONDS, 1962 TO 1973 - AMOUNT EMITTED, AMOUNT AMORTIZED, AND
 
PERIODS OF DELINQUENCY, COMPARISON OF SITUATION OF 9/21/72 
AND ON 3/1/74
 

(000's of Lempiras)
 

Situation on 
 Situation on
 
9/21/72 3/1/74
 

Amount of l3:rds Ern.tted 8,645 10,865 1/ 

Amount Amortized 
 3,308 
 7,175 2/

AMOiL'tized as % of Loans Made 38.2 66.0
 

ArIoUIlt Di inquent, Total 803 700 3/
t(Ji:,rluerit as % of Emitted 9.3 6.4 

iU:ouh I uelinquenm, 0-6 mos. 87 40
I-., os,. ds % of Emitted 1.0 0.3 

Ar;unt .l'cinquent, 7-12 mos. 151 75 
";-; gus. as o of Emitted 1.7 0.6 

,::, ttl~l ; 1 110to 565:.i t,+t . 5W ) 

. I:; ' of Lmi ttLid 6.5 b*1 

1/ inlcu,2u 1973 bond emmision of L.1,869,000 for San Pedro Sula airport. 
.. ,' i;luduL L.3,409,000 of San Pedro Sula airport debt assured by Central 

rjverllI.c-I t 

Ju Inut tLinclude L. '128,175 of delinquency vecently refinanced; does
'clude L.260,000 about to be refinanced. 

...'. c,, . : I!AN'IA 
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STATUS OF C fqERCIAL PORTFOLIO 

A. Recoveries to date 
 1972 1973 
 1974 
(year) (year) (1st. 3months) 

bialalce - begiming of period $1,436 $1,230
Collections during period $ 752 
206 
 323
i rittin 'off during period 156 

155 
 37

tkalmnce - End of period $1,230 $ 752 $ 559
 

1. Recoveries Projected 
 197-1 1975 197()
 
,(last9 mos)
 

kialance ­ bNLim ing of period $ 559 $ 459 $(:ol 1ect ions antic ipated dwring 
209 

)C r iod 
100 
 250 


i;alaiicc - End or period* 
209 

, 459 $ 209 

*o additional writc - offs maticipa ted 

!l!',IMeus:;( : 'oi.i i;.'\ .latcd 1/2/74 and 4/17/7, 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WJHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BANMA
 

PRIORITY CLASS 
 DATE LOAN APPLICATION 
EXPECTED AND rINANCINGGI A TOTALTYPE OF PROJECT 

PROJECT
I- Ac CONTRIBUTION 
I- AID OWNLOA:: FUNDSAID OWN ($) ($) TTATOTAL ($)
 

M PEDRO SULA REGION:
 

I. Puerto Cort6sDepartment of Cortis X X Potable water 
 74 
 277,680 
 41,650 
 236,030
X Sanitary sewerag 
 NP
N 1,091,350
X 163,700
Market 927,650
74 
 394,237 
 60,000 
 3314,237
I Slaughterhouse 
 76 83,600 12,540 71,060
Storm Sewerage
 
and Paving* 
 NP 1,122,500 168,375 
 954,125
X Land Fill* 
 NP 400,000 60,000
X Municipal Cadas- 340,000
 

.El Progeso Dept.II ter 

36,000
74 7,250 28,750
 

Yoo 

IX 
 Potable water 
 74
Sanitary Sewerag 74 
375,000 56,250 318,750
265,000 
 39,750
Market 225,250
74 
 300,000 
 45,000 
 255,000


Slaughterhouse 75 
 83,600 12,540 71,060
Storm Sewerage
 
and Paving 
 74 103,500 tS,525 67,975
 

*r ectsn that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with;-rojects will Le corsidered for financing by JAFA. 
loans being neFo:iated; in case these loans are cot granted, the 

VF a:Not programmed 

we. 
Ch 

I 
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ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR IHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BAMA 

PRIORITY CLASS 

EXPETED
DATE LOAJI APPLICATIONT ND rNAI-INGTOTAL
 

Ni O ADMNiAIYA 	 EPECTED AD FNAtSCIUGREGION AND FIU'ICIPALIT-Y 0c B !C D 	 SOURCE TOTAL COST OF MUNICIPAL BARMA INVESThENTYPE OF PROJECTPRJC
 
I
TR FP EPROJECT CONTRIBUTION
0 ­ :'LA: 	 AID OWN 

_ 	 FUNJDS____ __ __ _ _ _ _ _ 	 __ _ __ LOAN FUNDS (5$) (Cs) TOA s($)_ __1/ _ _ 

J - X Municipal Cadas­

eter 74 	 70,640 10,596 60,044
3. 	 Tela, Department of 3 Cementery 76 42,000 6,300 35,700
 
Atlgntida 
 X 
 X Potable water* 
 76 250,000 37,500 
 212,500
X Sanitary Sewerag * 
 NP 175,000
X Market 	 26,250 148,750


225,000
75 	 33,750 191,250

X Storm Sewerage


and Paving* 
 NP 375,000 
 56,250 318,750

X Municipal Cadas­tI ter 74 27,325 4,099 23,226 

4. Quimistin, Department 	 t
 
of Santa Bgrbara X X Potable Water 74 9,700 1,455 8,245
X Sanitary Sewerage 
 74 48,500 7,275 
 41,225
I X Municipal Cadas-

S. Santa Bfibara, Dept.1 5 I ter 75 	 5,2501	 787 4,462

of 	Santa Bgrbara Xj X Municipal Cadas-X1 	 ter 1- 75 14,700 1 2,208 1 12,512
 

Projects that will be financed by other agencies with own 
funds or w-th loans being negotiated; in case these loans are 
not granted, the
projects will e considered for financing by BANIMA.
 

1/ V:P = !t pro~rammed 

*~ ' 
tM x. 

044. 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BANMA
 

PRIORITY CLASS ATE LOAN APPLICATIOTA 

EXPECTEDS0RIACUAD TOTAL COST OF MUNICIPAL BAINMA INVESTMENT 
REGIONi AND MUNICIPALITY W A D TYPE OF PROJECT~ 	 AIPO.C ROJECT CONTRIBUTION 

LOA'! FUN TOTAL
 

6. Choloma, Department 
 I 
of Cortes. 
 X X Potable 	Water 
 75 32,500 4,875 27,625
 

Slaughterhouse 
 75 44,000 6,600 37,400 
X I Storm Sewerage 

and Paving 76 12,600 1,890 10,710 
X vanicipal Cadas­

7t Villanuevaa Departmeni X ter 74 	 19,720 2,958 16,762
of Cort~s X X I Sanitary Sewerag 75 91,200 13,680 77,520


7 l ae 
 Storm Sewerage |I and Paving* I NP 1,012,000 151,800 860,200 
I X City 	Hall Build-I 

: n¢ P36,000 5,400 30,600 
an0	 U 3P 5,400
8. San Manuel, Departmen j 


of Cortis 	 Ix *Sewerage and
 

74 71,000 11,000 60,000

9. Trinidad, Department Paving 

of Santa Barbara X Market 75 25,000 3,750 21,250 
X X Potable Water 75 125,000 18,750 106,250 

.L I 	 _n___ __- 12,500 1,875 
 10.625
Frojects th*-t will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being neotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the
 
;.rojects will be considered for financ-ng by BA!A.VNW
 

PN/= NOt programmed 	 cM 

o 

a,) 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST Or PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BANIA 

PRIORITY CLASS DATE LOAH APPLICATION 
EXPECTED AN;D FI1 A1C-:!G 

L 	 A C D T OSOURCERiXOION AND IAUNICIPALITY 	 TOTAL COST OF MUNICIPALW, "W-PROJECT TYPE OF PROJECT CONTfRIBUTION
RJC O7RBTO
0 E-	 AIDLO-.: OWN 	 $C)FU (9)($ 


10. Colinas, Department
 
of Santa Bhrbara X X Sanitary Sewerage 
 75 40,000 6,000


1 Slaughterhouse 74 17,500 2,625Sula j Construction Equ 

12. 	Cooperative El 
 74 209,642 31,447 

Prgeso Construction
 

13. 	Cooperative Santa 1 Equipment 74 86,706 13,006

B~rbara 
 xConstruction
 

TOTAL SAN ?EDRO SULA 	 Equipment 75 155,294 23,294
REGION ............ ..... ... ...
..
 

LA CEIBA REGION: 	 u 
 . 

I. La Ceiba, Departmentof AtlAntida X X 
 Water 7575 
 500,000 75,000

X Sanitary Sewerag NP 375,000 56,250 


Projecta t,;it will be firanced by other agencies with own funds or with loans being ne~o-iatec; in case these loans are not 
projects will be considered for financing by BANMA.
 

"/ 	!:P Hot pro;rauned 

TOTAL 

BANKA INVESTMENT 

TOTAL $) 

34,000
 
14,875
 

178,200
 

73,700
 

132,000
 

425,000
 
318,750
 

granted, the 

* w 
*NU 

a.
 

4" 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE REOUZ 
STED FROM BAN IA 

PRIORITY CLASS 	 DATE LOAII APPLICATION

EXPECTED A;r FINANCING 	 TCTALA B D OJCTSOURCE TC TOTAL COST OF MUNICIPAL BANMA INVESTPENT
 

REGION AND MUNICIPALITY 
 wTYr 	 OF PROJECT o cPPOJrCT CONTRIBUTION 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 	 AID CW:; ($) ($) Tr,-AL $ 
_____ ____ __LOA 	 - __ __ I__ _ ___'_ __ __ _ 

X Transport Termi­
nal 76 126,000 18,900 107,100 

x Market 76 300,000 45,000 255,000 
X Storm Sewerage ani 

Paving 76 240,000 36,000 204,000 
X Municipal Cadas­

ter 74 62,800 12,420 70,380 
-2. Olanchito, Department 	 X Cementery NP 42,000 6,300 35,700 

of Yoro X X Potable Water 76 	 175,000 
 26,250 148,750
 
X Sanitary Sewerage NP 79,500 11,925 67,575
 
X Electric Power 75 15,000 2,250 12,750
 

X 	 Storm Sewerage
 
and Paving* NP 306,000 45,900 260,100
 

X Municipal Cadas­
. ter 74 38,605 5,791 32,814
3Trujilio, Department 

of Col6n X X Potable Water 	 75 5,500 825 4,675 
_I Sanitary Sewerage 	 75 10,395 1,559 8,836 

Projects that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being negotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the -anZ
 
projects will be considered for financing by BANMA. 
 a M 

1/ NP 	 = Not programmed 
,.# 

" 

CA,
4" 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BANMA 

I -1 
PRIORITY CLASS 
 DATE LGAN APPLICATION
 

EXPETED ND FNANC,"-GTOTAL
EXETDA$FU1C~ OTAL COST OF M~UNICIPAL BAITMA I1V.EfTPNTREGION AND MUNICIPALITY - ROJECTC TYPETYPE OFOF PROJECT S , .O FROJETVNrIUi'CT ON.UIL BAID OWN 

11/ 
X Market 75 200,000 30,000 170,000 

X 
xX 

school* aiPStorm Sewerage 21,000 3,150 17,850 

and Paving
XMunicipal Cadas-1 76 273,000 40,930 232,050 

4. YOrO, Department of 
ter 74 11,405 1,711 9,694 

Yoro . X 

X 

Sanitary Sewerage 

Municipal Cadas­
76 40,000 6,000 34,000 

5t San Esteern Departmen ter 75 9,450 1,417 8,032 
of Olancho 

6. GuaXaia, Department of 

X X 

X 

Market 

Slaughterhouse 
NP 

NP 
30,000 

12,500 
4,500 
1,875 

25,500 
10,625 

Islas de la Bahia 

7 Soagera, Department
of Col6n 

. Cooperative Tela La 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Potable Water 

Electric Power 75 

75 55,677 

27,500 

8,352 

4,125 

47,325 

23,375 

Ceiba X Construction 
Equipment 74 186,353 27,953 158,400 

ProjecL 
 that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being negotiated;
projects trill be considered for financing by BANMA. in case these loans are not granted, the =M
 
e lb 

1/ NP = Not programmed *" M 

CAl l. 

ob 

0 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BAI-SA 

SPRIORITY CLASS f DATE LOAi APPLICATION 
AIYFXCION AND :4 A 1 FINANCING 	 TOTALI AD" 3 	 C'U;C EXFE 'TED AINDD TYPE or JU SOURCESOUCE
AND FIIN I 	 TOTAL COST OF "" ICTA BANYAB INVESTMENT.NICIPALPROJECT 
 CONTRIBUTIONr=- -
 AID OWN.U,,C 


TOTAL (S) 
I/
 

9. Cooperative 	Olanchito-

Trujillo 
 X 	 Construction
 

Equipment
TOTAL LA CEIBA REGION............................................... 	 NP 155,294 
 23,294 	 132,000
.......... ............ ............................. 
...2,596,795
 

CHOLUTECA REGION:
 
1. Choluteca, Department
 

of Choluteca 
 X 
 X Potable Water 
 NP 200,000
X 	 30,000 170,000
Sanitary Sewerage. 
 NP 145,000
x 	 21,750 123,250
Market 

225,000
75 33,750 191,250
 

X 
75 83,600 12,540 71,060
 

x 	 Slaughterhouse 

School* 
 NP 65,000 9,750 
 55,250
X Storm Sewerage
 

2. San Lorenzo, Dep en 
 and Paving 
 75 210,000 
 31,500 	 178,500
of Valle 
 X X 
 Sanitary Sewerage 
 75 75,000 11,250 
 63,750

X Storm Sewerage


nd Paving 
 76 270,000 40,500 
 229,500
 

h Projects that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being negotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the
projects will be considered for financing by BANA.
 
1/ NP = Hot progammed 

g 

t 4 

o 
oq.s
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ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WJHICH FI.NANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BANI1A 

PRIORITY CLASS 
 DATE LOA!N AOTPLICATIOALu ~EXPECTED A2 D F:ACI';GTOA 
R PIA D .rPJTSURCE TOTAL COST OF FUNICIPAL BAINMA I!NVESTENT

REGION AND HUNICIPALITY w 42- T . - •CT 	 PPCJECT CO'ITRIBUTION 
1 	 E-AI

0ADo 	 OWNI.( 	 $) TOTA. ($
1/ 

3. 	 San Marcos de Col6n,; 
Department of Cholute­
ca. 
 x X Market 75 	 50,000 7,500 42,500


4.Cooperative Choluteca X Construction 
Equipment 75 128,117 19,217 108,900


5. Cooperative San Loren-
Zo 	and Valle X Construction
 

Equipment NP 155,294 
 23,294 132,000

rOTAL REGION OF CHOLUTE-

CA ................... '.'.'"..'.' '''. ..... ' . . ............................ 	 ............ ............... I.............. . 1,257,287
 

ANTA ROSA DE COPAN REGI¢W 

L.Santa Rosa de Coptn,
Department of Copfin X X 
 Sanitary Sewerage 75 150,000 22,500 127,500


X Market 74 225,000 33,750 191,250
 
X Storm Sewerage


and Paving NP 180,000 27,000 153,000
 
X Municipal Cadas­

ter 74 
 22,240 3,336 18,904
 

Projects that will be financed by other agencies 	with own funds or with loans being negotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the 
 ,

projects will be considered for financing by BAh,"A. 
 0 	x
 

NP = Not programmed 	 * s,.t 

C0 



J.LUZ KAi-i±V LIST OF PROJECTS FOP. WHICH FINANCING UAY BE FRQUESTED FROM BA!U4A 

PRIORITY CLASS DATE LOA!1 APPLICATIOII 
RCEXPECTED AND FINANCI::G 
- A B C 	 TOTALA" 	 D T PALE F PRCJEr 	 COST OF FtETIUCPAL-	 BANMA !14VESTMEINTPROJECT CONTRIBUTION 

oi 

rLOfI:U U-!OWN ($) ($) TO7AL($) 

2. Gracias, Department oLempira 
 X 
 X Potable Water 
 74 32,500 
 4,875 27,625

X Municipal Cadas­

3. Nueva Ocotepeque, 	 ter 76 
 18,665 2,800 
 15,865
1,6
 
Department of Ocote­
peque 
 x 
 X Municipal Cadas­

. Copn Ruinas, Depart-
 75 14,700 2,205 12,495

ment of Cop.n x X Sanitary Seweragi 
 76 40,000 6,000 
 34,000
X Electric Power 74 
 31,325 4,700
5.Sn 	 26,625
5. San Jer6ni, 	 Depart-
Dea7t
 Markem, 74 	 50,000 7,500 
 42,500
 
met of Copn x x 
 Potable Water 
 74 15,500 11,500 
 4,000
6. Cooperative Santa
 
Rosa de Cophn 
 X Construction 

AL SANTA ROSA DE C Equipment 75 154,000 23,100 130,900
 
REGION.................................. 
. .....................
 

Projects that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being negotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the 
 .projects will be considered for financing by BANMA.
 S't
 

/NP = Not programmed 

x'
 

0 .,0 " 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCIN:G flAY BE RFOUESTED F.OM BA111-A 

PRIORITY CLASS 
 EXPECTEDDAT E LOAH APPLICATION
AND FINANCINiGREGION 	 AND MUNICIPALITY : A B C 	 T.0CE TC.TAL
TOTAL COST OF r':USICIPAL.. !)FYP.E P-CJLCT 	 PAMA I!:VESTMENT 

PROJE.CT CON:TRIPJTIO! 
SAID OWN 

Cs).lS TGTAL 

COMAYAGUA REGION: 

1. Comayagiua,of ComayaguaDepartmentl x X Potable Water* 
 NP 150,000
X Sanitary Sewerag,£ 	
22,500 127,500


NP 100,000 15,000 
 85,000
X Municipal Cadas­

ter 
 74 	 18,260 3,652 14,608ment of Comayagua 
 X X Sanitary Sewerag 
 75 75,000 11,250
X 	 63,750
Market 
 76 
 32,500
X Slaughterhouse 76 	
4,875 27,625

44,000 
 6,600 
 37,400
X 	 Storm Sewerage
and Paving* NP 690,000
X 	 103,500
Parks* 	 586,500
NP 43,750 
 6,562 
 37,187
X Municipal Cadas­
ter 
 74 
 22,095 
 3,314 
 18,781
X Children's Feed­

3. Marcala, Department ing Center 
 NP 146,562
of La Paz 	 21,987 124,575
X x Storm Sewerage 
- - 1 74 65 100 
 9.765 
 55 335

Projects that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being negotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the0
projects will be considered for financing by BANMA. 
 =
 

OmI n 
/ NP = Not programmed 

0 P 

o1 ­

http:PROJE.CT


ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINA!NCING MAY BE FXOUESTED FROM BANHA 

PRIORITY CLASS DATE LOAII Af'PLICATION TOTAL 
EXPECTED AND FI.,AUCl1, 

AN AD U D EXPECTED ANDC , I:UNICIPAL -ANMA IN;..TMENTUFTNAN TOTAL COST OF 

FEGION AND MUICIPALITY W A 3 C 13 T F0 U 
 PROJECT CONTRIBUTION
 

- iAID OWN 
j uI 1 ($) ($) 

-- -Storm Sewerage 

and Paving 75 12,500 1,875 10,625

XMunicipal Cadas­
ter 74 5,250 787 4,462
 

4. La Paz, Department of
 
La Paz x Agric.Storage
 

Facility 75 15,000 2,250 12,750

X Sanitary Sewerag 75 10,000 1,500 8,500
 
x Bridge 75 5,000 750 4,250
 

X Municipal Cadas­
ter 74 14,345 2,151 12,193
 

5. La Esperanza and 
Intibucg, Department 
of Intibucg X X Municipal Cadas­

ter 75 10,500 1,575 8,925
 
6. Cooperative Comayagua x Construction
 

Equipment 74 166,941 25,041 141,900
 
7. Cooperative La Espe­

ranza-Harcala X Construction 
Equipment NP 94,470 14,170 80,300
 

TOTAL COHAYAGUA REGION.......................................................................................................
1,455,517
 
Projects that will be financed by other agencies with own funds or with loans being negotiated; in case these loans are not granted, the 'uM
 
projects will be considered for financing by BANMA. 
 a x :9 

1/ NP Not programmed 
,.. 

o ..m-. 



ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR 1IvIICH FINANCING MAY BE REOUESTED FROM BANMlA 

PRIORITY CLASS
j ]EXPECTED j DATE LOA!J APPLICATIONA11D FINANC_-NG 
 TOTAL
 
E XPECT ETYPE oFROJ TOTAL COST OF MUIICIPAL BANMA INVESTMENT
PROJECT 
 CONTRIBUTION
 

ATD 
 OWNT 
FUND( $V. r TOAL 

JUTICALPA REGION: 

1. Juticalpa, Department
of Olancho 
 x X Potable Water 75 105,000 22,50012,0
 
X Sanitary Sewerage 
 75 115,000 
 17,250
X Slaughterhouse 97,750
75 44,000 6,600 
 37,400
 

X Storm Sewerage
I and Paving NP 267,750 
 40,162 227,587
X School* 
 J NP 42,000 6,300 35,700
It
! X Municipaler Cadas­ 74
2. Catacamas, Department 2735
1 Iter ,9

of Olancho X 27,325 4,098 23,226x 
 Sanitary Sewerage 
 75 37,500 
 5,625 31,875


X Storm Sewerage
 

1 land Paving* P51007,5X Municipal Cadas- 2,5
NP51007I5 
 2,5
ter 
 74 
 14,345 
 2,150 12.195
 
L ooperative Juticalpa. 
 X 
 Construction
REGION 
 EJUTICALPA
Equipment
......... NP
R N .......................................... 166,941 25,041 141,900
............ 
..............................
1,160,982
 
r0Je: ,.z will bie fInanced by 
3thez- agencius with own funds or wich loans being negotiated; 
in case these loans are not granted, the
zojectz will be considered for financing by B.'A. 


",rogrammed ,
LP = p 

OQ Z 

a. N 
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ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE REQUESTED FROM BANMA
 

PRIORITY CLASS DATE LOAN APPLICATIO7N 

EXECTEDDAPDSFI EXPETED ND INANINGTOTALCG TOTAL COST OF MUNICIPAL BANMA INVESTMENTRE;CION AND MUNICIPALITY -~ A B C DTYPE OF PROJECT SOFCnPOJCTCTIUTIO 
ID OWN 

LOP: FUND.S ( $) ( $ ) TOTAL C$) 

DANLI REGION:
 

1. Danll, Department of 
El Pax'also X i Potable Water* 
 NP 150,000 22,500 
 127,500
XI Market 75 	 225,000 33,750 
 191,250
x / x ! Slaughterhouse 75
Storm Sewerage 	 44,000 7,0
6,600 37,400
 

and Paving 
 75 525,000 78,750
X City Hall Build- 446,250
 
as
 ling* 
 NP 144,000 
 21,600 122,400
Parks* 
 NP 65,625 
 9,844 55,781
X 	Municipal Cadas-,
 

2. 	 El Paralso, Departmen j 1ter 74 	 22,240 3,336 18,904
of el Paralso 
 Potable Water
x X 	 1 75 100,000 15,000 85,000X Sanitary Seweragq 
 75 65,000 
 9,750 55,250

X ISlaughterhouse 
 74 	 44,000 
 6,600 37,400
X 	Municipal Cadas­

ter 11,405 1,711
74 

9,694
 

Projects t.,c wll be financed by 	other agencies with own funds or 	with loans being nerotiated; inprojects will be considered for financing Ly BANI;A. 	
case these loans are not granted, tie 

*M: 

NP .ot proranmed 	 0 F M 

ca rt ­

01, 1­



P"-ION AND MNIPALITY 

3. Yuscarfin - Deatmnof El Paralso. 


4. Cooperative Danil 

TEGUCIGALPA REGION: 

1. Talanga, Departmentof Francisco Moraz~n 


2. Cooperative Tegucigal 


ILLUSTRATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS FOR WHICH FINANCING MAY BE 

-
D t_ 

PRIORITY 

A: A 

CLASS 

C D YPE OF PR;OjT 

_L 

I 

DATE LOAil Ar'PLICATIO: 
EXPETED

SUR 
FC 

AID~ OWN 

Sanitary Sewerag 75 

. 
I 

I 

. 
terConstruction 

...Equpment .. 
I 74 

X 

x 

1 arket 

~Municipal Cadas-1 

Equipment 

74 

75 

75 

REQUESTED FROM 

ND 
TOTAL COST OFPROJECT 

67,500 


4,410 

134,588 


100,000 


12,600 


221,294 


BANMA 

INANINGTOTAL 
MUNICIPALCONTRIBUTION 

10,125 


661 

20,188 


15,000 


1,890 


33,194 


BANMA INVESTMENT
 

TOTAL
 

57,375
 

3,748
 
114,400
 

85,000
 

10,710
 

188,100
 

t;,at will be finance'.:cjects Ly o'the1agnc -h own funls or wit). loans beinrg neg.otiated; in
;.ro-;ect= w-:-!l he cons---der~ed for fi nancing 1-y BAN':A. 
case these loans are not granted, the 

" ot rcra jred O V = 

0 P-. -, 

o 
I1ca 
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USE 	 OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, TRAINING, AND EQUIPMENT LOAN
FUNDS 

A. Technical Assistance
 

It is presently planned to provide loan funded tech­nical assistance to the BANMA and participating munic­ipalities as 
follows:
 

1o 	 Capital projects advisor

3 years at $25 ooo $ 75,000 

2. 	Equipment Advisor and Regional

Cooperative Supervisor 
- 2
years at $30,000 per year 
 60,000
 

3. 	Cadaster Advisor 
- 1 	year at
$40,000 per year 
 40,000

4. 	 Marketing Advisor 
- 1 year at 30,000 
 30,000

5. 
 Short Term Advisors 
 95,000
 
6. 	 Project Evaluation and Auditing IOO 

$400,ooo 

B. Traininq 

Training will be provided to BANMA employees and
Municipal employees and officials as 
follows:
 

1. 	Training courses for 	municipal
employees and officials 
- travel,

per 	diem costs for participants
and 	 fees and expenses for courseinstructors 


$11 0,000
 
2. 	Short term traih~ing for BANMA
 

personnel in U.S. 
or third
countries 

25,000
 

3. 	 Long term training for selected

BANMA personnel 


15 -000 
$150,000 
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C. 	lquipment
 

Equipment and office improvements are estimated to
 
include the following items:
 

1. 	Four jeep type vehicles and spare
 
parts 
 $ 20,000 

2. 	Desk, adding machines, typewriters
 
and calculators 
 8,500
 

3. 	Bank accounting machines 
 7,500
 

4. 	Telephone system 
 4,000
 

5. 	Miscellaneous 
 10,000
 

$°50,000
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SUMMARY OF CREDIT POLICY
 
HONDURAN MUNICIPAL BANK (BANMA)
 

CREDIT POLICY,:
 

1. 	General Orientation:
 

Once a project is declared eligible for financing in
 
accordance with the financial policy, the Bank will attempt
 
to develop a financing plan that will maximize the income
 
potential for the municipality, within the limits of the
 
credit policy.
 

2. 	Based on an appropriate feasibility study, the Bank will
 
determine the repayment period, interest rate, and co'nter­
part requirements so as to provide the municipality with
 
a net return of 10%/year on its investment.
 

3. 	Assuming an interest rate of 10% and a counterpart contri­
bution of 15%, the repayment period will be extended to
 
the point of satisfying the return criteria. In no case
 
may this period exceed 15 years for class A projects or
 
10 years for others.
 

4. 	If adjusting the repayment period does not allow the project
 
to meet the return criteria, the interest rate will be
 
lowered, assuming the maximum repayment period, until the
 
project does meet that criteria. In no case may it be
 
lowered to less than 4% for class A projects, 5% for class
 
B, 6% for C and 7% for class D projects. Any interest
 
rate of less than 6% must be justified by showing that
 
a higher rate would result in undue economic hardship for
 
the municipality and/or for the consumers of the service.
 
If this cannot be shown, the Bank may require an increase
 
in service charges as a sub-loan precondition.
 

5. 	If lowering the interest rate 
has still not allowed the
 
project to meet the return criteria, the Bank may require
 
a larger counterpart requirement. Raising the counter­
part requirement in increments of 5%, the feasibility
 
will be recalculated to see if the project would meet the
 
return criteria. In no case would the counterpart re­
quirement exceed 30% for class A projects, 40% for class
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B, 50% for class C and 60% for class D.
 

6. 	If the project still does not meet the return criteria,
 
the Bank may require:
 

a) 	Liens on property or other acceptable guarantees over
 
and above those normally required; and/or
 

b) 	Deposit in a special account of part or all of the
 
net income from other services to cover the expected
 
shortfall.
 

7. 	The period of grace extended by the Bank will cover the
 
time programmed for execution of the project, but in 
no
 
case more than 18 months.
 

8. 	A one percent commission will be charged on direct loans.
 

9. 	The Bank will make no loan which would raise to more than
 
20% of the total portfolio the loans extended to any one
 
municipality.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POLICY
 
HONDURAN MUNICIPAL BANK (BANMA)
 

FINANCIAL POLICY:
 

I. Orientation of the Policy:
 

BANMA will develop and keep updated an investment program
which reflects the role the GOH has assigned to 
the Bank
in promoting the development of Honduras.
 
2. 
Investments will be concentrated in regions of high
potential agricultural Productivity.


projects as 
BANMA will finance
specified in the five-year Development Plan.
In the absence of specific orientation in the plan, the
regional distribution of investments will roughly follow
the trend of all government investments, calculated on 
a
regional basis.
 

3. During the years 
1974-78, BANNA will concentrate invest­ments in the polar and aubpolar counties except the urban
areas of Tegucigalpa and San Pedro Sula.
are These 27 counties
identified in various documents of the National Planning
Council. 
 Based on projections of available capital, the
following distribution will be observed:
 

BANMA 
 AID Loan

N Resources Program TOTAL


Ia. Urban/Industrial poles

(Teg. and SPS) 
 2 30%
1b. Agricultural service poles 

-. 10%

6 30%
II. Agricultural service subpoles 45% 40%
21 30%
III. Other municipalities 254 

45% 40%
 
10% 
 10% 
 10%
 

T 0 T A L 
 283 100%
4. 100% 100%
BANMA will give.priorlty to those.rojects which improve the income and
welfare of the low-income Honduran and whose area of influence extends
beyond the county seat serving the rural areas of the county
, subregion,
and region.

5. 
Investments will be concentrated on pxojects most closely related to the
development of the agricultural -reerT. 
 e lie elfl--f---

of projects has been adopted: 
M-

A. 
Projects that directly improve the efficiency of the production
and distribution of agricultural products.
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These include: public markets, storage facilities for
 
agricultural products, slaughterhouses, access roads
 
to areas of high agricultural production, road
 
construction and maintenance equipment, irrigation
 
systems.
 

B. 	Projects that indirectly improve, the efficiency of the
 
production and distribution of agricultural products.
 
These include: potable water systems, sanitary sewerage,
 
electrical energy, preparation of industrial sites,
 
transport terminals, health centers, rural schools.
 

C. 	Projects having marginal effects on agricultural product-vity°
 
These include: street paving, storm sewers, shopping
 
centers.
 

D. Other projects. These include: garbage collection
 
equipment, fiscal cadastera, cemeteries, city halls,
 
recreational facilities, tourism projects, technical
 
and professional services.
 

All of the projects in classes A and B
 
will be eligible for financing under the A.I.D.
 

loan. Likewise fiscal cadasters (class D).
 

The distribution of these projects in BANMA's overall lending
 
will follow the following orientation:
 

Class A 40-50%
 
Class B 30-40%
 
Class C 10-30%
 
Class D 0-15%
 

6. 	The above policies will be treated in all municipal analysis and sub­
loan approval documentation.
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DIRECCION CABLEGRAFICA 

3 A N M A" 

BORRADOR
 

REGLAMENTO DE LA APROBACION DE PRESTAMOS
 

TITUL0 
 I
 

ELEGIBILIDAD DE LAS MUNICIPALIDADES
 

C A P I T U L 0 I
 

REQUISITOS BASICOS
 

Articulo 1.-
 Ser~n elegibles de recibir asistencia financiera
 
del Banco, las Municipalidades que cumplan con
 
los siguientes requisitos b~sicos:
 

Muestren en sus 
operacions, 
una responsabi­
lidad administrativa-financiera, aceptable
 
para el Banco.
 

Cuenten con un 
buen sistema de recaudaci6n
 
de impuestos, que produzcan recaudaciones
 
lo suficientement altas, de 
las posibles
 
rentas Municipales.
 

Tengan actualizado 
un plan integral de
 
desarrollo aceptable para el BANMA.
 

Esten al dia 
con sus obligaciones ante
el BANMA, o que se comprometan ponerse al 
d~a al momento de firmar el contrato de
 
prestamo.
 

Reflnan otros criterios, 
que el BANMA decida
 
aplicar a su juicio.
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Artjculo 2.-	 El Banco determinarA la elegibilidad de cada
 
Municipalidad cliente potencial a travs de un
 
analisis Municipal.
 

C A P I T U L 0 II
 

LOS ANALISIS 	MUNICIPALES
 

Articulo 3.-	 A trav6s del anglisis sistem5tico de la administra­
ci6n de las operaciones y del estado financiero
 
de la Municipalidad se determinarg el grado de
 
cumplimiento con los requisitos b6sicos.
 

Tambign estableceri 1o "m~ximo" que la Municipa­
lidad podrg amortizar para cancelar sus deudas y
 
por 1o tanto 	hasta que m~ximo estimado se lo po­
drl prestar. Asimismo establecerg tambien el ti­
po de entrenamiento que necesitarg el personal
 
Municipal, para poder realizar sus funciones con
 
precisi6n y rapidez, asi como para organizar y
 
administrar un proyecto de servicios Municipales.
 
Finalmente, establecerg las precondiciones con que
 
la Municipalidad !ebe cumplir para establecer su
 
elegibilidad.
 

Articulo 4.-	 El Departamento de Servicios T6cnicos del Banco
 
realizarg el primer anglisis Municipal dentro de
 
tres meses de recibir la primera solicitud de
 
prestamo de una Municipalidad. El Banco podrg
 
antes de realizar el anglisis aprobar y desembol­
sar sobre el primer prestamo solicitado.
 

Asimismo el Gerente podrg prolongar el plazo en
 
que el Banco realizarg el anglisis si la disponi­
bilidad del personal lo hace necesario.
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Articulo 5.-	 Cuando es posible, se realizarg el primer
 
anglisis Municipal, como parte del programa de
 
elaboraci6n de los planes integrales de desa­
rrollo que lleva a cabo el Ministerio de Obras
 
Pdblicas.
 

Articulo 6.-	 El Banco estarg actualizando peri6dicamente los
 
an'lsis Municipales en lapsos no mayores de
 
5 aflos. Sin embargo el BANMA podrg actualizar
 
el anglisis Municipal lo mas pronto posible, al
 
ocurrir cualquiera de los siguientes factores:
 

1. Cuando la 	Municipalidad cae on morosidad por
 
mas de 3 meses, en la amortizaci6n y pago do
 
intereses sobre un prestamo.
 

2. Cuando a la Municipalidad se le ha prestado
 
hasta lo ma'ximo previamente establecido y
 
quiere realizar proyectos adicionales (siem­
pre que estg al dia en el pago de todas sus
 
obligaciones 	financieras ante el BANMA).
 

3. A petici6n de la 	Municipalidad, cuando lo
 
justifique la aprobaci6n e inclusi6n de pro­
yectos en el Plan Nacional o Regional de
 
Desarrollo.
 

4. Cuando los ingresos Municipales aumentan a
 
disminuyei drsticamente (en un 30%), en
 
relaci6n con el afto anterior.
 

C A P I'T U LO 'III
 

L.A 	RESPONSABILIDAD ADMINISTRATIVA Y FINANCIERA DE LAS
 
MUNICIPALIDADES
 

Art.culo 7.- Con el prop6sito de evaluar el "M'rito de CrA'­
dito" de la Municipalidad, el Banc' reserva el
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derecho de examinar los libros, documentos, plan­
tas, y metodos, prfcticas administrativas o rea­
lizar otras investigaciones que fueren necesarios
 
para permitir que el segin los criterios que

estime convenientes, determine el grado de la
 
responsabilidad administrativa y financiera de la
 
Municipalidad.
 

Art'culo 8.- Como mlnimo entraran como 
criterios los siguien­
tes factores:
 

1. 	La educaci'n, capacitaci6n y experiencia del
 
personal Municipal, tanto de funcionarios
 
como de empleados.
 

2. 	La organizaci6n administrativa de la Munici­
palidad y la eficiencia con que realiza sus
 
operaciones.
 

3. 	El monto de los ingresos ordinarios y extra­
ordinarios de las Municipalidades, comparado
 
con las posibles rentas.
 

4. 	El funcionamiento y estado del sistema
 
contable.
 

5. 	El manejo y administraci6n de los servicios
 
pblicos que presta al pueblo.
 

6. 	La organizaci6n y contenido de las actas,
 
ordenanzas y legislaci6n Municipal.
 

7. 	La operaci'n y resultados de los proyectos
 
financiados antert.ormente por el BANMA, otra
 
instituci'n financiera, o casa comercia.es.
 

8. 	El nfmero de reuniones de la Corporaci6n Mu­
nicipal abiertas al pfiblico y el nimero pro­
medio de personas que asisten a las reuniones.
 

http:comercia.es
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Art'culo 9.-
 El Banco, despues de realizar el anfisis Munici­pal informar' por escrito 
a la Municipalidad que
ha sido declarado elegible para recibir pr6stamo
del BANMA 
o en su caso, 
que deberg implantar me­didas correctivas, si 
se 
ha notado deficiencias
 en 
el manejo administrativo y financiero de la
Municipalidad. 
La implantaci6n de 
estas medidas
serg una condici'n precedente al desembolso so­bre el pr6ximo prestamo a la Municipalidad.
 

Articulo 10. 
La Municipalidad informara al Banco cuando haya
implantado las medidas correctivas, para que
este 
qitimo haga las investigaciones necesarias
para determinar si la Municipalidad ha cumplido
la condici6n precedente que 
se establecia.
 

Articulo 11. El Gerente del Banco, podr5 
conceder excepciones
temporales 
a las disposiciones de 
los ArtIculos
9 y 10 cuando la Municipalidad demuestre suficien­tes 
esfuerzos hacia cumplimiento como 
para ameri­
tarlo.
 

C A P I T U L02 IV
 

LA RE'CAUDACION DE LOS IMPUESTOS MUNICIPALES
 

Articulo 12. 
El Banco Municipal requepira que la Municipalidad
este recaudando anualmente un 
80% de las posibles
rentas municipales, establecidas 
en el primer
an'lisis Municipal, para ser 
elegible de recibir
prestamo de 
la Instituci6n.
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Art~culo 13. 
Si por diferentes circunstancias las rentas
 
Municipales no alcanzan ese porcentaje estipu­
lado, el BANMA podrS requerir como condici6n
 
(es) al desembolso sobre un pr~stamo; uno o
 
mas de los siguientes:
 

1. 	Que la Municipalidad establezca una Ofici­
na de Catastro Municipal en forma eficien­
te.
 

2. 	Que la Municipalidad establezca un sistema
 
adecuado de control de impuestos. El sis­
tema administrativo que adopte la Municipa­
lidad para crear los datos y mantenerlos,
 
tendrd que ser aceptado por el BANMA, siem­
pre que aumente el % de las rentas municipa­
les 	requerido por la Instituci6n.
 

3. 	Que la Municipalidad implemente un sistema
 
moderno de cobranza, mande peri6dicamente y
 
regularmente avisos de 
pagos a los contri­
buyentes, que indicargn los impuestos 
co­
rrientes actuales y los de aflos anteriores,
 
si debiera a 	la Municipalidad.
 

4. 	Que reduzca, capacite 
o emplee personal.
 

5. 	Que modifique las finanzas y legislaci6n
 
Municipal.
 

6. 	Otro que estime conveniente.
 

Articulo 14. 	El BANMA no aumentard el monto m~ximo de pr6sta­
mos establecidos 
en el primer andlisis Municipal,

hasta que la Municipalidad haya logrado ese por­
centaje.
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Articulo 15. 
El Gerente del Banco podrg prorrogar hasta por
tres aflos el cumplimiento del Articulo 12.
 

CAP I TULO V
 

PLAN INTEGRAL DE 
DESARROLLO
 

Articulo 16. 
El Banco Municipal, requerirg que la Municipa­
lidad cuente con 
un 
plan integral de desarrollo
elaborado o aprobado por el Ministerio de Obras
Prblicas, para 
ser elegible para recibir prgsta­
mo del BANMA.
 

Articulo 17. 
El 
Plan Integral de Desa.rollo deberg tener 
como
minimo 4 partes, que podr5n ser desarrolladas 
en
forma separada o de 
una sola vez. 
 Esas 4 partes

sertn:
 

1. 
Una carpeta de datos bisicos sobre el Munici­pio. Los 
datos basicos estargn detallados
en un instructivo que serg elaborado por 
la
 
Instituci6n.
 

2. Un 
esquema general, en 
forma de plano, indi­cando el grea urbanizada actualmente y la
proyectada durante los 
pr6ximos 5 aflos y 10
 
anos respectivamente.
 

Se seflalarg 
en el plan; la ubicaci6n actual
y la esperada en 
el futuro de 
las principa­les instalaciones Municipales, gubernamenta­
les y privadas y que podr~n incluir: Merca­dos, Mataderos, 
Centros Comerciales, 
Plantas
Elctricas, Alcantarillado, La Presa, Escue­las, Cabildo Municipal, Hospitales y Centros
de Salud, Campos de 
Recreo y Diversiones,
Parques Industriales, Carreteras, Teldgrafo,

Presidio y.otros.
 



Articulo 18. 


Articulo 19. 


Articulo 20. 


Articulo 21. 
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3. 	Un Plan de Inversiones que la Municipalidad
 
pretenda r6alizar en los pr6ximos 10 atos;
 
este plan incluirg solamente las inversiones
 
planeadas por el sector publico en el Munici­
pio.
 

4. 	Un plan regulador, por el cual se regulard
 
el desarrollo del Sector privado. Esto in­

cluirg por lo menos, la politica que se apli­

cars para el buen uso de la tierra, adaptado
 

por la Corporaci6n Municipal y otros Instru­

mentos que le fueren necesarios, para poner
 

en pr~ctica esa politica, como sep una orde­
nanza de zonificaci6n.
 

Este Plan Integral de Desarrollo que se requeri­

rd de las Municipalidades, tendrg que presentar­

se dentro de los 3 aflos despu6s de la fecha del
 

primer anglisis Municipal.
 

El Gerente del Banco podrg prorrogar el cumpli­

miento de este requisito hasta por dos anos adi­
cionales.
 

El BANMA no aumentarg el monto mAximo de pr~sta­

mos establecido en el primer anilisis Municipal,
 

hasta que la Municipalidad haya presentado el
 
Plan Integral de Desarrollo.
 

C A 	P I T U L 0 VI
 

EXCEPCIONES
 

El Gerente delBanco podrg temporalmenteexcep­
en
tuar de los requerimientos establecidos los
 

capitulos III, IV y V las Municipalidades en
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donde su cumplimiento requerirg recursos adminis­
trativos y financieros que no estgn al alcance de
 
la Municipalidad.
 

T I T U L 0 	 II
 

APROBACION DE PROYECTOS
 

CAP IT ULO I
 

ELABORACION Y PRESENTACION DE SOLICITUDES
 

Articulo 22. 	La responsabilidad de la elaboraci6n y presenta­
ci6n de solicitudes para pr~stamo queda con las
 
corporaciones municipales, consejos distritales,
 
y Juntas Directivas de las asociaciones intermu­
nicipales. Estos deber~n haber cumplido los
 
requisltos establecidos para ser elegible para

recibirpr6stamos conforme Articulo 9 de re­este 

glamento excepto 
en caso de la primera solicitud
 
o las exenciones especiales que se ha previsto
 
en Artlculos 11, 15, 19 y 21.
 

Articulo 23. 	El Departamento de Servicios Tecnicos proveerg
 
asistencia t~cnica a la Municipalidades Distri­
tales y ascciaciones para ayudarlos en la prepara­
ci6n de solicitudes completas y precLsas y que

satisfagan los requerimientos del Banco segin los
 
formularios e instructivos que 6ste proporciona­
ra. No se aceptarg solicit-d que no estf presen­
tada en los formularios del Banco o copia fotostf­
tica de ellos. El Banco podrS rechazarcualquier

solicitud que no estg completa en todos sus aspec­
tos.
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C A 	P I T U L 0 II
 

REVISION DE LAS SOLICITUDES
 

Articulo 24. 	Al recibir una solicitud, el Departamento de
 
Servicios Tecnicos la revisarg para ver si es­
t5 completa. Si faltan muchos datos o si los
 
datos presentados no permiten que se asigne
 
las 	prioridades a que se refieren los Articulos
 
26 y 27 y se 	devolvera la solicitud a la Munici­
palidad pidiendo que lo sometan cuando est6 com­
pletado.
 

Articulo 25. 	El Departamento de Servicios Tecnicos revisarg
 
la carpeta oficial de la Municipalidad. Esta
 
carpeta contendrA como mnimo:
 

1. 	El mas reciente an6lisis administrativo eco­
n6mico de la Municipalidad.
 

2. 	Historia crediticia de la Municipalidad con
 
el BANMA y con otras instituciones. PodrA
 
contener adems,
 

3. 	El Plan Integral de Desarrollo si este ha si­
do elaborado, y su correspondiente programa
 
de inversiones.
 

4. 	El formulario de la encuesta Municipal mas
 
reciente.
 

5. 	La encuesta de proyectos si fue realizado en
 
la Municipalidad.
 

Articulo 26. 	El Departamento de Servicios Tgcnicos asignard al
 
proyecto una prioridad tentativa de entre las si­
guientes categorias:
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a) 	 Alta prioridad (proyectos en clase A o B de
 
la polftica financiera, catastro municipal,
 
o estudio de 	factibilidad para proyectos 
en
 
clase A o B).
 

b) 	Mediana prioridad (proyectos en clase C de
 
la politica financiera).
 

c) 	Baja prioridad (proyectos en clase D de la
 
politica financiera excluyendo catastro mu­
nicipal o estudios de factibilidad para
 
proyectos de alta prioridad).
 

d) 
Proyectos no elegible para financiamiento del
 
Banco (proyectos que otras instituciones debe­
ryan financiar, o de municipalidades personas

naturales o jurldicas no elegiblesde recibir
 
pr~stamos del Banco).
 

Articulo 27. 	El Departamento de Servicios T6inicos asignarg

tentativamente el aflo en que 
se ha programado el
 
proyecto para ejecuci6n, Esto se basarg en los
 
siguipntes factores:
 

a) 	 La disponibilidad proyectada del BANMA.
 

b) 	La prioridad tentativa asignada al proyecto
 
(excepto en el caso de considerar tentativa­
menteque el proyecto no es elegible para fi­
nanciamiento del Banco).
 

c) 	 La capacidad de endeudamiento adicional de la
 
municipalidad.
 

d) 	 El progreso de la municipalidad en cumplir 
con
 
las 	condiciones precedentes establecidas por
 
el Banco.
 

e) 	El grado de conformidad del proyecto con las
 
disposiciones de la politica Financiera.
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Articulo 28. 	El Departamento de Servicios Tdcnicos revisari
 
los datos presentados en la solicitud de pr~s­
tamo. Basado en los datos en la carpeta oficial
 
y los presentados en la solicitud, prepararg 
una
 
lista de posibles precondiciones para desembol­
so del pr6stamo solicitado.
 

Estas precondiciones pueden incluir requerimien­
tos sobre el entrenamiento del personal munici­
pal, las tarifas o cobros a los usuarios, cance­
laci6n de deudas pendientes y otros asuntos que
 
puedan mejorar la factibilidad de realizar el
 
proyecto.
 

Articulo 29. 	Dentro de diez d~as de la fecha de recepci6n de
 
la solicitud presentarg a la comisi6n Tgcnica
 
del Banco lo exigido por los Articulos 26, 27 y
 
28 y otros resultados de su andlisis preliminar
 
de la solicitud.
 

Articulo 30. 	La comisi6n T~cnica en base de la presentaci6n
 
hecha por el Departamento de Servicios T6cnicos
 
darg una aprobaci6n inicial al proyecto, si es
 
ameritado confirmando o modificando las priori

dades y precondiciones tentativamente asignados
 
por aquel Departamento. El Gerente informarg a
 
la Junta Directiva de la recepci6n de la solici­
tud y las recomendaciones de Comisi6n Tecnica
 
en su pr6xima reuni6n.
 

Art~culo 31. 	La Junta indicarg su autorizaci6n para proceder
 
con el anilisis del proyecto y la preparaci6n
 
del documento de pr~stamo, o en su caso seftala­
rg sus objeciones al pr~stamo solicitado.
 

A~ttculo 32. 	El Departamento de Servicios T~cnicos notifica­
r a la Municipalidad den'ro'de los 3 dias de su
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presentaci6n 	a la Junia Directiva de la acci6n
tomada !por esta 6ltima. Informarg s! hay datos
adicionales que el Banco necesita para tomar una
decisi6n final y avisarg a la 
Municipalidad de
la llegada proyectada de funcionarios del BANMA
para investigar mas 
a fondo los aspectos del pro­yecto que necesita mayor estudio.
 

C A P I T U L 0 III
 

PREPARACION DE DOCUMENTOS DE PRESTAMO
 

Art'culo 33. 	Serg responsabilidad del Departamento Financie­
ro preparar el documento de 
prestamo, realizando
tales investigaciones que fueren necesarios para
comprobar la veracidad de los 
datos presentados
por la municipalidad y paraanalizar 
a fondo los
aspectos administrativos, econ6micos y t~cnicos
 
del proyecto.
 

Articulo 34. 
El Documento 	de Prestamo 
con-tendrg 
como minimo
 

la siguiente 	informaci6nl:
 

I. El Pr6statario
 

2. Destino de los fondos
 

3. Ejecutor
 

4. 
 Monto del Prestamo
 

5. Condiciones del Pr6stamo incluyenao plazo,
intereses, garantla, forma de pago, plan de
desembolsos.
 

6. Plan financiero del proyecto.
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7. Descripci6n del proyecto
 

3. Fkase legal de proyecto
 

93. Iustificaci6n del proyecto
 

10. Condiciones especiales
 

-
 Previas al primer desembolso.
 

- Durante la ejecuci6n del proyecto
 

- Durante la vida del pr6stamo 

11. Anexos t~cnicos
 

Articulo 35. 	El Departamento Financiero remitirg copias del
 
Documento de 
Prstamo a la Gerencia para darle
 
tramite al procedimiento de aprobaci6n final.
En caso de ser requerido por otras 
instituciones
 
como 
la A.I.D. le remitira una copia del docu­
mento.
 

Articulo 36. 	Si el proyecto tiene 
un valor total 
menor de
 
L.50,000 y un valor financiable menor de

L.25,000 el Gerente podrg aprobarlo.
 

Articulo 37. 
Si el proyecto tiene un 
valor total de L.50,000
 
o mas o un 
valor financiable de L.25,000 
o mas
 o si forma parte de 
un proyecto que a travs de

varias solicitudes llegare a exceder esos 
montos
 
la Junta Directiva deber5 aprobarlo.
 

Articulo 38. 	Cuando se 
presenta una solicitud al Directorio;

el Gerente presentarg sus recomendaciones 
en la
 
misma sesi6n.
 

Art:'culo 39. 	Al ser 
aprobado por la Junta Directiva el Depar­
tamento Financiero remitirg tres 
coDias del Do­
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cumento de prestamo a la Municipalidad.
 

Art'culo 40. 	La municipalidad devolvera el documento aproba­
do totalmente o solicitgndole las reformas que

estime necesarias. Si las reformas 
son menores
 
serin aprobados por el Gerente. Cualquier refor­
ma que trata 	de aumentar el monto del pr~stamo
 
o cambiar en 	mas del 15% o L.5,000 el que sea
 
mayor, u otras partes del Plan Financiero tendrg
 
que ser la
aprobado por Junta Directiva.
 

Modificaci6n 	del monto de prestamo original­un 

mente aprobado por el Gerente tendrg que 
ser apro­
bado por la Junta Directiva.
 

T I T U L 0 III
 

EJECUCION DEL PROYECTO
 

CAP IT ULO I
 

PREPARACION DEL CONTRATO
 

Articulo 41. 	Despu~s de 
recibir la aprobaci6n del documento
 
de pr6stamo por la municipalidad y en su caso
 
por la A.I.D., el Departamento Financiero pre­
pararg el contrato de pr6stamo. Para este pro­
p6sito se usara los contratos tipos aprobados
 
por la Junta 	Directiva.
 

Artculo 42. 	El. funcionario de contratos 
y otra persona

responsable de la preparaci6n del contrato lo
 
prepararg de conformidad con lo estipulado en
 
el documento de 
pr~stamo y otros reglamentos
 
del BANMA que tiene pertenencia.
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Artlculo 43. 	Al 
ser preparado el contrato se 
lo pasar& al

Gerente quien llamarg a los interesados para

proceder a la firma.
 

Artlculo 44. 	Se ejecutarg el proyecto conforme los requeri­
mientos establecidos a el 
contrato segdn los
procedimientos que ha establecido el 
BANMA en
los reglamentos que regulan las 
licitaciones

piblicas y la supervisi6n de los proyectos y

de acuerdo a los 
convenlos interinstituciona­
les 
que puedan tener relevancia.
 



BALANCE SHEET
 

BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOM(
 

December 31, 1971
 

Assets 

Cash - Note A 525,772

Reimbursements receivable - banks 
 164,852
Loan Receivable - Note B

Commercial L 2,791,915

Municipal 
 620,791 L'3,412,706
Less Allowance for Uncollectible loan - Note B 650,000
 

2,762,706
 
Employee loans 
 68,315 2,831,021
 

Investments in bonds - Note C
 
Municipalities 
 L 1,030,177

Less provision for uncollectible bond! 
 500,000 530,177

Commercial bonds - Note D 
 445,000 975,177
 

Advances on Construction - La Mesa Airport - Note E 
 1,718,271

Overdrafts - Note F 
Interest and Commissions receivable - Note G 139,213


197,146
Miscellaneous accounts receivable 
- Note H 
 74,484
 
Fixed Assets - Note I 
 L 286,112
 
Less Allowance for depreciation 
 138,709 147,403
 

Deferred Charges - Note J 
 36,127
 

Total 
 L6,809466
 
(-JI-' 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this balance sheet0 
"
 

no o
 I 



BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO 

December 31, 1971 

Liabilities and Capital 

Liabilities 

Demand deposits - Note KMunicipalities 
Private 

Cashiers and certified checks - Note LSavings Accounts -

Municipalities 
Private 

Time deposits - Note M 
Municipal subsidies held by bank - Note A' 
T r a d e a c c o u n t s p ay ableTrust account - La Mesa Airport - Note E 

Guaranty deposits 
Sank bonds payable - Note 0 
Foreign currency payableInterest payable 
Unearned interest income 

Branch account - Note P 
Total Liabilities 

447,819 
504,387 

16,742 
338,843 

14952,20149,989 

355,585 
1,350I51 
:464,077
391 v,041 

51 4878 

38,586 
997,400

9,40 
29,230 
21,833
42,039 
48,189 
4 

Capital 
Capital stock paid, of which $730,529 is unissued - Note Q L3,529,056 

Accumulated Deficit
Deficit as of January 1,
Net loss from the year 

1971 - Note P 1,415,429 
197,228 (1,612,657) 1,916,399 

Contingent liabilities - Note C 
"o i = 

6,809,466 

LL4,000,004,00,O 

o 



STATEMENT OF INCOME 

BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO 

Year Ended December 31, 1971 

Interest earned on loans 
Interest earned on investments in bondsCommissions earned 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Municipal 

1,670 
83,410 
70,181 

Commercial 

283,578 
25,400 
20,553 

Total revenue 

Provision for Uncollectible loans 

155,261 

-

329,531 

"0 

Income before deducting Operating Expenses 
.xpenses: 

Interest paid
Personnel Compensation 
Directors' fees 
Legal expensesBuilding Rental and maintenance
Providing for depreciation provisions
Operating Expenses 

To t a l Exp e ns e s 

Net loss for the period 

Total
 

285,248 
18,8 
108,810
 
90,734
 
0l1­

495,955
 

38,955
 

2 ,264
 
39 00
 

325,63
 
26,625
 
2,632

7_3 . 83
 

(197,228
 

0~1X 

o a.-..QI?
0 3' 

On@I, 

C' 



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 
ACCUMUVTED DEFICIT 

Exhibit 1 
Page 4 of 25i 

BANCO AUTONOMO MUNICIPAL 

December 31, 1971 

Unadjusted balance - January 1, 1971 27n,517 

Adjustments increasing deficit: 

Uncollectible overdrafts - 1969 and prior 
Uncollectible advances to employees - 1969 and prior 

2,676 
371 

Unrecorded depreciation - applicable to prior years 13,779 

Uncollectible travel advances - 1969 and prior 4,896 

Uncollectible small accounts 
municipalities - 1969 and 

receivable from 
prior 1,907 

Uncollectible small commercial- accounts receivable 
1969 and prior 

-
648 

Allowance for doubtful 
to prior years 

accounts - portion applicable 
540,000 

Prior year accrual of severance pay 78,980 

Uncleared advances in repairs to building 1,955 

Allowance for possible losses on municipal bonds 500,_ n 1,145,212 

1,415,729 

Adjustment decreasing deficit 
applicable to prior years 

- unapplied cost 
300 

Adjusted balance - January 1, 1971 1,415,429 

Net loss year ended December 31, 1971 197,228 

Total deficit December 31, 1971 L 1,612,657 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

A. Cash presented in the balance sheet is nde up of the following items:
 

Cash on hand:
 
:.empi ras 
 131,782
 
ioreign Currency 37 350
 

Bank accounts -

Central Bank of Honduras 323,459

Domestic Banks 
 29,581

Foreign Banks 
 3,600,
 

356,640
 

Total Cash 
 525,772
 

* The records of account of the bank reflect a balance of 112,914,
 
which we have reduced by 109,314 and transferred to the account, "Advances
 on Construction - La Mesa Airport". The rather large adjustment is due to adifference between the records the latest bankof the bank and statement 
received from the Chase Manhattan Bank of New York, with whom the account
 
is maintained. The differences are as follows:
 

Records of BANMA 109,516
Bank Statement from Chase 

Manhattan Bank (12-31-71) 202 

Unaccounted for difference 109,314 

We were unable to locate cancelled checks in order to reconcile this 
account. The latest reconciliation prepared by BANMA was on September, 1968.
In the absence of supporting documentation, the unaccounted difference may
represent a cash shortage. 

We were told by BANMA officials that the unaccounted difference of
109,314 represents fire fighting equipment purchased for the La Mesa Airport.
Based on this oral information, we have charged the Airport construction
 
account with the amount in question. It should be observed, however, that

should this amount not be applicable to airport purchases, either the current
 year or accumulated deficit should be increased, thus accounting for the
 
cash shortage.
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B. Loans receivable in the amount of L3,412,706 have not been reviewed
by bank management with a 
view toward eliminating from the records (writing
off) uncollectible loans. 
 At our request, the bank prepared a schedule
of loans receivable, classified by current anai 
 past due.
 

Our analysis disclosed loanswith an average of forty percent (40%') 
receivable to be seriously in arrears,of loan installments past due.result of this delinquency rate and in the absence of reliable estimates 

As 
hy 
a
 

bank officials, we established an allowance for doubtful accounts in the
 
as an 
expense and the balance, 540,000, was added to the accumulated deficit.
 

amount of 650,000 of which 110,000 was charged against current years operation!
 
It is important that cognizance be taken that the allowance for doubtful
accounts of 650,000 isaby bank officials. rough estimate which might be increased or decreasedIt -is 
a 

our judgment, however, that the allowance represents
minimum and that any adjustments would probably be upward.
 
C. In accordance with its charter, the Bank sells and guarantees bonds
on behalf of municipalities.


bank. As of December 31, 
Bonds which are not sold are purchased by the
1971, the bank had investments inbonds, carried
at acquisition cost of L1,030,177.
 

It appears that there is no market value for these bonds,
as only the Central Bank of Honduras inasmuch
and the National Port Authority havebeen willing to purchase these securities. Therefore, in accordance with itscharter the bank sells and guarantees repayment of bonds, on behalf ofmunicipalities. In return fo: its guarantee, formal agreemertsinto between the bank are enteredand municipalities requesting bondmunicipal revenues issues, wherebyor comparable security is pledged toits guarantee. Fu-ther, the bank to supportthese agreements call for municipalities to honor
specific amortization installment schedules. 
Acting under its charter,of municipal bonds, of which 

the bank has marketed a total of 7,728,900

ban: h, s sold, principally to 

more than 5 million is still outstanding. The
the CentralPort Authority, Bank of Hondurasbonds which have outstanding principal 
and the National 

amounts of 4.0 million. 
Although municipalities havecommittments lecial obligations t'j honorand theirdespite the fact that municipal revenues are pledged tocover bank guarantees, substantial amortizaLion 1raynIents are delinquent. Atpresent, the status of bond amortization is as 'ollows:
 

Held by Others 
but Guaranteed
HeldbyBANMA by BANMA 

Installments not due 740,037 
 3,848,210
overdue 3 mos. to five years 290,140 307490
 
Total 
 L,030,177 4 ,15..700 
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Fully 59 percent of all bond issues have some installments past due,
and 33 percent of all issues outstanding have installments past due for periods
of six months or more. 
 As a result of the rather high delinquency rate on
the part of municipalities, special 
note should be made of the contingent
liability of the bank in the amount of 4,155,700.
 

In the event substantial defaults occur, the bank's contingent
liability could become legal obligations. 
A schedule of amortization payments
through 1974 is presented in Annex G.
 

In recognition of the present delinquency rate of bonds by the bank
(.33% 
of 1,030,177 overdue), we have established an allowance for default.
in the amount of 500,000, of which the full amount was added to the
accumulated deficit and no part was 
changed against current operations.
 

D. The bank has invested in the following bonds:
 

Central Bank of Honduras,
 
Interest rate of 4 per cent 
 L145,000
 

Financiera Hondurena,
 
Interest rate of 7 per cent 
 300,000
 

L445,000
 

E. The bank has entered into a contract with the municipality of
San Pedro Sul> to issue bonds to financ? thr, La Mesa airport. To date, more
than L2,500,000 have been sold under this arrangement. In return for its
guarartee, San Pedro Sula has pledged its revenues, including revenues
gene.n'ted from administration of the 
airport. 

Under the contract described immediately above, the bank is authorizedto act as Administrator of the La Vesa Airport. Under this arrangement, thebank receives all revenues and disburses a'I funds from a segreciated tru.caccount. As of December 31, 1971, the .r':st accourt held a positive balance
of 51,878. 

The bank has additionally advanced 1,718,271 for airport construction
and con-odity procurement expenditures. Upon completiop of procurement andconstruction, the bank will attempt to sell bonds to cover funds expended.In the event no buyers for the bonds are found, the bank would have no recourse
but to accept the bonds in exchange for funds advanced for airport construction
and commodity purchases. 

F. Reclassifications were made from various accounts to reflect over­drafts receivable. 
The bank holds collateral in the for; of mortgages 6nL104,000; 
the remainder may prove-difficult to collect.
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G. The bank follows the practice of recording interest and commissions
 
receivable and recognizing such amounts as income for all accounts, current
 
and past due. To the extent that interest and commissions receivable have

been recorded for uncollectible accounts, income and assets are thereby

overstated. We did not attempt to quantify uncollectible interest and
 
commissions receivable.
 

Ii. Included in miscellaneous accounts receivable are amounts receivable

from present and former bank employe.es for (1) cash shortages of 12,278

and (2) salary advances of 1,032; 
 and an account called "Oficina Principal"
in the amount of 7,952. This latter account may well represent an unaccounte,
for item which is worthless, for an entity cannot recognize as an asset 
funds receivable from itself.
 

I. Subsidary records are maintained For fixed assets - furniture,

office machines, safes, etc. - which added together, account for the total
 
recorded as 
fixed assets. However, the bank has not taken a physical

inventory of its assets to ascertain the reliability of its records. We

attempted to verify the accuracy of fixed asset subsidia.ry records..and were 
unable to locate 16 items amounting to approximately L13,000 which are listed
 
in the subsidary records. We also found certain assets which are not

supported by inventory records. Inventory records do not contain sufficient
 
detail to identify with certainty the existing physical assets.
 

The bank follows the practice of recording as fixed assets such
items as staplers, perforators, plastic covers, rubber stamps and similar 
items costing less than L30 each. No inventory of these items has been 
taken by the bank. 

The fixed asset account includes an elevator (17,529) and building
improvements (7,544). However, the bank has no lease agreement covering
the building it occupies. Should the lessor of the building demand that
it be returned, ihe bank would suffer loss of the undepreciated value of 
these items of L8,800. 

3. Deferred charges include miscellaneous office supplies, such as 
stamps, stationary, check and savings books which have not been inventoried. 

K. Included in checking accounts are the following: 

National Lottery 172,891
Civic Committee for 

National Defense 131,377
 

Central District Treasury 62,485
 

Directorate for Technical
 
Assistance 88,446
 

455,1lg99 

L. The bank was unable to prepare a ?istinq of certified and cashiers 
checks for our reivew. 

http:subsidia.ry
http:employe.es
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M. Included in this account are funds deposited by the National Port
Authority inthe amount of 1,231,000.
of 7-percent per The bank pays interest at the rateannum ar.d requires
minimum of one month. 

that funds remains on deposit a 

14. The bank serves as depository for subsidies allocated by 'thenational government to municipalities.funds Conditionsby the bank are for releasing thesesomewhat unclear, but presumably municipalities mustsa";.isfy the national government that the activities to the subsidijed are
 in process of execution. 
 We were unable to determine the exact nature of
subsidies held by the bank.
 
As of December 31, 1971, 
the bank had retained subsidies in the


amount of 464,077, of which 370,217 was received prior to 1971.
Annex H for a 
complete presentation of subsidies held by the bank.
See
 

0. The bank has issued 10 year bonds which are held by the following
organizations:
 

Central Bank of Honduras
5% interest 
 L700,O00
 
National Port Authority 
7% interest 


296,400
 
Others ­ 7%interest 1,000 

Total 
 1997,400
P. There exists

acco:-'-s between 

an unreconciled difference in the home office/branchthe central office and San Pedro Sula in the amount of
,been At the time our examination was"econciled by the bank. 
 completed, the difference had not
The figure is recorded asco-1c' r-present a a liability, but
reduction inassets, rcduc-iop inexpenses or an increase
n >,,mc. 
,. 


are 
Under the municipal banking law of the nation, municipalities
red to deposit five percent (5%) of their annualthe.....in revenues withreturn fer capital stock. 

arrears 
As of the date of our examinatinn, municipalities were seriously ininhonoring their commitments to Purchase capital stock of the
bahk. 
Records of the bank indicate that a total of Ll,760,420 was due from
munic-ipalities 
as of 1970. 
 Thus, there exists contingent assets and capital
of an amount inexcess of 1,760,420. 
As a practical matter, however, the
receivable will 
probably never be realized.
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No permanent record,.
is maintained. We requested a 

or other type of record, of stock holderslisting of stockholders which the bank was
unable to provide. 
 The bank did prepare a 
summary listing by department
as follows: 

Atlantita 
 L 86,755
Colon 
 31,348
Cainayagua 
 69,555
Copan 
 93,115Cartes 
 490,369

Choluteca 
 53,325
El Paraiso 
 78,095
Francisco Morazan 
 217,679
Gracias a Dias 1,740Intibuca 
 2,025
Islas.de Bahia 
 9,210
La Paz 
 .24,785

Lempira 
 35,681
Santa Barbara 
 86,172

Olancho 
 75,744

Octepeque 
 6,995
Val le 
 46,780
Yiro 
 I10,895
 

Total Departments 
 L1,520,268
 

National Treasury 
 2, 000,000 

Total 
 L3,520,268
 

Unaccounted for 
 8788 

Total 
 L3,52.,056 

Payments of 730,529 have been received for which capital stock
has not been issued.
 

http:Islas.de
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO 
BALANCE SHEET - AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1973 

(In Lempiras) 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash items 

Cash and cash items 172,762 
Central Bank deposits 408-,560 
Correspondent bank deposits 74,418 

655,740 
Investmints 

Honduran Government bonds 690,000 
Municipal bonds 737,600 
Financiera Hondurefia Baink bonds 512,700 

1,940,300 
Loan Portfolio 

Commercial Loans 1,504,934 
Municipal Loans and discounts 288,335 
Loan to Financiera Hondurefia 
Bank 600,000 

2,393,269 
Less Reserve for Doubtful Loans (150,565) 

2,242,704 

Roceivables 

interest Receivable 
Loans 64,002 
Investments 259,880 323,882 

Commissions Receivable 63,939 
Other Receivables _163,26 

551,647 
Y.unicipal Obligations assumed by 
Bank as guarantor 383:475 

Due from the Government of Honduras (Note 1) 1,844,000 

Foreclosed Assets in Liquidation 30,443 

Fixed Assets 
Leasehold Improvements 23,237 
Furniture and fixtures 169,551 

192,788 
Lezs Depreciation Reserve (93,935)9 

98,853 

Deferred Charges 36,853 

Total Assets 7,789o015 
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO
 

BALANCE SHEET- AS OF DECEMBER 31,1973
 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
 

Accounts Payable 
 558,438

Interest Payable 
 179,367
 
Customer Accounts:
 

Demand Deposits 871,655

Savings Deposits 291,955 1.163,610 1,901,415
 

TIME DEPOSITS 
 1,278,791
 

GENERAL BONDS PAYABLE (Note 2) 
 997,400
 

DEFERRED CREDICTS
 

Unearned Interest 
 28,288
 
Unapplied Cash 
 142,390
 

170,678
 
MUNICIPAL SUBSIDIES (Note 3) 
 403,O00
 

CAPITAL (Note 4)
 

Paid-in Capital: 
Subscribed Capital 7,414,359
 
Less Subscriptions
 
Receivable (3,697,020) 3,717,339
 

Accumulated Losses 
 (767,557)

Profit for year 
 87,949 (679,608)
 

3,O37,731
 

Total Liabilities and
 
Capital 7,789,O15
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO.
 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1973'
 

INCOME
 

Interest an Loans and Investments, 534,078' 

Commissions 
 137,530
 

Exchange Income 
 3,177-


Other 
 5,954
 

Total Income 
 680,739
 

EXPENSES
 

Salaries and Benefits 
 316,682
 

Interest Payments 
 159,394
 

Legal Fees 
 2,050
 

Rent- and Utilities 
 28,914
 

Miscellaneous Operating Costs 
 58,328
 

Depreciation and Amortization 
 26,406
 

Other 
 1,016
 

Total Expenses 
 592,790
 
1973 Net Income 
 87,949
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

THE YEAR ENDED DEC. 31, 1973 
FOR 

1. Represents the BANMA direct investment in the San Pe­
dro Sula airport facility. The GOH has agreed to 
reimburse the Bank for the investment; payment to be 
amortized annually over a ten year period without 
interest. 

2o 5% bonds issued for general working capital secured 
by the general assets of the Bank, due and payable
serially beginning in 1974 through 1982. 

3. Represents subsidies granted to municipalities by
the GOH for specific projects. Funds have been 
pending receipt of order by GOH Treasury to disburse. 
BANMA has received verbal advice that projects have
been cancelled and that GOH will authorize transfer 
of funds to BANMA as additional paid-in capital. 

4. BANMA is contingently liable as guarantor for munic­
ipal bond issues totalling Lps. 4,156,554.00 
at December 31, 1973. The BANMA has provided no 
reserves to reflect these contingent liabilities 
because the operations have not generated reserves to 
cover such an eventuality. The policy of the Bank 
has been to assume the liability as guarantor and 
pursue collection from the Municipality. 
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO 
BALANCE SHEET - AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 1974 

(In Lempiras) 

AS S'E TS 

Cash and Casn Items 
Cash on hand 111,954Central Bank deposits 
 293,922
Correspondent bank deposits 
 46,846
Cash in transit 
 105,117
 

557,839
 

Investments
 

Central Bank bonds 
 500,000
Municipal bonds 
 .204,700
Financiera Hondurefla Bank bonds 
 512,700
 

1,217,400
 
Loan Portfolio
 

Commercial Loans 1,291,368
Municipal Loans and Discounts 
 254,539Loan to Financiera Hondurefa Bank 
 700,000
Loan to Banco de Honduras 
 1,000,000
 

3,245,907
Less reserve for doubtful loans 
 151.399)
 

3,094,508
 
Receivables
 

Interest Receivable
 
Loans 75,501
Investments 
 299,334 374,835
Commissions Receivable 
 57,614
Other Receivables 124,643


Municipal Obligations Assumed

by Bank as guarantor 
 771,575 1,328,667
 
Due from the Government of Honduras (Note 1) 
 1,844,000
 
Foreclosed Assets in Liquidation 
 30,442
 
Fixed Assets
 

Leasehold Improvements 
 22,027
Furniture and fixtures 
 170,590
Less Depreciation Reserve 
 (IO6,701), 85,916
Deferred Charges 

45,177
 
8 ,03949
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO
 
BALANCE SHEET - AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 1974
 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
 715,645

Interest Payable 
 202,610

Customer Accounts:
 

Demand Deposits 
 1,174,730

Savings Deposits 
 241,504
 

2,334,489
 
TIME DEPOSITS 
 1,261,123
 

GENERAL BONDS PAYABLE (Note 2) 
 997,400
 

DEFERRED CREDITS 

Unearned Interest 
 10,207

Unapplied Cash 108,820 

119,027
 

MUNICIPAL SUBSIDIES (Note 3) 
 403,000
 

CAPITAL (Note 4) 

Paid-in Capital:
 
Subscribed Capital 
 7,414,359
 
Less Subscriptions Re­
ceivable (3,688,261) 

.3,726,098 

Accumulated Losses (645,050)

Profit for period 7,862 (637,188) 

3,088,910
 

8203,949
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO
 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 1974
 

(In Lempiras)
 

INCOME
 

Interest on Loans and Investments 84,555

Commissions 
 33,510

Exchange Income 
 378
Other 
 1,504
 

Total Income 
 119,947
 

EXPENSES
 

Salaries and Benefits 
 65,836

Interest Payments 
 24,738

Legal Fees 
 300

Rent and Utilities 
 4,235

Miscellaneaus Operating Costs 
 13,395

Depreciation and Amortization 
 3,581

Other 
 -0-


Total Expenses 
 112,085
 

1974 Net Income through 2/28/74 
 7A862
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BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO
 
NOTES 
 TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28,1974 

1. 	 Represents the BANMA direct investment in the SanPedro 	Sula airport facility. The GOH has agreed
to reimburse the Bank for the investment; payment
to be 	amortized annually over a ten year period

without interest. 

2. 	 5% bonds issued for general working capital secured
by the general assets of the Bank, due and payable
serially beginning in 1974 through 1982. 

3. 	 Represents subsidies granted to municipalities bythe GOH for specific projects. Funds have been
held pending receipt of order by GOH Treasury to
disburse. BANMA has received verbal adyice thatprojects have been cancelled and that GOH will
authorize transfer of funds to BANMA as additional 
paid-in capital. 

4. 	 BANMA is contingently liable as guarantor formunicipal bond issues totallingLps. 4,285,533 
at February 28, 1974. The BANMA has provided no 
reserves to reflect these contingent liabilities 
because the operations have not generated reserves
to cover such an eventuality. The policy of the
Bank has been to assume the liability as guarantor
and pursue collection from the Municipality. 



BANCO MUNICIPALSTATEMENT AUTONOMOOF A~AL/PROJECTEDSTATEE14T INCOME ANDF A2 EXPENSE (1972-1983)Actual (IN LEMPIRAS)Actual 

-MCO 
 PROJECTE1972 
 1973 
 1974 
 1975 
 1976 
 1977 
 1978 
 1979 
 1980 
 1981V 98
Interest-Comercial Loan Portfolio
L r143,543 


116,043
Interest-AID Loan Program 55,543 22,543
Interest on AID Loan Project)52 ­ -
Interest-onea 19,062 178,614Reflows Loan Proe9t 470,374 731,583 803,438

Interest-Municipal Discounts 

)667,810 534,078 , 3 717,710 639,425
- 368,796 6 5 3 4 560,880 475,811
) 440 4,873 23,549 65,494 635,354 758,617 382,915

Interest-Short Term Investments 45,000 45,000 48,750 130,270 202,473 903.,631 1,075,595 1,276,406
48,750 263,986
) 48,750 318,031
282,030 48,750 368,386
291,042 48,750
203,417
COmmissiOns-AID 81,959 48,750 48,75020,000 20,000 48,750
20,000 
 20,000
Loan Program 20,000 20,
Comissions-General 
Loan Program
Co~missions-Guarantees
COmmissions-Municipal 5,000 10,000 20,000
Granted 5,300 25,000 20,000
Bond Portfolio)139,449 137,530 36,930 22,000
Commissions-Miscellaneous )25,500 41,207 35,150 27,500 32,50037,200 40,000
29,837 27,183 42,500
30,60, 24,848
1,000 21,179
Other Income 1,000 3,000 1,000 1,000 

19,167 11,855 6,23010,442 9000 1,000 3,018TOTAL INCOME - 1,000817.701 68073 7 9 3 1,000 1,000587 - - 1,00095: 1 ­68254 160963 - ­1505,760 1,596,263 1,71 146 1, ,417 2,142,975EXPENSES 
Interest on Savings Accounts )I n e e ss t413
Interest on General Bonds n1 50759 10,474
3 0eeo4 10,997
) 0 1,0, 9 11,548
Administrative Expense 11 54 12,717
240,270 12 71 13,353
235,270 220,640 13,353 14,020 14,720
469,403 406,990 600,000 650,000 

189,960 159,280 128,600 15,456 16,229 17,041
700,000 770,000 97,920 67,170
Depreciation and Amortization 
790,000 810,000 830,000 41,490 15,810
830,000
23,683 26,406 830,00o
TA Cos:s 13,000 830,000
(10%) 13,OO 
 23,000 
 20,000
-0- -- _17,800 20,000 10,000TOTAL EXPENSES 48,000 76 000 10,000 10,000
656,594 90 886,54 957,267 

110.000 11!0,0 110.000 110 000 
10,000 10,000
o31.9188 1,102,677 1.092,633 110,000 10,000 i0
1.072,620
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ___2____ 1.032 626161,107 1.007.719
87,949 (29,0).(163,314 
 37,066 258,286 
 413,.127 
 523.643 
 654 292 
 809 976 
 977,698 
1.160.124 
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ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES USED IN PREPARATION OF THE

PROJECTED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE
 

1. 	 Interest income projections are based on the
 
projected level of lending operations established
 
for the AID loan funded project and other lend­
ing program.
 

2o 	 Other sources of income were projected based
 
on historical data coupled 
with the revised
 
nature of lending and scope of future
 
operations.
 

3. 	 Administrative Expense projections were made on
 
a very 	conservative basis in order to reflect
 
projected operating statements at the lower end

of the 	spectrum for evaluation of the viability

of the 	project in most conservative terms.
 



BANCO MUNICIPAL AUTONOMO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS (1974-1983)
 

(IN LEMPIRAS)
 

1974 1975 1976 1977 1978 
 1979
Sources Of Cash: 1980 1981
Cash Available at Beginning of Year 
1982 


655,741 
 419,258 539,092 595,096 465,461 6,0 786,42
1) Reduction in Investments 535.989 653,083
723,000 67 8 786,424
2) Reduction in Commercial Loan Portfolio 
750,000 1,700,000 1,686,400
400,000 
 500,000 
 600,000
Commissions Receivable at 12/31/73 

4,935 ­
63,939 
 -
Interest Receivable at 12/31/73
Other 323,882 
 _
3) Increase in Paid-In Capital
Receivables 


4) 215,500 215,500
Increase in Demand Deposits 215,500 215,500
389,865 215,500 215,500
135,865 215,500
5) Increase in SavingsatDeposits 35,865 35,865 6,152 215,500 215,500 215,!
12/31/73 14,596 73,801
6) Repayments- AID Loan Program 
15,328 16,094 16,899 17,744 

77,491 81,365 85,434 89,7
11,123 18,631
101,971 19,562 20,541
370,321 708,845 971,294 21,568 22,E
AID Loan Fund Disbursements52 
 163,826Repayments - General Lending Program -
Sub-Lending 

330,000Technical Assistance 128,000Training 
50,000Equipment 

-GOH Contribution-Project 200,000GOB CapitalCapital Contribution-Continuing--20,0 

5) Repayments- AID Loan Program-Reflow 

14,484 

2,290,000 
212,000 
90,000 
92,000

1,000,000 

59,732 

2,320,O0o 
180,0D 
100,000 

8,0001,000,000 

206,853 

2,060,000 
280,000­
60,000 

-800,000 

521,158
,582 

-

-
100.0 

996,101 

829,852
, 2 

1,0,0 

910,820 

1,064,693
1,6 , 9 

-
-

1,000 

961,167 1,046,236 1,139-1 

1,348,373 1,573,379 1,613,t 
1 34 37 1 5 3 3 9 1, 3, 

- - -
10000100001000 

Loans(Net Income for Period -
(Depreciation and Non-Cash Items 30,800 

TOTAL SOURCES 3,700274 
Accounts- Payable at 12/31/73 560b2,449Increase in Municipal Discounts 11,6653' Amortization of General Bond Principal 100,00 
AID Funded TA Disbursements 128,000 

Training 
50,000

Equipment 
-Loans to Local Banks 1,100,000Sub-Loans Disbursed-AID Loan Prog. 530,000 

Sub-Loans Disbursed-General Loan Prog. 500,000i) Sub-Loans Disbursed-Reinvestments 
under AID Loan Program -') Net Loss for Period 298902Total Applications

Cash Available End of Period 419.258 

61,000 

5,97,406 

5 
-

100,000 
212,000 

90,000 
92,000 

-
3,690,000 

1,000,000 

11,000
163314 
13281,0165,358.314 
539092 

42637,06699,000 

7,281,56 

50,000 
528,000 
180,000 

100,000 
8,000 

3,720,000 

2,000,000 

100,000 
_

6.686,000 
5 

4,782258,286130,000 

7263 461 

-
528,000 
280,000 

60,000 
-

3,060,000 

2,500,000 

370,000 
_

6,79000 
465,461 

23,553413,127130,000 

3 763 989 

-
528,000 

-

-

-

2,000,000 

700,000 
_

3,228000 
535,989 

67,566523,643120,000 

4381083 

-
528,000 

_ 

2,200,000 

1,000,000 
3,728,000 
653,083 

140,167654,292120,000 

4 855608 

529,000 

2,750,000 

900,000
9 

4179,000 
676,608 

230,894 325,277 427,3 
809,976 977,698 1,160,1120,OC0 120,000 120,C 

546444 -6151516 6511 

428,000 428,000 424,C 

- - -

3,250,000 4,000,000 4,250,C 

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,C1 
4.678,000 5.428,000

786,424 723 516 
119~~*~ 6 ,6 

25 

1983 
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ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES USED IN PREPARATION ON THE CASH 
FLEW PROJECTIONS 

1. 	 It is estimated that the level of investment will be
 
reduced annually through 1977 in order to provide
funds to meet the demand for loans outside the AID 
loan project. 

2. 
 BANMA officials estimate the current commercial loan
 
portfolio will be fully liquidated in 1977.
 

3. 	 It has been estimated that stock subscriptions will
 
be collected from municipalities over a 20 year
 
period.
 

4. 	 Projected demand deposits were based on the assumption
that all commercial accounts would be closed out by

1978 and that Municipal demand deposits would increase
 
by Lps. 600,000 through 1977 because of the anticipated

installation of a correspondent banking system, and
 
thereafter grow at the rate of 5% per annum.
 

5. 	 Savings deposits growth has been projected at a level
 
of 5% per annum.
 

6. 	 It has been assumed that first generation reflows of
 
AID loan project funds will be re-invested in loans
 
of a 	similar nature and for the same terms as 
the
 
original loans. Second generation repayments are
 
included in the general lending program at terms of 80/o

for ten years with one year grace period.
 

7. 	 Net income projections were prepared as a separate

schedule and reflect non-cash costs such as depreciation,

amortization and charges to reserve accounts. These
 
amounts have been added back for cash flow purposes

since they do not utilize cash resources.
 

8. 	 The amortization of General Bonds is based on a finalized 
amortization schedule established by the BANMA and
 
approved by the Central Bank.
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OTHER 

a. For presentation and projection purposes accrual items
such as receivables and payables have been 
 eliminatedduring the first projection year (1974) and the other
projected years are on a cash basis for collections and pay­ments. 
 This assumption should not materially affect 
the

projections.
 

b. Cash balances shown as available at end of period donot constitute cash surpluses but reflect a projected cash
position at a point in time that will be available if allof the ,7sumptions and estimates included in the projectionsprove -lid. 
The cash position should be considered as
level if working capital necessary to sustain banking 
the 

operacions and maintain a level of liquidity required by
law and by sound banking practices.
 

c. It has been assumed that no further paid-in capitalcontributions will be made by municipalities, i.e.,
the law requiring share subscriptions 
that
 

to the BANMIA will 
be rescinded.
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PROJETED B-ALANCEBANCO MUNICIPAL AUT&fOND
 
__r__,____t_______2/1 	 SHEETcS (1974-1983)
C__ab _ 	 A c ual ___ Lempiras (o 0os)

771 12/31/72/ 123/Aual 6563 E /Im4419 2/1/Projected 123/61/17
Projected 
 Projected
I livpal Bonds 	 656nu 	 419
Ibond Zan GOernment 	 539
Bonds2469	 245
a1r0 Financiera Handurefa Bonds 	

595 45
690 

771 	 50


738 	 500
1,924 	 500

Loans to Local Banks 	 1,174 1,174 500 

512 	 60o_ 

_______ortoli 	 512 O 512 1700 
 51201
 112741-
Co zm -rcialLoans 	 1,528 

2,54o

VInicipal Discounts 
 4,636
R~uxicipa1 Loans 	 3,886

,82 2,186
2,800
--	 1 6501,505 1,10510 5956Less Reserve for Doubtful Loans 	 60531___________ 	 288_14_ 300 	 . 95(150) 110 300 
Interest 2,655 - ,1 5,603 350 350 

0 
Receivable 	 1,643 10,993 35-	 Li'ans 2,274 1,0

73 	 6,351
Ihterest 	 64 11,198& 	Commissions 

Receivable-Invest.ents 	 635816,22
X"UfCiPal Obligations Assumed as Guarantsr 
 38453 ___ __ 	 388_7__ __ Oter Receivables _6__ ___2_ 	 388700 324	 388164 4teGovernmentof 	 0 3 388Due rom t'eGvrmn Honduras 	 388838838 - 1fHnua 	 3


1,844
1,21o 
 1,844
ForeclosedAssets in 	
940 38838Lizlidation 	 1,644 


1,844 	 e--
7 	 1,844 3s
30 	 1,844Fi	xed A sset_73 3o 

Lasehold Improvements, 03 
30 30 30 

Furni ure and Fixtures 

25263 23 	 33170 	 22171 	 32
Less Reserve for Depreciation
Technical Assistance and Training costs 	

253 32
28 288 19-----	 2612
_1 	 193
140 	 20
 6
 
45 	 99 8107)
37 	 25
37


Tot-al Assets 	 37 -3

348
 

8370 
 77 

6 
 T-62


Current Liabilities 	 379987 

37 	 37
 

Savings Dc, osits
Demand Deposits 

984 	 10,
Interest ayable 872 	 1,4 7Accounts Payable 7 	 3U7
292 	 0 7 398322 1,43475 	 338
"8_...is.__88-0- 179 	 55 nee os 	 -0-a1,353 
 -0--0-
TimeDeposits 	 -0­

2.347 
 1,901
1.279 
 1,569
..Muniloal Subsidies on De 	 48 11772GeneralBon-is ayable i~t 	 48 1,82548 
403 	 4899 
 4030
9 	 403
,213,921
403443
Deferred Credits 	 43
4 	 -1,3933
 

4036
 
Unearned Interest 	 2,865
Unapplied Cash 


42
221 
 28
14
 28283
 

263 
 171 
 171 
 143 171 

4,728 
 3 171
L ess Municipal Assessmen 	 171
ts Receivable • 3.124 5,388 
 _
Government Contribution 	 5,384 6 (3 26 6 ',3 5 388
5,5,388
26
Donated Capital 	 1,694 
 3.69)
,,2, 5,388
9,2,12,55
2,OW 


2, 
 6,392
, 2,122 
 Io
Accum ulated Earnings (Losses)} 3 71 	 2.3372,

3,630 	 . ..
(390) (67 3,03S 1 2

6 ~ ~~-2262 l , -26ca 	 266 	 , 4 2
7,3.8 12,3(3 3 .~26Tota l L iabil ities and C aapnitad--l- __it 	
12,363
a_ 


-_ - -8 3 24 
-0_ 7-7-
.......-	 - 9--
 7 ,398
----.. 	 ,1.. .. 11 ,259*-----
The exact 
.mount of Municipal Subsiies on 

.. 	 1 5 13 2-20_444661
s ofj-	 '-7-


12/31 
7i is unkno 
wr bat 
is inclu h. {in Accounts Payable.	 
_ _epos__ 



---

Projected 

12/31/Z78__ 


536 


Soo 

50 


500 


350 

17,186 


1 7,80)
17,386 


388 


388 


1,844 


30 


32 

261 

293 

(183) 


110 

738 


37 


1,476j87
1,476 

373 


1,849 

48 


2,337 

403 


28 

143 


171 


(2.68 


2,768 

14,400 

26 

1,9194 

(433) 
16,761 


21,569 


Projected 

12/31/79 


653 


500 


5OO0 

50o 


350 

18,493 


L18,693 


388 


388 


1,844 


30 


32 

261 

293 

(193) 


100 

628 


37 


1,550 

391 


1,849 __ 

1,941 


48

2,3 


1,809 


403 


28 

143 
 171 


5,388 


2,984 

15,400 

18,410 
91 


18,501 


_ 22,873 


Projected 
 Projected 

12/31/80 
 /81


677 
 786 


500 
 500 


500 
 500 


350 
 350 

20,027 
 21,737 


(150)20,227 (150L_ 
21,937 


388 
 388 


-- 388 
 388 

1,844 1,844 


30 
 30 


32 
 32 

261 
 261 

293 
 293


(203) 

90 
 80 


518 
 408 


37 
 37 


24,311 26,010

1.627 
 1.709 

411 
 431 


2,038 
 2,140 

4 
 48
848 


1,280 
 r.52 
403 
 403 


28 
 28 

143 
 171 143 
 171 


5,388 
 5,388 


3,199 
 3,415

16,4 
 17400 


26 
 26 

19,625 
 20,841

746 
 1.55 
20,371 
 - 22,396 


24 311 
 26,010 


Projected 
 Projected

12/31/82
 

2 724 
 838
 

500 
 500
 
500 "­

500 
 500
 

350 
 350

23,792 
 25,862
 

1 2I
 
23,992 
 26,062
 

388 
 388
 

388 
 388
 
1,844 
 1,844
 

30 
 30
 

32 
 32

261 
 261
 
293 
 293

223 
 (233)
 

70 
 60
 
298 
 188
 

37 
 37
 

27.3 2
 
1,794 
 1,884


453 
 476
 
47
 

2,247-2,360 
2,247 
 2,360
48
 
424 
 -0­
403 
 403
 

28 
 28
 
143 
 17 143
 7
 

5,388 
 5,388
 

3,630 ,

18,3,846
 
18,400 
 19,400

22,056 23,272
22,56 
 3
 

2 -- 24,59 3 
 26,965
 

27,SS3 
 29,947 



UNCIASS IFIED 	 AID-DLC/P-2026 
ANNE( V 
Exhibit 1
 
Page 1 of 28
 
Loan Application
 
(Informal Translation)
 

LETTER RECEIVED FROM FINANCE MINISTER DATED
 
DECEMBER i4, 1973
 

Dear Mr. Marasciulo:
 

Confirming the conclusions reached in 
our meeting of
December 6 in rel-.tion to 
preliminary negotiations for an

AID loan destined for the capitalization of the Autonomous
 
Municipal Bank (BANMA), I wish to inform you:
 

1. The Government wishes 
to negotiate a loan with
 
AID for $4 million with 
a 40-year repayment

period and a 10-year grace period; 
interest of

2% during the grace period and 3% during the re­
maining time. These 
funds will be contributed to

BANMA and the Government will assume 
the repay­
ment of principal and interest.
 

2. The Government will:
 

a) Provide the 	Municipal Bank with 
resources
 
to increase its 	capital of 
not less than $1.5
 
million during the 
loan disbursement period,

which would be three years, extendable by

common 
agreement of AID and the Government.
 
In addition, the Municipal Bank will provide

$500,000 from its capital, which 
is currently

available. 
 The Government counterpart would

be made in contvibutions propor'tional to loan 
disbursements (pari passu); 

b) Provide the 	 Municipal Bank, in addition to
that indicated in sub-paragraph (a), with a
 
sum of $3.5 million during the years
seven 

following the loan disbursement period;
 

c) Establish that the policy of 
the Central
 
Bank of: Honduras, in relation to loans to the
 
municipalities, will be 
to leave that activity

to the Municipal Bank, 
to the degree that the
 
latter is able to adequately attend to such

financing. 
 The Central Bank President has
 
been consulted on this matter and 
is in agree­
ment with this position;
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d) Prohibit the Municipal Bank from making
 
commercial loans. In this respect, the Bank's
 
Board of Directors has approved a resolution
 
to suspend these credits and offer to spll the
 
remaining commercial portfolio.
 

e) The Government in addition is disposed to
 
free the Municipal Bank of the administration
 
of the San Pedro Sula International Airport and
 
to assume the balance of the confirmed obligations
 
for which the Municipal Bank contracted in order
 
to finance the construction and expansion of the
 
airport. The Decree-Law to accomplish the transfer
 
is now in its final steps, waiting to be approved
 
by the appropriate legislative body.
 

I wish to note that the Municipal Bank is undergoing an
 
internal reorganization for which it has received valuable
 
AID assistance which is helping the Bank to adequately
 
prepare itself to manage the funds of 
the above referenced
 
loan.
 

Sincerely,
 

Manuel Acosta Bonilla
 
Minister of Finance and
 

Public Credit
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TEXT OF BANMA LETTER TO USAID/HONDURAS APRIL 18, 1974
 

(Translation)
 

Mr. James O'Rorke
 
Chief, Institutional
 
Development Division
 

-ear Mr. O'Rorke:
 

I wish to 
advise you that BANMA will include in
 
its 
credit policy for the Municipalities in the Loan prograr
 
being developed with A.I.D. and the Government of Honduras,
 
among other points,the requirement that the investment of
 
the municipality be at least 10% of the cost of each sub­
project, which may be provided in 
cash, goods, labor, etc.
 

Enclosed with this letter is 
a summary of collec­
tions from the commercial portfolio through March 31, 
1974,
 
and a projection of collections through the rest of this
 

year.
 

/s/ 
Armando Blanco Paniagua
 

President
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ACTIOKI
0AID
 

INFOg ANIB/oCN ACTION: (5
CHRON INFO: D
 

ell
P 0723 19Z NAN 74 DD 

IDFNM SECSYATE WASHDC 
 CHRONTO ARENBASSY TEGUCIGALPA PRIOR\V READER
 
BT
 
UNCLAS STATE 846537
 

AIDAC
 

E.O, 116522 N/A
 

SUBJt IRRolNUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENY (BAWNA) co y 
I. SUBJECT IRR WAS REVIEWED BY THE DAEC F EBtRUAqLVa
IRR WAS APPROVED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLO£WIC C(SIDER 

A .
 
SHOULD BE INCORPORATED IN THE LOAN PAPERo
 

A, LOAN PURPOSEI IT WAS AGREED THAT THE LOAN WOULD SUPPOTHE (OH REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY OUTLINED AW THE RECENT Y
RELEASED NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLA o SPECOFI ALLY, TilE 
 puRPOsE
OF THE LOAN PROGRAi SHOULD BE (A) VTO IO1PROWE TH2 CAPABIJIYOF THE COUNTY GOVERNMENTS OF THE 2? POLAR AND SU&*POLAR COgUTIES
TO FUNCTION EFFECTIVELY AS AORICULTURAI, SERUJICE CENUR4$

AND (B) TO COMPLETE THE REFORM PROCi2h1W C. BARIA 0O AS O ZiRAOL
IT TO EFFECTIVELY ASSISbT Gflt'COUNTY VEiRNI4U o0i1DS FROMLOCAL GOVERNMEbJS OUISIDE THE 27 CQ1,,9CO ULD 13E METFROM BANMA'S OWJO FUNDS CCURRENTLY AM049MATEILV 51,B MILLION)

THE REGIONAL POL, /S11BoPOLAR STR'MY IN FES1 
 NATIONAL PLAN
SHOULD BE TREATED EXTENSIVELY X 
' E LOAN PAPERo THE ABS FiOlCHOOSING THE 2? COU07IES SHOULD BE 
aCLUDEDq LDGC, THE IMPORTANCAOF THE COUNTIES TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF AURICU ,WRE 19 TIM A9R4101
CONCENTRATION OF POPULATIONo E 'C
 

B. TARGE? GROUP, PiN GENERAL, THE DAEC kECOO-92D UHS BALA5C9THAT MUST BE STRUCK BETWEEN FINAUCAL A ENSTIVUTIONAL VIABILITYOF, UHAT IS FOR ALL PRAI)(XICAL PURPOSES,, i FLEDGLING ENSUUTION
AND ATTEMPTING TO INMEDIATELV SERVE TH 
LOMEST iNCONE GROUPS.THE LOAN PAPER SHOULD RELATE THE PUnLAW CONCEVP AND GOH*S lEGIONAL STRAYEGY TO THE LO -INCO 1E PRODUCER (AT A ZNIMUN ?HEPROPORTION OF LOVINCOME PRODUCERS TO TOTAL POPULATIOM I TH9AREAS EFFIECTED)o SECONDLY, THE LOAW PROONAR 3iOULD BE RELATEDTO OTHER GO (AND iP') PROGRAIS TO REPCH hE COMPISINO 0S
ORDER TO DEMONSTRATE HOW THE BANNA PRO1 A, COMPLEMENTS TH9
(PERHAPS MORE DIRECT) EFFORK',S 'THIRDLY6 IN ADDSTION tO EL-0MINATING THE TWO PRINCIPAL URBAN AREAS AVD PLACING RESTRICTIOi
ON SUB-PROJECT ELIGIBILUI¥, THE WSaQ00 SHOULD WOQRK 1ih BANnA
TO DEVELOP A MECHANISM tIgop INTEREST FREE LOAN, GRANTAFOAI

COMBINATION), CONSISTENT WT"I 
THE 1S0TUUIUNAL ;URP@S3 OP Til

LOAN, TO REACH TH9 LARGE NUMBER OF GRALLEA MUNICIPALITIE9
WHICH CAN NOT PARTICIPATE IN A CONVENTIONA, LENDINO PRQ9RD,IN THIS CONNECTION, THE DAEC FELT THAI SUB 

if
 
AN REPAY0EiI16


SHOULD BE SUBJECT TO THE SAKE CRITERIA AS ORIGINAL LOAN
FUNDS 
(EG,., TEGUCIGALPA AND SAN PEDRO SULA INELIBIDLEV E[TC,),
 

UNCLASSIFIED
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PAGE 2 STATE 46537 
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fAISSING 0 
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Honduras - Municipal Development Project
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 611 (e) OF THE
 

FOREIGN ASSISTANCE ACT OF 1961, 
AS AMENDED
 

I, Edward Marasciulo, the principal officer of

Agency for International Development 

the
 
in Honduras, having


taken into account, among other 
things, the maintenance
 
and utilization of projects 
in Honduras previously

financed or assisted by the United 
States, do hereby

certify that in my judgement, the Autonomous Municipal

Development Bank (BANMA) has both the 
financial and human
 
resource capabilities to effectively maintain and
 
utilize 
the capital assistance project consisting of the
BANMA's sub-lending and related 
technical assistance
 
programs being financei in 
part by this proposed loan
 
entitled Honduras: Municipal Development Project.
 

This judgement is 
also based on th,. Mission's
 
opi nion that 
BANMA's performance during implementation
of the A.I.D. grant financed project No.522-15-810-039.10

has beern very satisfactory. During this period the Bank

has undergone a complete reform with 
A.I.D. assistance
 
as described herein and has met all reform targets
established in 
the project. In addition, the oroposed

loan calls for 
continuing technical assistance to 
aid
 
the Bank in carrying out the project.
 

Edward Marasciulo
 
Mission Director
 

April 19, 1974
 
Date
 

http:No.522-15-810-039.10
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finrnw~I s)c~undvr-th haJ 1 have, thnir z;(urce, and-rigni~O~Mi-Members countr,;' Rand,,~cuii e niclided in - . T. ).Geovahhrd 9 ,Marhinp,,insurance' financed- under' thpw 1,0an 1hilhvei± oud
 

- I-ovrinin'CACM*1member 
 counri'.e- oi anvij ic~l~i ncoutv I ,~ e.
_,ozah1'cco 041,rovided, hoi' ever, 1 at-.such CvThuanc .

ud tlani o ta .he d-_-d on;o o'eLt.eba )rl Loan -only 'i Ft ~ l 
:Oceany clC aa~r ncn be ree~ hrncis 
included idn ~ ap1c ((oe4 11o -IT) 

dta~e oh r~ut il un et oh *nce oca% 

c) o ?on e 
 0e
 

http:Government'.of


ANNEX V
 
Exhibit 5 
Page 8 of 28 

the capital oF the Administrator.
 

(d) Prior to first di-shursement, the Administrator shall submit 
evilence satisfactory to A.T.T). that it has:
 

(1) Provier] a contribution to the Project of not less than
 
$5300 n()o. 

(2) iredr nualified, :'rrofes-ional personnel For the positionro '!,ieF o" Technical C' rvices 9enartment -and Chie of ther i n.inc ia I !,-irrtment . 

(3) UbMitted a mutually acc.ptablle plan for utilizing 
techn *cal as-.stance Funds, includin evaluation and audit 
an,! ,rute carran ements For contract lng such technical assist­
antc in iccordance with the olan. 

(e) Prio, to first cdissbure-ent, the !nrrower shall provide a
fnaic.l -,In iccertable to A.1. . Ffor oroviding $1,5r)O,000 to 

te canital - }:AUJ,' on a rara. ,aiswith AIDmsu loan dis­
.),r.-eementn.
 

(f) P'o. t,. initial diq1,uT-,-rmcnt 'or cther than technical assist­
.nce ard training, the Admin:*strator shill: 

(1) ?ulhmft ro- AT) anproval. all re:,ulations ind rrocedures 
,!rverninc su.loan!- to be rnance(] u:lder thy Project. These
1h.11 include,, )ut nt beI.]irnitet to vinarcial nolicv, Toan
A,)ProvaJ]':ulations, anf- Pr'ocrrement emJ.ations. 

:or 

anne:<es,, 

(2) 'ubmtAir) anr-roval a qtandard sublloan contract and 

*nclu'nii, reportin. renuiremnents mnd accounting pro­
cedurls. 

(3) "rovile evirlence that the correspondent bank nlan is in 
oner.-it.ion )at least on a nilot basiq. 

(g) The Almini:strator shall covenant with ATD that: 

(i) All s!ubloans financed under the Project shall be approvedand executed in accordance with the procedures approved above. 



~ae2 

(~~kII "u t D . Dp- t u om± e t e Pro. 
e
cou"Ioinojctees
 amn 

(~~ Sulon-o~'v 
 ,a~J
. ci Ios ',aba 

efonancingo 

k r t r.3 

'~ 

s -locatedjpnanjnt url~an,) 
a 1 ,,citihe an ('v4)ffandt~~1ra th ad1nteo
 

fora~Per'iod .of Iifea rs 
 -ter Final'disburseet hSa 
(h) The florrow,,t shalluc.( ts' hest efforts to.brn about a~n~incraspin th e ' i.inrea~idr~ui~ia1 tax h~nT ensre. tha t 'niunicip.' veus rpo s~a~ action ovenr e 1~of the -Project..~~ 

C) T'he 9o r w r .,TA2' !A anId "A D i l T n rt k j0 ft pr j
review hbojv $1.0 million of loan Funds are cornptted andj ~aSOCond rwcvitew heflroi,n $3.0 milijon are c~1nt ed un&.ep th E'on.Vlc! Sfecnd, !3liesall he hasp(I on in levalation preAedh'ind~end~ ~:o~u~ant acceptabl1-.h11)orrowe , 

an 
. RANAWW ari4 , ATM.4, 

4k 

t i 

4* 44 

42 
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CHECKLIST OF STATUTORY CRITERIA
 

(Alliance for Progress)
 

In the right-hand margin, for each item, write answer or, 
as appro­priate, a summary of required discussi .:. As necessary, reference
the 	section(s) of 
the 	Capital Assistan-, ...
"r, 	or other clearly
identified and available document, in whit. 
 he matter is further
discussed. This form may be made a part of 
the 	Capital Assistance
 
Paper.
 

The 	following abbreviations are used:
 

FAA 	- Foreign Assistance Act of 
1961, as amended.
 

FAA, 1973 - Foreign Assistance Act of 1973.
 

App. -
Foreign Assistance and Related Programs Appropriation Act, 1974
 

MMA 	- Merchant Marine Act of 1936, 
as amended.
 

BASIC AUTHORITY
 

1. 	FAA 103: _ 104; 9 Z05; 
§ 106; 9 Z07. Is loan being made 

a, 	for agriculture, rupaZ devel­
opment or nutrition;
 

b. 	for population planning or heaZth; 

c. for education, public adminie­
tration or 
human resouroee development;
 

d. 	to solve eoonomic and nociaZ (1)The loan is designed to
development problems in fields such as promote municipal develop­transportation, power, industry, urban 
 ment outside of the major
development, and export development; 
 urban-industrial popula­
tion centers of Tegucigal­
pa and San Pedro Sula.
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e. in support of the genezal
 
economy of the reoipient
 
country or for devetopment
 
programs oonduoted by private
 
or international organixa­
tions.
 

COUNTRY PERFORMANCE 

Progres Towarda Country GoaZa 

2. FAA 5 208; I.28Z(b). 

A. Describe exten 'owhich
 
country is: (1) The novernment of Honduras has placed a
 

strong emphasis on increasing food production,
 
and provi(ling enlarged facilities for its
 
storage and distribution. An on-goin, compre­
hensive analvsis oF the aericultural sector was
 
initiated durig rY 1972. All the international
 

(1)Making appivpriate offorte aencies involvpel in Honduran economic develop­to in,recwe food production ment are cnntrihiuting through various ro17rnm!
pr to the 

and improve' mena~ for food 

treaseU"n~ food fOhiOti ,oaln nF increased rood nrodurtion Wid 

imnroved food distribution. 
storage and distribution. 

(2) Honduras is strivinq to create a favora1,le
(2)Cr.ating a favorabl# oZimate climate 4:or Forei.rn and domestic orivate enter­
for foreign and domeetic privato prise. The GO1 has an exDort Dromotion depart­
enterprie e Lwvd investment. ment in the Ministr'v of Economy. This depart­

ment provides assistance to domestic firm:
 
entering international market and foreign como&­
fies wishing to invest in Honduras. Tirms can
 
obtain loans from several sources incl~ding the 
Government-owned National Development Bank and 
the Central American Bank for Economic Integra­
tion. 

http:Forei.rn
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(3) Honduras iq .-tlvivi ,' :,eouirai,.nr tile navt 	.ii'ai.t inn(3) 	 Ifnereasing o f its c it szo lo . ill th ,.','V , im.,the 	publio * rr,,'on "proe eos . °fhox po rti,' t,,,nt, r'',.in,.. nntontl.droe, in the devetopmentaZ Nnh. 	

t 
r"i-,.

nriv,teThlhiin-''.V :, toi.: l1,
process. 	 wvk in,. , , n the, countrv'.sn i,, rIaii-'th 
AM{ .and orhevna donnr.l ln 	 inter­,nd 
e1.ned to rtlqnfth,,n i'r v.iu 

",'.I! 	 Ioui loar pror.vimn, do. 
int itut ions, tneludinrcoli, In athditintil the il',0I , ti'relitlv (lovloI)n 

programs which will. Oraw the riut;, nopulace which ac­counts for 70% of the couiitrrvl; total popul.,tion, Into
(4) 	 (a) Allocating avaiZabZe

the nation's ocono,,i ic r inrtio.iin. 

budgetary resouroes todevelopment. 
(4-a) I1onduras has be,,n 	alooating anrox.imatelvof 	 25%-ts bud-vet in the rc,,nt: past for investment .pt­
oOses. 

(b) 	Diverting such (14-1) ilitirv srnendiin Incrised somewhat he:,iu.qe(b) 	 ivering uchthe f,
I196q 	 Tic't.1litiesresources foil unnecessarydoes 

'lot with Frl Salvador, Thinarpeir to he dioroDo.tionate Incron-e: 
to ioflduranmilitary expenditure (S#.defens,, neeI;. Thealso Item No, 20) and 

miterial ohtaine~d has heen usedonlv For def'eutn, NUIpo-es andintervention in affairs 	 not to Intervene in theaffafr.i of ot.r free and independent nations.of other free and
 
independent nations.)

(See also Item No. ZZ)
 

(5) 	 Making economic, social, (5) At the Present timeand political 	 the rmllin strldvirig wav, toreforms such asimnrove its land tenure Pattern. T recentlvtax collection improvements 	 exper.,nped 	 with oneof atnroPosed neto,i of "iai6 reForm.and changes in 	 nationall eadaster An a resultland tenure aidei'inp revinion the "'lf is also con­arrangements 	 oF the property Veu law, Hondurasand 	making

progress toward respect for 

does not restrict freedom of expra;sion and of the 
the rule of 	

pren.9 and recopnizen the {Mnortin-.,,. F inlividuallaw, 	 free.freedom of d"m. initiative and nrivate enter,,,re.expression and of the press,

and recognizing the importance

of individual freedom,

initiative, and private
 
enterprise.
 

(6) 	 Adhering to the principlee (6) 1fonrhras' has been 	adhovin,.of the Act of Bogota anti 	 to the nri,,­
cinles ofCharter of Punta del Eeto. 	

the Act of AoRdta and the Chartmev 
of Punta del Este,
 

http:he:,iu.qe
http:countrv'.sn
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() Attempting to repatriate (7) Th. r,011 is nromotnq caoital reDitriAtioncapital inves.ted in othvr following a policy of direct a.sintance tocountries by its own oitime , local entr'oprineurs throue.h the export develon,ment department mentioned reviouslv, ao non­intervention in n ivate enterorise.
 

(8) Otherwise responding to (8) Dur.in th- present inflationarv r'-riodthe vital economic, politicaZ, th ,overnmnpt l.i,. sotight ,., to runhionand social concerns of its th, h)low oF 'vinl, price . n.-rticularIN, forpeople, the 1.owey' [ o011iu',I'Op . Itand demon strating.a thf.developen hi!, empha'L ziedt of the ruril :;.ctor whreclear determination to take both the majoritv and the poov'est se,nenteffective self-help measures, of the population are Found. 

B. Are above factors taken into . All of' the above factors were takenaccount in the furnishing of the into account. 
subject assistance?
 

Treatment of U.S. Citizens by Rocip-int Countr] 

3. FAA §620(c). If assistance isto g v r me-n . All) know,, o1fn uhidb:d estto government, is the government mnv if.);. c ntozen.liable as debtor or unconditional 
guarantor on any debt to a U.S. 
citizen for goods 
or services
 
furnished or ordered where (a)such

citizen has exhausted available
 
legal remedies and (b) debt is
 
not denied or contested by such
 
government?
 

steps to discharge its obligations 

4. FAA9 620(e) (). If assistance 
is to a government, has it 

4. Thee is no eviulene of anv such action. 
. .

(including government agencies 
or subdivisions) taken any
action which has the effect of 
nationalizing, expropriating, 
or otherwise seizing ownership 
or control of property of U.S.
citizens or entities beneficially
owned by them without taking 

toward such citizens or entities?
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5. FAA I 620(o); Fiehermen'.Protect.ve Act. 6 5. If -country 5. Honduras has not so..ed or impoid anyhas 8eiued .or 
or sanction against, 

mposed any penalZtV nenaltis or sanctions airainst i.. f.i-hins any U. ., vessols because of th,'ir activities in inter­fishing vessel on account of its national woters during recont ver.fishing activities in internationaZ
 
waters,
 

a. has any deduction required by 
 N/A

Fishermen's Protective Act been
 
made?
 

b. has complete denial of 
 NIA

assistance been considered by

A.I.D. Administrator?
 

Relations with U.S. Government and
 
Other Nations 

6. FAA 9 620(a). Does recipient 6. 11onduras neither furnishen assistancecountry furnish assistance to to C.uha nor tier.its shins ot' airc'rffts underCuba or fail to take appro- Its flap to tarrv car.o to or From Cuhn.priate steps to prevent ship.
 
or aircraft under its flag

from carrying cargoes to 
or
 
from Cuba?
 

http:Protect.ve
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7. FAA § 620(b). If assistance 7. The Sec'etarv of-State has determired
is to a government, has the that Honduras is, not controlled by the 
Secretary of State determined International Communitt movement. 
that it is not controlled by
 
the international Communist
 
movement?
 

8. FIAA S 620(d). If assistance is 8. This loan isnot intended to provide
for any productive enterprise assistance to a Droductive onteorise.
which will compete in the United
 
States with United States enter­
prise, is there an agreement by

the recipient country to prevent
 
export to the United States of
 
more than 20% of the enterprise's
 
annual production during the life
 
of the loan?
 

g. FAA # 620(f). Is recipient country 9. Honduras Is not a communist a Communist country? country.
 

10. 	 FAA 9 620(i). Is recipient country 1o. AI) has no evidence of any sub­in any way involved in (a) subver- wr ion or amrw:ossnn or of nl.ins rorsion of, or military aggression anv -411ch action aRAinst any Countrv. 
against, the United States or any

country receiving U.S. assistance,
 
or (b) the planning of such sub­
version or aggression?
 

17, FAA § 620(j). Has the country 11. Durin7 neriods of tension and publicpermitted, or failed to take commotion caiiused factors such thebV asadequate measures to prevent, change in overnment in Chile the GOII hasthe damage or destruction, by failed at times to take adequate measuresmob action, 	 to Prevent damae to the Ui.. Chancery, qI'Siof U.S. property? installations, and U.Sq. ilitarv Advisorv
roup's oFfices. Ho1wever, the Chancerv has

been RPiven a 4 hour euard, and tile Covern, 
sent has nromAsed nrompt assistance to the 
other Installations and offices shoulji
trouble develon in the future.
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z. 	 FA4 9 620(Z If the country 
has faiZed to institute the 
investment guaranty program

for the specific risks of 
expropriation, in convert­
ibility or eonfiscation, has 
the A.I.D. administration within
 
the past year considered denying

assistance to such government
 
for this reason?
 

FAA - 620(n). Does recipient

country furnish goods to North 
Viet-Nam or permit ships or 
aircraft under its flag to 
carry cargoes to or from North 
Vie t.Nam? 

74. 	 FAA § 6 2 0 (g). Is the government 
of the rec-ipient country in 
default on interest or principal
of any A.I.D. loan to the 
country?
 

15. 	 FAA 9 620(t). Has the country
severedT-di;omatic relations 
with the Ukited States? If so, 
have 	they *.een resumed and

have new bilateral assistance 
agreements been negotiated and
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12. The OPIr Investment Cuarantv Program 
is in operation in the country. 

13. AID has no evidence of Honduran
 
involvement in such matters.
 

14. Irontlurin is not in defu.lt on any such 
Ion, 

15. 1{6nduran has maintainnd dfnlomatic 
relations with the U.S. 

ente:'ed into since such resumption?
 

Z'. 	 FAA § 620(u). What is the pay- 16. 11onhur-i in not 'in arrelrs to thement 	statue of the country Is U.S. extent scl,.c{qiad in Apticlo q or the U.N,obligations? If the country is rharter,.
in arrears, were 
such arrearagee

taken into account by the A.I.D.
 
Administrator in 
 determining the 
current A.I.D. Operational Year
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j7. FAA 6 48Z. 
 Has the government of 
 17. The MOH has taken adequate steps
r ecipient country failed to takeadequate steps to prevent narcotic 
to control illeal narcotics traffic.A snecial Narcotics Tnvesti.ation Branchdrugs and other controlled sub- wAS estahlished withinstances (as defined by the Compre-

the Police (CES)

in1970. Honduras 'snot at this time
hensiVe Drug Abuse Prevention amd heroin or cocain.o,a channel for international traffic in,in(!
most rases haveControl Act of 1970) produced or been in theprocessed, in whole area of interndal us0, saleor in part, in
Ruch country, or 
or growin. of marijuana or the i-,e ortransported 
 :,.ale oF amohetamrines or har.ituates.rhrough such country, from being 
 The "orvhzran rolics have previously c.­sold illegally within the jurie-
 operaited withrecentl%, S'1r. !,e sla:ioni v,nasseddiction of such whit-h un-datescountry to a :re-U.S. viousGovernment personnel or their 

law bv nrovi.in - cri"in,-il enalties
for newer formis ofr d'i. ahuse.dependents, or 
from entering the


U.S. unlawfully? 

AA, 1973 29 
 If (a) military 
 18. No*U.S. military base is
base is 
 dcae
in recipient 
 located in Honduras.
country, and was 
constructed or

is being maintained or operated
with funds furnished by U.S.,

(b) U.S. personnel carry out 

and
 

military operations from such
base, has the President deter­
mined that 
the government of
recipient country has authorized

regular access 
to U.S. corres­
pondents to 
such base?
 

Military Expenditures
 

Z9. 
 FAA § 620(). What percentage of 
 (19) Accord(in, to ofFieia! release.,i fi.uren,country budget is for military 7.9% oF thtexpenditures? (,il hudflet is allocated toRow much of foreign militarv nondinn, durin):exchange resources spent on miii-
197'1. Only 0 ormilitarv_ roreipn x:x:hanee resourcesquipment.tary equipment? The are heinf, used forMissionRow much spent fOrmajor portion of this fund believes thethe purchase of sophisticated is used for ntandard,

arms and ammunition, personnel costs, inainte­weaponR systems? (Consideration 
 nance, etc. There isof these points is no reason to believe the
to be coor-
 (,OH has any sophisticated weaoons sVstems.
dinated with the Bureau for
Program and Policy Coordination,

Regional Coordinators and Military

Assistance Staff (PPC/RC).)
 

http:nrovi.in
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CONDITIONS OF THE LOAN
 

GeneraZ Soundnetjs
 

20. 	 FAA § 20Z(d). Information and 

conclusion on reasonableness 

and legality (under laws of, 

c~untry and the United States) 
of lending and relending terms
 
of the loan.
 

21, 	 FAA § 25l(b)(2)1 § 2Zl(e). 
Information and conclusion on 
activity's economic and 
eciity seonndness. IfZ 


technical soundness. If loan 
is not made pursuant to a 
multilateral plan, and the 
amount of the loan exceeds
 
$ZOO,000, has country submitted
 
to A.I.D. an application for
 
such 	funds together with
 
assurances to indicate that
 
funds will be used in an econom­
ically and technically sound
 
manner?
 

2 p. 	FAA § 251 (b). Information and 
conclusion on capacity of the 
country to repay the loan, 
including reasonableness of
 
repayment prospects.
 

25. 	 FAA § 251(b). Information and 
conclusion on availability of 
financing from other free- r ld 
sources, including private 
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(20)The prononed loan is legal under Honduran 
and U... !a- and the proposed terms ave redwon­
able for Honduras. 

(21) The acti'ltv has been found economically 
and technicallv sound. The Borrower has sub­
mitted a loain anlication t'o AID dated December 
14, 1973which contains assurance that the funds 
will be used in a sound manner. 

(22) It Is reanorah.v certai that ie G1OHwll. 
be ble to reay the loan. aeeSection IV.A.3 

(23) rinancing for this project is 
not available from other free-world sources,
 
includin, nrivate sources within the United 
.e 

sources within the United States.
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21. FAA § 61l (a) (1). Prior to 
oigning of toan will there be 
(a) engineering, finanoial, 
and other plans necessary to 

(2) The rnalr', plAn, have hoan lomieted 
nd a rnaooniitr,Urm et{iryit,, of the co.st 

to the [II. of th. activitv to hj finane( 
hsbeen obtained. 

carry out the assistance and 
(b) a reasonably firm estimate 
of the cost to the United States 
of the assistance? 

25. ,AA 0 611 (a)(2). If further '(25) Since the. ,(H will repAv the'loanlegis lcktive action is required ratification *b"the Chiefs of I'tnto and the
ijithin recipient country, what 
 r.ounce. of 11inktorq will eieJiwsarv prior ,. basis for reasonable expec- to initition oF Ifs n loans 
tation that such action wiZZ be mAdo to the ovnrnment and its i;,encios in 
completed in time to permit the past have been ratified on a timelv basls. 
orderZy accomplishment of
 
purpose of loan?
 

26. 7AA 67 (C). If loan is for T(26) The Mission rector has sined the 
6ZIpital Asr!-.tance, and all certification included inAnnex V of this

U.S. aosiotance to project now CAP. 
rxcee. $Z million, has Miesion 
.7irectorcertified the country 's 
capability effectively to 
riaintrvin and utilize the project? 

Loan's Relationshi, to Achievement
2L 7Jwantr'y a'n----Aeqionat Goals 

27. FAA 0 207, 0 251(a); Z113. 
.:xtent to which assistance (27) This loan is desianed to s;trenthen 1IAINIA
reflects appropriate emphasis 
 and up-grade 27 polar and suboolar countien to
on: (a) encouraging develop- operate more el:Fectivelv as a.ricultu'al nervivcment of democratic, economic, 
 centers. As service is improved agricultural
political, and social institutionsnroduction and distribution should increase. 
(b) self-help in meeting the Technical Assistance provided by BAIWA will im­prove the county (.ovornments' xdmiinistration.country 'a food needs; (c) im- The project will not have a direct effect onproving availability of 
trained improving the availahilltv of trained manpower
manpower in the country; 
 Inthe country or meeting the country's healt'i

(d) programs designed to meet 
 needs other than nutrition. 
the country's health needs!
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(e) other important areas of
 
economic, political, and social
 
development, including industry;
 
free labor unions, cooperatioeo,
 
and Voluntary Aqencies, trans­
portation and communication;
 
planning and public administration;
 
urban development, and moderni­
zation of existing laws; or 
(f) integrating women into the
 
recipient country's national
 
economy.
 

28, 	 FAA d 209. Is project susceptibZe (28) nuo to thf%emphasis of thn project oi. parti.of execution as part of regional Cular "rAs oFre country each with Its own
pecilliar neelsthe oroject Is not su.itable Fo 

poject? If so why is project not exc,,ton In art of a regional Project. 
so executed?
 

29. 	 FAA 0 251(b)(3). Information and (29) This or-,juL s consistent witN the Govern­
conclusion on activity 's relation-ment's develonment nlan and the UAIDs chosen 
ship to, and consistency with, emnhasis on rural development. 
other development activities, and
 
its contribution to realizable 
long-range objectives.
 

30. 	 FAA § 251(b)(7.). Information and (30)'rhis nrnic.t will contribute! to th. achieve­
conclusion on whether or not the ment ofPir-nq,,r4'.,,ncv and continiinror r,owth 
activity to financed will tho h,.IM it ommh.',t::; imnrovc:,intbe of I',. ,it,
contribute to the achievement of in (1) administrative practices oF the Rank and 

thnmunicinalitihs; (2) Financial nosition of the " se if-sustaining growth. 	 flank and municipalities and (3) services provided
in rural localities. 

3Z. 	 FAA § 209; § 251(b)(8). 
Information and conclusion (31) By enhancing ag production through im­
whether assistance will proved marketing distribution Honduras will 
encourage regional development, gai7 a stronger hargaining nosition in theCACM and thus encourage itto carrv on
 
programs, and contribute to th.i': negotiations with the other wombez'.
 
economic and political integraticm
 
of Latin America.
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32. FAA § 2 5Z(g); S ZZZ. Infor- (32) Thn loin will not dfrectlv Promote themation and cono"ueion on uee of cooperative movement. However, rmin, ?F the.ianeloan to assist in promoting th4 imrovements which tacilitate the di~trihutioncooperative movement in Latin of Roods will facilitate the movement oE people
America. thu.m enhnnc'nri t~e Formation and operation of 

cooperatives.
 

(33) It has been determined that this activity

38. FAA ins consistent with the findinrs and recommenda­9 25Z(h). Information tions of the Tnter Amrican Committee for theand co-clusion on whether the Alliance For Proges. (See Section I.D.6 ofactivity is consistent with the of the CAP).

findings and recommendations of the
 
Inter-American Committee for the
 
Alliance for Progress in its
 
annual review of national develop­
ment activities. 

34. FAA § 28(a). Oesorib. extent to (3) The muni i r itips hn,.I iIM' v towhich the loan will contribute to rovi ,e mor. and htter nervi:.' ;,? . rn.ult of*the objective of qosuring maximl a ntrent.thned WN'PA will annint the ruralparticipation in 
the task of sconeo- p o uat(on sain a P.xeater narticinaton In themic development on the part of the economic develonment of the country. 
people of the country, through the! 
encouragement of democratic,
 
private, and local governmental 
institutions.
 

35. FAA § 281(b). Describe extent to (35) This loan rco.nizes the nee.1 ofr the ruralwhich program recognixee the, nonulation For imnroved aarketinc centers.particular needs, desires, and PANMA relvinc. hevilv on its 
The 

own staFf willdevelon seminars and other T.A.capacities of the people of the no ,am.; toteach local ove,,nment oFficials *':v".r:'-.. .1'.country; uti ises the country' s ministrative nractices.
 
intellectual resources to
 
encourage institutional devel­
opment; and supports civic
 
education and training in skills 
required for effective partioi­
pation in governmentaZ and
 
political processes essential to
 
self-government.
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 (36)This nroiect will indirectly increase the 
86. FAA Flow of international trade bv facilitating dis­9 601(a). Information and tribution in the local markets and between the.conclueione whether loan will countrv's local and regional markets. .slocal
encourage efforts of the country market accessahilitv becomes .r'reater .o.'-Otltionto: (a) increase the flow of will Increase and with the orov'i.on of se'v'Ces

international trade; (b) j',3ter such as electricitywill be encouraied to locate close to its 5uillv.
and water ag. related industr. 
private initiative and competition; e..ltot 
(c) encourage development and use
 
of cooperatives, credit unions,

and savings and loan associations;
 
(d) discourage monopolistic

practices; 
(e) improve technical 
efficiency of industry, agricuZture,
and commerce; and (f) strengthen 
free labor unions. 

37. FAA § 619. If assistance is for (37) Handuras is not a newly independent
newly independent country; is it country. 
furnished through multilateral 
organizations or plans to the 
maximum extent appropriate? 

Loan's Effect on U.S. and A.I.D. 
Prcq r aimM 

T8.FAA4 .L b jJ,: -102. Information (38) This nrolect will have-no Foraseeabland conclue70no ible effects adverse effects on the U.S. economy.of loan on U.S. economy, with speoial

reference to areas of substantial 
Zabor surplus, and extent to which 
U.S. commodities and assistance are
 
furnished in a manner consistent
 
with improving the U.S. balance of 
payments position. 

3V. FAA § 252(a). Total amount of money (39) The entire amount of' the loan will beunder loan which is going directZ made available to an Intermediate creditto private enterprise, is going to Institution 4or relendIng to municipalitlemintermediate credit institutions or 
 and financing related technical assistance.
other borrowers for use by private
enterprise, is 
being used to finanoG
 
imports from private sources, or is
 
otherwise being used to finanoe
 
proourements from private sourses.
 

http:orov'i.on
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40. 	 FAA § 601(b). Information and (40) ,.A. exnorts could he und intheconclusion on how the loan vilZ vA.rioun construction Drojectn. rn vtiditon 
encourage U.S. private trade and as Inca] markets become more accessahleinvestment abroad and how it wiZZ opportunities for selling! I.q. products 
encourage private US. partioipation wIll Increase. 
in foreign assistance programs

(including use of private trade 
channels and the services of U.S.
 
private enterprise). 

4t. 	 FAA § 601(d). If a capital 
 (4l) Design and engineering
project, are engineering and services over $25,000 will be
professional services of U.S. 
 procured on a competitive basis
firms and their affiliates used for which U.S. firms will be 
to 
the maximum extent consistent eligible. It is expected that mostwith the national interest? jobs will draw international interest.
 

42. 	 FAA Y 602. Information and (42) , , small business will be permittedconclusnw,ether u.s. small to participate inthe furnishing of Roodsbusiness will participate and services inanced by the loon. 
equitably in the furnishing of 
goods and servicas financed by
 
the loan,
 

43. FAA § 620(h). 
 Will the loan (43) This'loan will not promote or assist 
promote or assist the foreign forei..n aid projects of Communist-Bloc
 
aid projects or activities of countries. 
the Communist-Bloc countries?
 

44. FAA § 62Z. If Technical (44) Technical asnistance to he financed

Assistance is financed by the under the loan will he furninhed to the
loan, information and conclueion fullest extont vracticahle hv private
whether such assistance will be omanizatfons at Individuals, 
furnished to the fullest extent
 
practicable as goods and profee­
sional and other services from
 
rivate enterprise on a contract
 

basis. If.the facilities of other
 
Federal agencies wilZl be utilZied,
 
information and conclusion on
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whether they are partiouZarZy

ouitable, 
are not oompetitive Keith
 
private antapriese, and aan be
 
made avaZable without undue

interference with domeetic programe.
 

Loan's Compliance with Specifico 
 Requiremens
 

45. 	 FAA § llO(a); 2 08(e). 
 Has the (45) The recipient country has
recipient country provided 
 so provided. (See Section IV
assurancea 
that 	it wiZl provide 
 A.1. and Exhibits 1 and 2 of
at least 25% of the costs of Annex 	V).

the program, project, or acti­
vity with respect to which the
 
Loan is to be. made?
 

46. 	 FAA P l12. Will loan be used No
 
to finance police training or
 
related program in recipient 
country?
 

4?. 	 FAA § ZZ4, Will loan be used to No 
pay for performance of abortions
 
or to motivato 
cr coerce persons
 
to practice abortions?
 

48. 	 FAA_ 20Z(d). Is in.terest rate Yes
 
of loan at 'east 2% per annum
 
during grace *periodand at least
 
3% per annum thereaf+.r?
 

44 FAA 6 04(c . Will 	all commodity (49) No commodities will be procured in 
procurement financed under the 
 bulk.
 
loan 	be fror 	 the United States 
except ae 
otherwise determined
 
by the President?
 

60. 	 FAA 9 604(b). What provision C (50), No hulk comu4dity procurwent In can­"made to 
 revent financing commodity templatd under this loan.procurement in bulk at prices higher'

than adjusted U.S. market price?
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40. 	FAA § 601(b). Information and (40) 1l.q. oxnorte could he us.,! in the
conclusion on how the loan ilZ varioun construction projects. Tn kildition 
encourage U.S. private trade and is local. maiket become more accessahle 
investment abroad and how it wiZZ opportunities for selling U.q. products 
encourage private U.S. participation will increase.
 
in foreign assistance programs
 
(including use of private trade
 
channels and the services of U.S.
 
private enterprise).
 

4t. 	 FAA § 601(d). If a capital (41) Design and engineering

project, are engineering and services over $25,000 will be
 
professional services of U.S. 
 procured on a competitive basis
 
firms and their affiliates used for which U.S. firms will be
 
to the maximum extent consistent eligible. It is expected that most
 
with 	the national interest? jobs will draw international interest.
 

42. 	 FAA Y 602. Information and (42) II., small business will beconctu-sin whether U.S. small to participate inthe furnrshing permitted
of roods
 

business will participate and services financed bv the loan.
 
equitably in the furnishing of
 
goods and ecrvices financed by
 
the loan,
 

43. 	 FAA 9 620(h). Will the loan 
 (43) This loan will not promote or assist
 
promote or assist the foreign foreirn aid projects of Coeunist-Bloc
 
aid projects or activities of countries.
 
the Communist-Bloc countries?
 

FAA 9 62l. If Technical 	 (4) Technical assistance to he financed44. 	 4 s~tance is financed by the under the loan will he furninhed to the 
loan, 	 lullest extent Dracticable bv rivate'information and cone Zusion oranlzetins or, indivicuais. 

whether such assistance will be
 

furnished to the fullest extent
 
practicable as goods and profes­
sional and other services from
 
private enterprise on a contract
 
asis. Ifthe facilities of othG. 
Federal agbncies will be utilixeds
 
information and conclusion on 
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whether they 
are PartiouZarty

euitabZ., are 
not competitive with

private enterprises and can be

Made available without undue
Interference with domestic programe.
 

Loan'. ComPlianc, with Seifio Re uirement, 
46. 	FAA. Zl0(a)j 9 2 0 8(e). Has the
recipient country poi 	

(45) The recipient country hasded so provided.
aseurances 	 (See Section IV
that 	it will provide A.1. and Exhibits 1 and 2 ofat least 26% of the costs of Annex 	V).the program, project, or acti­
vity 	with respect to which the
Loan 	is 
to ,e made?
 

46. 	FAA 4 Z12. Will loan be used 

to finance police training or 

No
 

related program in recipient
 
country?
 

47. 	 FAA§ 1Z4. Wi4t loan be used to No pay for performince of abortion*
 
or to motivate 
cr coerce personr;
 
to practice abor'ione?
 

48. 	 FAA § 20Z(d). TI in terest rate Yes
of oan at 'east 2% per annum
 
during gr. period and at least
ce 

3% per annum thereafter?
 

44 FAAON 6 04(a). Will all commodity (49) No connoditie. l.l be procured inprocurement financed under the 
 bulk.
loan be from the United States
 
except as otherwise determined
 
by the President?
 

.60. 	FAA § 604(b). What provision to (0), No bulk cammIty pmourement is can­made to prevent financing commodity tweilated urdr this loan.procurement in bulk at prices higherthan 	adjusted U.S. market price? 
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5 Z. FI.,0 604(d). If the coop- (51) The Loan ARsteutit. will orovide forerating country discriminates comliance with this Provision.against U.S. marine insurance
 
companies, will loan agreement

require that marine insurance
 
be placed in the United States
 
on commodities financed by the
 
loan?
 

52. FAA § 6 04(e). If offshore proOures.- (52) No such orocurefment is contemplated.ment of agricultural commodity or
product is to be financed, is thepprovision 
against such procurement

when the domestic price of such
 
commodity is 
less than parity?
 

5Z. FAA § 604K(f). If loan finances a (53)commo y -,ort 	 The loan does not financeprogram, will a commodity import program.arrangemento"he made for supplier
certification to A.I.D. and A.I.D.
approval of commodity as eligible
 
and suitable?
 

54. FAA 9 608(a). Information onmeasures to be taken to uti Zixe 	 (54) Tn procurement for its own accountBANA will follow Air aorroved Drocetitre,U. S. Government 	 which include an i vestIc tion oFexcess personaZ 	 U.S.rovernment rxcess Pronertv qtocks.
property in 
lieu of the procurement
 
of new items.
 

55. FAA 96lb',.Ap.1 01. ifloan finances water or water-
 (55) Thi Project In not a waterrelated land 	 or water­resource construction related land resources conqtruction nroject.project or 
program, is 
there a

benefit-cost computation made,

insofar as practicable, 
 in 
accordance with 
the procedures

set forth in the Memorandum of
the President dated May Z5, 1962? 
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56. FAA § 6ZZ(c). If contracts for
construction are to 
(56) Prior to initial dishursetnont for otherbe financed, 
than technicnl Assist~nce and trilin, BA^MAwhat provision will be made that 
mut suhm'itthey be let on a competitive bas~eai.8 

for Al) annroval all regulations
the be letnt aopetitive procedures concerninf, s.li-loansto maximum extent b includinfpracticable? snrocurement rmRulatfons. U;AID will not an­prove these r".ulationa unless they ensure t 

contracts will he awarded on a competitive

basis.
 

57. FAA 9 612(b): § 636(h). Describe 

steps taken 

(57)No U.S. owned foreign currencv isavailto assure that, to the able for use in the loan. Hondurasmaximum exten't posszble, the co'n is con-,COU~-"M(qee SectiontrIbutingis contributing local currenciee to 
localIV.currencyA. I. oftothetheCAPproject. 

meet the tcost of contractuat and
other services, and foreign currenoise
owned by 
the United States are utilised
 
to meet thi 
 coat of contractua. and
 
other services.
 

5;. Ap.p 13. 
WiZI any of loan funds be used to Noacquire currency of recipient country

from non-U.S. Treasury sources when ex­cess curren..7 
 of that country is 
on
deposit in 
U.S. Treasury?
 

59. FAA 9 61 (d). 
 Does the United (59) The Unitnd 1tatas doa; notrorenrn currency suitable own oxeesStates own or availabi. for 
and, if so, 

excess foreign currenoey utilization In this project.
what arrangements have been

made for its release? 

60. FAA 96 20(a). 
 What provision is 
 (60) The Loan Avr'eeent will provide for
there against use 
assistance to 

of subject sneciFic use oF the loan funds and therehycompensate owners preclude allocation of the funds for such
for expropriated 
or nationalized
 
property?
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61. FAA I 620 (k). If oonstruotion (61).This project will not involve construotic
of produotive enterprise, will of a poductive enter.prise.
aggregate value of assistance
 
to be furnished by the United
 
States exceed $00 miZZlion?
 

62. FAA 9 636(i). Will loan fundsany (62) No loan funds will be. uned' for thisbe used to finance purchase, long.- purpose.
term lease, or exchange of motor
 
vehicle manufactured outside the
 
United States, or any guaranty of
 
such a transaction?
 

63. Ap 1 . Will any loan funds be (63) Loan Ounds will not he used for hs 
used to pay pensions, etc., for nurnose. ' t 
military personnel? 

64. App. 8 105. If loan is for capitaZ (64) AT will npnrove all technical assint­project, is there provision for anco contrc,:tn mnd contractori ond willA.I.D. approval of aZ contraoo e ,,'trov, WIA'VA'n hamic contrAct form for
aznd contract terms? 

65. App. 9 ZO?. Will any loan funds (65) N~o will he used to av U..loan Funds 
be usedto pay UN assessments? assessmonts. 

66. Ap. 0 109. Compliance with (6 6)Ths 1r'ov sion will be complied with. 
regulations on employment of U.S.
 
and local personnel. (A.I.D.
 
Regulation 7).
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67, A. . 6 ZlO Will any of loan 	 (67) No loan funds will be 
fu-nds bsued to carry out pro- made available to the IDB or 
visions of FAA if 209(d) and BMW(h)? other multilateral financial 

institution. 

68. 	 App. § IZ4. Describe how the (68) This loan was included
 
Committee on Appropriations of in the FY 74 presentation

the Senate and House have been or to the Congress. (Latin
 
will be notified concerning the America, page 57).
 
activity, program, project,
 
country, or other operation to be 
financed by the Loan. 

69. 	 App. 6oZ. Will any loan funds (69) No loan funds will be used for propaganda 
bused for publicity or purpomes.
 
propaganda purposes within the
 
United States not authorised by
 
the Congress?
 

7 V. 	 MMA 9 901.b; FAA § 640C. 

(a) Compliance with requirement (70) The Loan Agreement will provide 
that at leap.t 50 per centum of for compliance with this provision. 
the gross tonnage of commodities
 
(computed separately for dry bulk
 
carriers, dry cargo liners, and
 
tankers) financed with funds made
 
available under this loan shall be
 
transported on privately owned U.S.­
flag commercial vessels to the
 
extent that such vessels are
 
available at fair and reasonabZe
 
rates.
 

(b) Will grant be made to loan No
 
recipient to pay all or any portion
 
of such differential as may exist
 
between U.S. and foreign-fZag vevsel
 
rates?
 




